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30
PINCO 2020-10
2023 10
) (¢ ) )
Las Vegas Sands Corp. 2.900 | 2025/ /25 6,406,557 6,400,000 6,013,553 .95
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 3.450 | 2025/ / 6,211,052 6,100,000 5,785,511 .84
General Motors Co. 6.125 | 2025/10/ 6,091,489 5,700,000 5,692,132 .79
UniCredit SpA 7.830 | 2023/12/ 5,528,453 5,500,000 5,507,569 .70
BPCE S.A. 4.500 | 2025/ /15 5,906,732 5,700,000 5,500,171 .70
Gray Oak Pipeline LLC 2.600 | 2025/10/15 5,406,211 5,400,000 4,999,515 .45
UBS Group AG 2.593 | 2025/ /11 5,158,261 5,100,000 4,919,268 41
Syngenta Finance NV 4.892 | 2025/ /24 4,921,439 4,789,000 4,681,697 .30
Ally Financial, Inc. 4.625 | 2025/ /30 4,670,330 4,500,000 4,343,096 .13
10 |AIB Group PLC 4.263 | 2025/ /10 4,349,273 4,305,000 4,250,112 .09
11 |SMBC Aviation Capital Finance DAC 3.550 | 2024/ /15 4,124,152 4,100,000 4,049,827 .99
12 |BGC Group, Inc. 3.750 | 2024/10/ 3,856,008 4,200,000 4,043,435 .98
13 |Radian Group, Inc. 6.625 | 2025/ /15 4,088,162 4,000,000 3,964,020 .95
14 |Hyatt Hotels Corp. 5.375 | 2025/ /23 4,114,678 4,000,000 3,949,867 .94
15 |Standard Chartered PLC 3.785| 2025/ /21 4,048,649 4,000,000 3,934,132 .93
16 |Intesa Sanpaolo SpA 5.017 | 2024/ /26 4,043,798 4,000,000 3,920,536 .92
17 |Vistra Operations Co. LLC 3.550 | 2024/ /15 4,046,234 4,000,000 3,902,354 .92
18 |NatWest Group PLC 4.269 | 2025/ /22 3,942,688 3,900,000 3,861,077 .89
19 |Societe Generale S.A. 4.250 | 2025/ /14 4,107,708 4,000,000 3,832,626 .88
20 |Credit Agricole S.A. 4.375 | 2025/ /17 4,045,405 3,900,000 3,770,567 .85
21 |Imperial Brands Finance PLC 4.250 | 2025/ /21 4,053,601 3,900,000 3,768,306 .85
22 |First American Financial Corp. 4.600 | 2024/11/15 3,908,949 3,800,000 3,746,375 .84
23 |FirstEnergy Transmission LLC 4.350 | 2025/ /15 3,907,846 3,800,000 3,703,512 .82
24 |ABN AMRO Bank NV 4.750 | 2025/ /28 3,993,177 3,800,000 3,663,200 .80
25 |Cooperatieve Rabobank UA 4.375 | 2025/ / 3,997,172 3,800,000 3,650,630 .79
26 |Bank of Ireland Group PLC 4.500 | 2023/11/25 3,506,516 3,500,000 3,493,689 .71
27 |Boeing Co. 4.875 | 2025/ / 3,504,326 3,400,000 3,341,177 .64
28 |Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. 4.500 | 2025/ /15 3,155,745 3,100,000 3,006,855 .48
29 |Host Hotels & Resorts LP 4.000 | 2025/ /15 3,143,485 3,100,000 2,976,584 .46
30 |Seagate HDD Cayman 4.750 | 2025/ / 3,091,496 3,000,000 2,937,731 .44
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2024 1

2021 10 364,985,104.69 53,853,552 102.93 15,187
2022 10 223,760,417.46 33,015,850 94.98 14,014
2023 10 203,753,114 .06 30,063,772 100.49 14,827
2023 218,105,065.01 32,181,402 97.80 14,430
217,664,756.36 32,116,435 98.35 14,512

217,995,806.13 32,165,281 98.96 14,602

215,446,443.44 31,789,123 98.86 14,587

212,418,591.17 31,342,363 99.01 14,609

210,846,953.70 31,110,468 99.68 14,708

208,959,783.38 30,832,016 100.16 14,779

205,969,710.60 30,390,831 100.22 14,787

10 203,982,633.23 30,097,638 100.49 14,827

11 202,030,935.89 29,809,665 101.53 14,981

12 200,857,927.50 29,636,587 102.57 15,134

2024 199,083,446.44 29,374,763 103.12 15,215
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Cradit Agricale S0

4.375% due 03/17/2025 3,900 E
Sociatn Gemerale 5.4,

43508 due 04/14/2005 4,000 3833
el S 15,703

(BT IRUEE $16,778)
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PIMCO 2020-10
2023 10 31
HE &S =
(M) ([ F M)
AwrCap [mland Capital DAC
B.50066 due OF/15/2025 5 1900 -1 1,896
AIE Group PLC
43635 due 04/ 10/2005 4,305 4,250
Bank of Ireland Eroup PLC
4.5000% due 11,/25/2023 3,500 3454
SMEC Aviation Capital Finance DAC
3.5500 due 04,/15/2024 4,100 4,050
FAAFr FEN 13,600
(e $12,957)
Intasa Sanpanle SpA
3.250% due 09/23/2024 200 194
5007% due 06,/26,/2024 4,000 3921
UniCredit Sph
7305 due 12042003 5,500 5,508
A4 #UTEMN 9,623
(B8R $0.775)
;‘_"..
Nizzan Moter Co. Ltd.
3.522% due 09,/17/2025 2,600 2460
Nomira Haldings, Ine.
1.851% due 07162025 2,000 1,853
A& 4313
(RS FER DO 50,625
ABN AMRD Bask NV
A_T506% due 07282005 3,800 3,663
Cosparatiove Rabobank UA
4.375% due 08/04/2025 3,800 3,650
LeasePlan Corp. NV
2BT5 due 10/24/2024 3,000 2301
Synpesita Fisanca NY
AR9% due 04,/24/2005 4,789 4,682
FFHER 14,808
(R FHNAE 515,940

A2 110%

HSAL Holdings PLC

3.803% due 03/11/2025 160 1,583
A.250% due 05/18/2025 1900 1821

Imparinl Brands Finasca PLC
A4.3500 due 07212025 3,900 3,768
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PIMCO 2020-10
2023 10 31

WEES L

R A (€ & L]
Linyds Banking Group PLG
4.4500 due 05/08/2025 5 3000 5 1915
45000 due 11,/04/2004 1,900 1,856
NatWest Group PLE
4.269% due 03/22/2025 3,900 3,851
Rolie-Royes PLE
3.625% due 10/14/ 2025 2,400 2,252
Santander UK Group Holdings PLC
1.085% due 03/15/2025 A00 351
Standard Chartered PLC
3.7855 due 05/21/0025 4,000 31934
4 XU A& 22,301
(R 523,478

T A U 3 Er B A0.0%
o g0 0%

RES Corp

3.300% due 07,/15/2025 2,000 1892
Ally Finaneial, I,

46255 due 03,/30/2025 4,500 4,343
Ares Capital Corp.

4_2006% due 06/10/2024 2000 1967
Athere Glodal F

2.50066 due 01/14/2025 2300 2,186
Avintion Cagital Group LLE

41255 due 08012025 1,631 1,554
Bosang Co.

48755 dua 05012025 3400 3341
DAE Funding LLC

1.625% due 03,/00/2025 1,000 42
Enact Haldings, Inc.

B6.500% due 08/15,/2025 2,000 1967
EPR Properties

450066 due 04,/01,/2025 1,300 1,254
First Amarican Financisl Carp.

46006 due 11/15/2024 3,800 3,16
FlrstEreegy Transmission LLC

435064 due 01/15/2005 3,800 3,13
Fortress Transperiation & Infrestructure investors LLC

L5000 due 10,01,/2025 612 07
General Motors Co.

6.125% due 10/01,/2025 (o) 5,000 5,692
Genstis Enargy LP

65000 due 10,/01,/2025 1,700 1,662
GLP Capital LP

52500 due 06,01/2025 2.500 2441
Gray Dak Pipaline LLC

2.600% due 10/15/2025 5400 5,000
Host Hotels & Resores LP

40005 due 06/15/2025 3,100 2977
Hyatt Hotals Corp,

5.375% due 04,/23/2025 4,000 3,550
Lasz Vegas Sands Corp.

25000 due 06/25/2025 6,400 6014
Midwes1 Connector Cagatal Co. LLC

39000 due 04,/01/2024 1975 1802
Newmark Group, Inc,

B.125% due 11/15/2023 2,000 1347
NI Holdings. Inc.,

7.375% due 06,/01,/2025 2,000 2,005
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Dmege Healthears Investors, Ine.
4.500% due 01/15/2025
Pucilic Ges & Elecirie Co.
34500 due 07,/01/2025
PRA Group, Ine.

7.375% due 09012025
Resan Greap, Ine.
BE255 due 03/15/2005
Gubre GLBL, Ine.
935056 due 04,15, 2005
Sentander Holdings USA, Inc.
A_50086 due 07/17/20025
Spirit AsreSystems, Inc,
T.50066 due 04,/15/2025
Starwood Property Trust, Inc,
550006 due 11,/01/2023

Synchreary Fimancial
4.5005% due 07,23/2025

TripAdvisor, Inc,

70005 due 07,/15/2025

United Airlines 2012-1 Class A Pass-Through Trest
41500 due 0411,/2004

Univision Commenications, Inc.
5.125% due 02/15/2005
WVIC] Proparties LP
46255 due 06/15/2025
Vigtra Oparations Co. LLC
3.5500 due 07/15/2024
'WEA Finance LLC

37500 due 09172024

Westinghousn Air Brake Technolagius Corp.
3.200% due 06/152025

‘Wynn Lss Viegas LLC

5.50006 due 03,/01/2025

IF North Amesica Capitad, Inc.
47500 due 0429/ 2025

T AU SRt
(BB IR $102.571)
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2020-10
2023 10 31
Pt e
& 3100 & 3,007
6,100 5,185
2,000 1872
4,000 3,064
b3 220
500 480
1,200 1,198
2,000 2,000
1,000 240
1,400 1,387
585 578
1,548 1513
2100 2019
4,000 3402
1,700 2606
300 2856
913 Bar
1,400 1,352

47,118

BEC Group, lne,
13,6133 due 10/01/2024 (a)

A.200 4,044

ewMR@dys

Bank of Meva Scotia
48300 due 11/01/2023

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
A4.830% due 11/01/2023

Citibark NA
483006 due 11/01/2003

DB5 Bl Ltd
483008 due 11/01/2023

JPMeegan Chase Bank N.A.
48300 due 11,/01/2023

Sumitome Miteul Basking Corp.
4 8300 due 13,/01/2023

Sumitoms Mitsul Trust Bask Lid,
A_B306% due 11,/01,2023

T i O 8 5
(R IRLAE 54,281}

o e

EOMORESLTAR, W8
R 100.0%

16 16
1 1
&7 67
57 57
122 122
7 7
155 155
&5

4,469

&z

1,532

$ 203,753
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PIMCO 2020-10

2023 10 31

R AT R R DR

* YomEn, FRERRCEREAShARRIEERL TS LS RE,
0} e=r, R TONED R,

WK E A WA 58S

RITHEW -l (AR (BARAE) DFNE A e ]
Genaral Matars Co. 6.125% 10y01/2025 10/19/2020 § 6091 5 5632 2.79%

LUFR, desfFioAnAlED, Py e FORES LTRAREERDIS TS S 7 o FIRIZE - TA SR S EERNE OIS Ch S,

20234107 21 A RIfE
BFLV—BIT - HFSY— Lerdgie LSl Lot ST
R ERES, ME
g2 b BYT
iy 5 il S 1167 £ 0 5 1187
MR =
i Q 3,359 [+] 3,358
-4
itk 1] 194 1] 23
e By
Fli i 0 5023 0 5,023
F =y
i o 1895 0 1,855
ol
| o 15,793 [ 15,793
FA Gk
HN o 13,580 o 13,690
fF0Tr
e o 9,623 o 9623
B
il o 4,313 o 41313
5 s
Pk 0 14,896 0 14,806
=
i 0 FEOD [} 1600
A A0 =
il o 23,381 [+ 22,381
WA R
g o 7,718 0 97,718
24 S T 5 0 4,469 0 4,459
1R AT IEREN O $ ] $ 202.221 $ ] § W23

ORI N ARTRMAY. <4 3 ~0 0 L0l B gt
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities wony Detaber 31, 2073

PIRILT) Barerids
LS High Yiekd
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PIRET Berud e
LS. Hgh Tiald
Furcd B 1 Ful NEX)- 6]

P gy

&3 0 L 1]
g E f
150 it} 1] [
1 I il
] 10,956 0 i i
e ] I} 1 kA
u -
reeios! and'sr dedench recenabie 1,050 ] ]
[ [ TREs] & 710

Liabilities

& ] 4 ] § & i] 3 i

a M
i 1] 1]

10481 @ 0 [i

Paryie - g - l E;
Py &0 [i il o q
| 0 a7 1]

At rued ke 0 z a i] 1
1 12 o !

0 [ 17 ] [\

] 1 B0 O 1]

Bezrusd dambutae fee [/ 1 I 3
] 11,11 ik 185 i

Na1 Assels L]

Lom of invostments k i S 11 § 3 31

Tne of Imvnstrands § | ] I [ L # L4 500

n £ 1 § i [i [ 1 1
ania! e rstive irniements, mel § 1158 4 1] 1] $ i) § ]

* indudes repuchase agroements of & [ [ i} [i

Nat Azsada: g & Al W 4 "

0 MA i 13,75

Usits laued and Dutrianding:

Kt Assat Walun and Redamption Price Per Unit Outstasding:

1478 ¥ Hik i %
Nk ¥V K W ¥
Frztnsed n borctienad comency| M Mk § 004 [ Mk

Rl Pt | Duswibel 31, 22

Lev snmmpany oy wilem
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Statements of Operations jcom, Yo Endad Detaber 31, 2073

PR A Ly L=
Bemun U5 Beruda 105 Corpans Erergng e AmcD
High il High Yisid Fodiurd Henteiges, Frrageg foret
Fand (¥ Fund B ) oo} Iecare fun o furd

¥ 3= & ] 5 B 1
i | #
41 4,08 0,234 T 7
' 2} MIA HA, MiA
Mik [ Mk K i
MIA i 39 A M
ad ]
[ I 247 i

Nat levestmant Income (Expassal [hAE- 4487 1814 A0 #

MNat Bealizad Gain (losst

- i 0% i i
] [ e Lo
R 1 751 i ]
5 [ : 1
oyt Poscreed i Lo 1] 1,713 = 11 I5;
Net Change in Unssalired Appraciation (Daprecistieal;
oM & fAdngg ] e 3 B&0 LS il
a 0 18 5580
T ——— TR 168 i ]
i 1 | 0
-] 1 | ix 0
T - =
il M i)
Nl Incinase (Decroas) im Kol Assatls Resulting Irom Dparations E; 17 458 3 4515 | V2281 48] -] B 55T
G D ] § 1§ &
T mremparyay mtn Bl Rapart | Oetelia: 31, 53
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Twwd Ended Detober 31, 2023

PIMCE Cee PN By
PRICT Bl PRET Berruds [ Berat e [T r—
LS High Vel LS. High Vield oo bond Hedel frooe Bord rgoe
Fure BN Fured B a1 Fumd NEA)- 5] Fared Furd
Incieaze [Decisase] in Not Asseis Irom:
Oparations;
Mt s gt 18 | & n
g
prcation |depeac 07 ol i) 553
Net g from opertes 88 il (L] B,5h
Distribwtions to Unithaldars:
Teotall Distribfioes M NI 1AM & BEY
Fand Unit Transactions:
Mat ecrease | Soormesn] newitng frem Fend une; sransactong” (KR v .34 M
Total Increass [Docreasal in Nat Aziais 14,438 ! kil 4 s

Nt Hepata:
Begrrng of ym

Ead ol md
P

* Sew e E7 o he Menta oo hreno Soewmen

T mremparymy mein
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Financial Highlights jcom.)

i Ende Delober 31, 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. DRGANIZATION

Each Furd discussed in this repart {each a "Fund” and collectvely, the "Funds™), which alst inclsdes each dass of units of that Furd {pach a "Class” and collectively,
the "Classes™), s a series trust of PRICO Bermuda Trust 1 {the "Tnust™), an open-ended unit tnost established under the laws of Bermuda as a muls-series rust

pursuant 1o a trust deed eeduted by Winchest

et Global Tredt Compamy Limited on Decembaer 1, 2003 (23 aminded Trom Sime 19 hime, She ™ Trust Dasd ™) Elfectve &

of the chose of business (Eastern trme) on September 79, 2017, Maghes Tomtee Senioes (Beemuda) Limiced (the " Trustee”) was apposmted a3 trustes of the Trust

Paafic Imsestment Management Company LLE ("FIMCO®, the " Manager™ o the "lmvestment Adwiser” ) is the sponser of and was responsible for stracburing the Trust

Thee Taurit 15 sadpect 16 requlanon and sopenvaagn as provided Tor in the Imeeiiment Funds Act J006 and redated rubes ielating 10 slandard funds

The veerms of the Trust Deed conder wpon the Trustee, with the cangent ol the Manager, 1 powes, inthe Tuture, to establek further Tunds in addition to the Funds

cusrently in opesation as of the date of ths report

Refesences 1o wnitholders [each, a “Unitholder™, and collectrely

the “Unithelders™ ) in, or umits (the " Lnits™) al Lor an imvestment i), the Fund shal mean Unitholdeds

of The Fund wha hold Units, ar Clates af Ures (as applicable), whech are sttabutable 1o tha Fund

The Funds peesented in this tapert ate lisbed belbow

AME] Berecdls Basi [ oue Fussd &

PIMED Bermens Bask Lo Furd B

AMC] Buirsedts Bask Lok Fusd

PAMIED Beormesdy bncome Feed [

PANC] Burants Dpmame Walt-Roret Svategy Fused
AMNC] Bevece | 2oy Coznan Dsove Fured

PIMED Ervsargrng Bood rc o Fuasd

AMCD Emirgeag Basd icoma husd N1

e omly 1o Pomsdhs vt 3 “Foond ol Fumde™ siruetore, it dlmad i o roles of the veseml Frosss Asseanion,
Jepen, o sy cther predeton

ANC] Hetreodly Ereg g Miiam Brad husd M)
PAMED Bermeds Giodal Agregata Ex-dapan Beed Fand (M1
ANCD Berracs Iatime Fursd (N
MDD Bormmeals 1) 5 Haghs Wil Fandl (M)
PIMCD Barrnsts U 5. Hagh Yool Fronsd 3 (W1
| PO Emagep ot resoe Fnt i _
PINCD Besriwdts Erserping Mactits Boad Fund |
FINDCE Berrmuaty Gisbal Rgsrgun Eiv-Japan Ve Hudgd) Basd
PIMED Barmeds Global Aggrogats Exapan Bosd Fand
PIMCD Barreucty Incoms Fund A*
AME] Burveodly Mormgage Qppeeriandons Faad"!
PYABCD Cose bncores Corporate Bond Fund 2020H10° =
FMCO S Hegh Yol [Yieer-Huped| ot
AMED LS Hagh Yield Ford 1l
PIMECD LS. High Yidd Steatagy Fond
AMCO LS Hegh Yadd Suwingy Fand
PHAACD Warkd High incame™"**

OFered oy 22 o Funds to seove a5 20 ordetyng erveriment weele fot ch Fend

Cered o Jagurome and G0 Pvecta

ANICD Emanging Basd (TenHedged] ingoeme Faad
PMCD Ervrgng Basd ircoree fusd

FIRICO 115 High Yiudd is-Huded Fred

PIAICD L S High Yield Fund

Cefered oty 53 Fursd ol Fuss rpe Jgpasese evermmal e separaed ender The LIV COROISG ISwrTment
Trost wnd lowmarmand Company ol Jagea M lspanins lavestrsent Trsts”) whch will ot theer Lisits 10 e polilc m
gt by vy o publie abarety o pinvion plicereng padl whe b e rasegied by PABCT i Lol o ot
aamaliyt Wereed sVELSTENE TUET MAARJETIR COmpans and tobtt 11 T roles of the bneetment Tnaks

n Ll L A
r n !
% vl (I i s by = i
s » n ¥ Erogpia

2 SIONIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The follewing i a summary of sigritcant accounting polioes conststently folowed by the Trust in the preparation of s fnanial statements in conlormity weth

acoountng principles generally accepled in the United $1ates of Amenica ("0 5 GAAF

ch Fund & treated s an imvesiment compary undes the repaiting

requizements of U 5. GAAP The preparation of finanaal statements in accordance with U 5. GAAP requres management o make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reporied amounts of assets and Rabilities and disdosure of contingent assets and liabilies at the date of the financal statements and the reported amounts

of mncreases and decreases in med asets from epeeations durng the reporting petiod Actual fesules could differ fram those estimates

2

Bl Raport | Octsber 1, 2007
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{a] Acomired Funds The Trustee and Manager may apply all or a portion of
the assets of (i) PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A, PINGCO Bermuda Bank
Laan Fund B and PRCD Bemmuda Eank Lo Fond ©: () PIMCD Wiodd M g'n
Inceene: i) FIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregase Ex-Fapan (fen-Hedged) Bond
Fund and PIMCO Bermuda Glabal Aggregate Ex-lapan Bond Fund; () PIMCD
Bermuda Income Fund A and AMCD Bermada Income Fund O () PIMCO

L5 High Yield [Yen-Hedged) Fund, PIMCO LY. High Yield Fund, FEMCO U
High fiehd Strategy Fund, and FSMCO LS. High Yield Strateqy Furd I1; {v)
PINECID) L1 5. Hiigh Yield (fen-Hedged) Fund il and FIMCOUULS. High Yiekd Fund
il i) PRACD E'-r-erqlng EMJI:'I'H"HMI!]E{' Incoene Fund, PIMCO Frr.ﬂqlm]
Bond Income Fund, PMCO Emerging Bond incoeme Furd 1, and PIMCO
Emengng Band Income Fund Il feach refemed to herein as a " Fund of Funds”
o 'h:\qu-'lng Furd”, which irmagsts in other Funds) 1o the nespecineg £red] ol
(i} PIMACO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (MY {il) PIMCO Bermeuda Emengang
Markets Bond Fund (M} {iii) MIMCO Bermisda Global Aggregate Ex-lapan
Bond Fund (M [} FIMCD Bermoda Income Fand (M) (v] FIMOD Bemuda
U5, High Yiedd Fund (M) {vi} FIMCO Bermisda U5 High Yield Fund 1 (b
[va) PIMCO Emerging Band Incame Fund (W) {refered ta hersin as an
“Acquined Fundis) | Any assets so applied will be held in such Aoquired
Fund{s) a if recerved directly. Whete assets ane 90 applied, the Acgured
Fund{s] wall recced the isswe of Uinits to the relevant Aoguring Fund at the
issume price per Unit of such Urits and wall repurchase such Linits at the
repuichase price pée Ure of such Units &t the bme of repurchase, Accondegly,
the ablity of the dequinmg Fund ta acheeve s imsestmen chosctive will
depend upon the ability wf the applicable Aoquired Fund 1o achieve its
imngsdment abjecte Thens can be nd assucance that ther imvesimaent ohyectied
of the Acquined Fund well be achieed

Ratios shown in the Finandial Highlights do ot include expenses of the
Acgered Fund(s). See Note 3, Fees and Expenses, for Surther infomation
regarding fund fees a5 applicabie

[h] Sacuritios Transactions and Invesimant lngama SECuntes Fansaons
are recorded as of the trade date for financial reporting purposes: Securities
purchased of sold on a wherrissued or delayed -delvery barsis may be

settied beyond a standard semlement period Bof the secunty after the trade
date Realized gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the
identified cost basis. Davidend income 5 recorded on the ex-dividend date,
encbpl certln dradends fram feseign secuntied whese the ex-deidend die
may have passed, which are recorded a5 soon as a Fund is infoemed of the
ex-dvidend date Interest income, adfusted for the acoeton of discounts and
amertization of premaurs, 15 eaconded on the socrual basis rom setthemant
date, with the exception of sacurities with a forward starting effectve date
where interest income is recorded on the acorual basis friom efledie date For
comvertible secuities, premiums stiributable 1o the comversion feature e not
amorted Estimanted ca liabilities om cemain fosesgn seourities ase recandied
on an acorual basis and are reflected as components of inferest income o net
chamge = unrealined appreciation [deprecation) on insesiments on

the Sratements of Operation:, as sppeopeiate. Tax lisbilties realized 2
resutt of such security sabes are reflected a5 a component of net reafized gain
{lo43] on imwvestments an the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and
lossas on modigage-related and other asset-backed secunties, i any, ane
reconded a5 components of ierest income an the Statements of Cperatons

Detbit obligations may be placed on non-acrual $tates and related inberest
income mary b eaduced By oeiang cuinerl Scciali and wiifing ol inseeest
recevable when the collection of all or a portion of ierest has become
doubthal based on consstently applied procedures. A debt cbligation is
remcrved hom non-accrual stabss when the issuer resumes intenest payments
or when collectability of inberest 15 prebable A debt obligation may be
granted, = cerain situabions, a contractual or non-contracheal frbeasance for
wnberest payments that ane expected to be pand after agreed wpon pay dates

fc} Carsh amd Forsign Coreaney The fmancial statements of each Fund aee
peresented using the cumenty of the primary economic esvircnment i which it
sperates [the “Functional cusrency”). The hanctional curiency foe each of the
Funds is listed in the below 13hle

The market values of foeeign secuities, currency holdings and other assets
and liabiities are translated into pach Fund's functional currency based on the
curient Exchange 1t vich Buriness day Ptk -and saed ol wecunted
and income and experse items denominabed in foreign oarencies, if amy, are
translated into each Fund's respectiye functional curmency at the exchange
tate i effiect on the transaction date. The Funds do nol separately repadt the
eflects of changes i foeeign exchange rates from changes in market prioes on
secunities held. Such changes are included in net realized and net changes in
unrealied gan of loss from imsestments on the Satements of Operatiord

The Fureds mary smasit in foreign oumency denominated secursties and iy
engage in fodeign cumency transactions either on a spot {cash) basis at the
rate privading in the currency exchange markes at the teme or through 2
orevaed Fareign cutrency contran. Realiped foeeign exchange g o losses
aising from sales of spot foreign ourencies, currendy gains o bosses reaized
betwen the trade and settlement dates on securities trardactions and the
diiflererce between the recorded amaunts of dradends, interest, and Toreign
withholding 1axes and the furctional currency equivalent of the amounts
athuathy recenved or paid are inchuded in net realzed gain o loss on loreign
cunengy transactions on the SMatements of Operators. Net unrealioed foresgn
exchange qains amnd bosses ariang from changes in foreign exchange rates on
{oresgn denominated assets and ligbilities other than imrestments in securities
held at the end of the neporting petiod &t inchpded in net change in
unizalzed apprecation o depreciation on forsgn cumency Esets and
liabilities. an the Satements of Operations

The Met Asset Value ["MAY" } and ttal returms of cerain Funds lor Classes
theneol as applcable) are presented in the currendy for which the MAV i3
eportad (the "MAY currency™) as detaled in each Fund's Ofering
Memerandum (the “Dffering Memasandum ). For the purposes of the
p:r‘.&ﬁ!almr.-:l this AN and the tatad return in th NAY cumency, the
begnning and ending NAVs ae comened using the peniod beginmmg and
erding emchange rates, respectieely, and distributions are converted using 1he
enchange rate at the ime of the distribution. See the foliowing table for the
MY currency of each respectee Fund

furd i g e— [:

PIKCD Berrruds Bank Leas Fund (L L5 doll IS dollar
NI Beerrusda Bank Lonn Fund A

»  FIGD U5 doft LS. dolka

= JuUm Jagnah e LS. dolka

. JIEN Japanese yen 115 dolar

. T Japanese yen LS dollar
L= viuso g e 5. doar
PINED Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

- FIALDY Ripmratan doly WS dollar

*  YIAUD Jaganed e U5 dolar

= ¥iBRU" Jagnab e LS. dolkar

. LR Japarese pen LIS dolar

YRR Japanese yen 15 dollar

YR Jaganecs yen US dofar
[PRCD Bermuda Bank Loas Fund C

o« VGBSO Japanap yan WS dollar
FIMCD Bormuda Dyrasini: Mult-Aazes Sirategy Fund

. JLm Japanese e U5 colar

= 5D U S doflr 15 dollar
PIMCD Bermuda Emerpng Marksts Bond Furd Ik U 5. doflar S dollar
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Furctional Functieal
FundiTheer: AN Dumency Curmmecy T NAY Curmercy Camener
PRI Blormuady Eemrgieg Markety osd Fund Il R Japenens e 115 dollar
L] sz LIPY) Jopmness yen B 5, ol ] J IR Japaness pen LS, dollai
® b LAY, Hedged Jeparese jen U5, dollar S L1111 JSapaness e U5 dollar
PEMLTY Berrroat okl Apgregane BB (Yies- i AMCD Ernerpng Bond lncama Fund I
Hiekgadh e e peum il B v JEUR S IS dar
PIMCT) Barmudy Sobal Aggregane Ex-Jepas Bord ; - i Japaness yn 15, dollar
ferd = S o i . RS Jagemese i 1§ dolar
PEMCTY Ermedta Ghohad Apgregens Ex-Joqss Beed PIMCD LS. Figh Vil [Yen Hedged] Fund Japanems e %, dollar
| it T NI 11 S fiagh Yo (fory imdged Fung agsrwssyen | U5 ol
PAMCT} Eermuds rcome Fared (M1 U5 dola W5 dolr PINED U5 Hagh osid Fund B ) U5 dola
PEMCTH Bermithy Incomis Fared A PIMCD LS High il Fund Il Japanecy v IS, dolar
= FUm Jngineze yen U, dolar PIMED U5 High oeld Stranegy Fund
= Filsgn 5 dollar U5 dolar o JUPY Japanese yen S, dolar
LI L Jogtee yn 5. doer v JLIPY, Hedged Japaresa 115, dolar
LA 11 ] Jopmnean yen U35 dollar = Jsa U5 dollw U5 dollar
= KD U5 dolar 15, dolar = YR Japirest e U5, dolla
= ML Advacryl Jagresn yen U5, dolar s Y LPY Hadeond] e e 115 dollar
= MILSD Adesory] U5 dolar U5 delar PIRICH LS Hagh Vsl Stranagy Fund 1l
= HiF Jepmares yin 5. dolar LI 1] Jaganes 1S dollar
L Jeparese yen U5, delar *  YiBRU Japanese yen 115, doar
LI W5 dolar 05 doller v Y NN Jaraness yen WS dodar
*  PLIFW Japmness yen U5 dolar L 51 1] Japeness e IS dodar
= DU Jupateds yen L5 dolor PN Word High lncoma UE dollor 115 dolar
& RLIPs) Jgmineae yen L3, dolar =7 heuchied z
" RGO 115, dollat U5, dollr L e
LI 1N Jygmrese yen US dolar
= SiEsn U5 dolar U5 delar {40 Multiclass Oparations Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
= ERjusDi Jagarese yen U5, deler righss to the assels of the Fund equal to that of other Classes af the same
L] T 137 JopfesE yEn B 5, doliar Fund a5 applicable, exoep [ g\-o:ll'u: et and faing v losses designated
LI Jopnese yen U5, dollar 1o & Class velating to curency hedging operations. Income, non-Class speific
L U5 dolar ER - expenses, and non-Class specific reakized and uniealized capstal gains and
= K Jigreds yn U5, dekar lemses are allocated to each Class of Units based on the relathe net assets of
. RIUSDE U5 dolai U35, delae each Class of the respectie Fund, as apphcable Class spedific expenses
£ TR Jopaness yen U3, dolor currently indude management, advisoty, administrative, agency and
¥ IR oM B il distrbuticn fees, where spplicablle
LI Jagmresn yen B dollar
ML Bermuda nome Fud 0 o} Ditribution Poliey The fallowing table shawrs the anbiopated frequency
= KN AN dasirplan dofar U3 dollor of depgnbutions Tor each Fund Destrbutions from each Fund iy e declarsd
Y (Worldl Jagmrese yen 05 dolar and distributed to Unitholders anby upon the authonzason of the Manager
PACT) Bermuda Low Doraton fncome Fund whach authonzation may be withheld a1 the Manager's disceetion
= Bl LS dollar 15, dollor
POV et Morge pperios Fnd | Dectuedand Pubomtly: |
" Inst UPY Hesdgee) Jepmness yen U 3 dolar PNCT] Berrraads Back Lsan Fusd A
o pomidin | e PAND BBk Lo i
. IED 15 ol 5. olar PIMED Bermeads Bank Laan Fund
FINICD Bormada U5 High Told Fored 1) US dotar US dolle PINKCD Berrraat Ireserat Fured A
UML) Bermusdha 15 High Yiold Furd 1 IM) Jogarese jen 115, dollar = FL)
PAMCT) Cors ircome Coxporats Bend Fnd 202040 = FIED
s IED 15 dolar 15 dollar *Ju
PIMCY) Emerggag Bond (Ve i bcoms Furd | Jamnese yen LS dolr = Jusm
ML) Emerging Bond Ircoms Fund Jagarese yen U5 dolar *  HNUP
P Emergeg Bond Income Fend (M) S dolr WS ol = Rilsm
PSMCT) Emrgang Bond Income Fued I L. MH LU=
s {AUD Jemnese yen 05, dollar LI ]
= JiBRU Jpmrese yen K5 dofar = S5 US00
& CA Japaness yon 5. doler *  XLPY
" JICMHI Jpanets yen WS, dolisr L K s0r
" J{A1 s fess yen 05 dolr L] ¥ 17
i JINR Jepmnem yen B S dollar . YIS0
PRCY) Bermaads Incomg Fund [
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Diplarad asal Pald Monibdy (Contl
PN Berruda Marmgage Oppeimustas el
- J !‘P"I
L} JIUSDI
Ll u=a
PAC Empr ey Bl (e Hudgod | irmoene Fond
FIMCD Ermerigng Bond inoame Fund
FIMED Emergng Bond facome Fund Il
PSR Emprgng Bond incoeng Fond B
PIRET U5 Haghi 'l'll-dIThFMPh‘J'Fu\d
FIMCD LS. Hagh Yisid Fusd
FIMED U5 Figh Yield Strategy Fund
FIMCD U5 High Yield Strasegy Fund Il
PINEO Warkd Hagh bt

PIC] Bermuda lncome Fund A

oo

= Ao

= &
P Barmda: hyrarmee W -Raset Strategy Ford
PSLICD Bt bncoma Fund A

= PLA

= R

The Mesager does nel expeet s deelae ditribuions with respeet te these
Fungs jor Clasger therend, i applicablel, but may, in ity diseretion, declare
s pay diilsibutieas 1o tha Unithelders al Eifmm.

FIMCD Beerrusds Bark Lisan Fund (M

PIMC] Bermuda Emangang Markety Bond Fard IMI

PSLC0) Beemauda Emerging Meskens Bond Fusd 1l

FINC Berrruds Global Aggragate Ex-Japan ¥ien-Hedged] Bosd Fusd

FIMED Berrru (lobal Aggregate Ex-Jaran Bord Fund

PN Bermad okl dgpragate v bagan Bard Fund (M)

FIREC Bermuds Iecoma Fund A&
" K N0
= M hdmory]
= MED Adenoryl
= TR
= 2
" WER
= 7P
PAMED Brrmeada Incoman Fusd M
FINCD Beereuds Low Dueaceen iecoma Fard
PILICD Berruds Meongage | ppartunses Fund
* st LIPY Hedgedi

PINDD Berrmusda U5, Figh Yield Fund (M

PINCD Berrnuda 115 Hagh Vel Fund 11 (M1
PIMED Core lacorrs Corporane Berd Fusd 2000:10
FINCD Erergeng Bord income Fund {5

PIMCE U5 High Yild [Yir Hecdged Fusd I
PIRCD U5 Hagh Yisld Fund I

Distrbtions, i any, will genesally be made from the relevant Fund's {or
Cha's, |I'app|-:..|{1||,': nat imnstment Same. b additon, thee Managt may
authet ze the payment of net realzed captal gaing svailable for disrbution
Additional dstributions may be declared a5 the Manager deems appropriate:
Distrbuticns paid with sespect to amy Fund {or Class sherecd, if apphcable)
will reduce the NAY of such Furd {oe Class thersof, o applicabde) At the
descretion of the Unithobders, cash distributions from a Fund {or Class theneaf,
i applicable) may eithir be rervested i addibional Units of & Fund {oe Class
thereal, if spplicable) oo paid to & Ueathelder i cash Cash payments wall be
pand in the NAY currancy of the Fund. Each Fund (or Class: theneod, if
apphicable) may declare further distrbutions if considered necessary in peder
16 martain 3 reasonable level of distribusans boar 3 Fosd o Class thensod if
applicable]. In the event that there i inadequate net income and ret realized
capital gains to pay a distnbuticn of a Fund (o2 Class thereof, if applicable)
equined by the Offering Memcsandism, the Manager may pay & deirbution
consssting of @ portion of the capial of sudh Fund [oe Class thensod, i
applicable). Distributions nat collected within 5ix years from their due date
will lapse and wall aocrue 16 the beneht of the relevant Fund {oe Class thersc!,
f applicable)

i) bssin and Reperchase of Usits Subsequent 1o a Fund {or Class thereef, (f
applicable} commendng business, Units of each Fund (or Class thereod, if
apphcable) may be ishaed by the Manager an a contirudus basis at the Net
Bzt Value per Unit of that Fued {or Class thetsof, o applicabie) at the time
of such isswe, subject to the right of the Manager o its appeented agen, in
the sole discrefion of the Manager, to tempaoraniy suspend such issue. Unless
stated othenwrse in the nelevant Ofenng Memao andum, for each Fund [or
Class thereof, if applicabla), the issse price per LUnit fos such Uinits wall be the
Het Asset Value per Unit deteiminied on each Desling Day calculated a5 se
{orth beloaw under * Determanation of Meg Asast Valoe: prownded shag i a
request 1o purchase Urits in & form acceptable to BEH is mat recesed by BEH
prior to 12:00 noon [Eastern time), the issue prce per Uinit of the relevant
Fund {oe any Clans thereol, d applicable) shall be the Net Asset Value per Unit
determared on the next Dealing Day In the case of repurchase of Urnits or
termiration of the Funds in the Trust which are registered in lapan for drect
destribytion in fapan, the Units of such Funds shall be repurchised from
Unithobders. in cash Mo epunchase in kind may be allowed in such Funds
Earept as othernise peraded in the relevand Oifenng Memosandum, payment
af the nepischae price wll be made by the Trustee or s appointed agent by
Bunk Teansfer genéraly wathin fwo 1) Business Days afver the Diabeg Dy
upon which the eepurchase notice is recetved, or deemed to have been
recedved, by BBH, althcugh under certain circumstances, payment may take
o b esght (B) Business Days after such Desling Day. Unlews stated cthenase
o the pebevant Offenng Memorandum, the Funds are not subjedt 1o
subrscrption or repurchase lees; prowided, however, a distribuior appointed in
the jursdiction wheie & Fund i distributed may change subscription oe
tepurchase fees i such amounts a5 agreed with the Manager and the
Trustee

i) Mewe Accounting Pronouncements and Regulatory Updstes In March

2000, the Fingnial Accounting Standaeds Board {FASE” Lissued an
Aercenting Standards Update ("ASUTY, ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Redorm
(Tapic B48). which provides optional quadance to ease the patential
accounling burden assooiated with transibicring away feom the London
rrterbank Ofered Rate (" UB0R"Y and cther reference rates that are expected
1 b discontinued. ASU 2000-04 is effectve for certain reference rate-refated
contract modiicatons that eoosred duning the peeiod Manch 12, 2020
through Decemiber 31, 2034 In lanisaey N and December 2022, FAAR
wsued ASU 202001 and ASU 202206, whach indudes additenal

amendments to Topic 248 Management is contisuously evaluating the

* The Clnes wears byt dring the eeporting penied :
patenfial ety a decontruanon of USO8 could have an the Funds

=* iy destribretions. with respect tg Class U2 LIFY Lsts of the Fuad wall be declared
accordance with 3 kester agresment Setwpen the Manager and the investor in such Cls
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imvestments and has determined that it is unlikely the ASU's adoption will
hiree & material mspact an the Fundy’ Tinancial satements

In June 2022, the FASB wsued ASU J022-03, Fair Value Measurement {Topa:
B30}, which aflects 3k entities that have investmens in equity secunties
megsured at Tar value than ane Subiect 10 4 Conractonl Lile testncion The
amendmends in A 202203 carify that a contractual restnction ca the sale
of an equity seouity is not corsiderad part of the unit of accownt of the equity
securily and, shemelaie, it nat contdersd m maasaring the Fair value The
amendrents a0 fequire sdditondl declosuces fod equity seounies subject 10
ronfractual sale restrictions that are measured at fair value in accordance
wath Tepic 820 The eflectve date for the amendments in A5 2022403 5 for
Tscal years beginning after Decembier 15, 2024 and intetim peciods withen
theose fiscal years. Management has implemented changes in conrechion with
the rule and has determined that there was no matenal impact o the Funds'
findercial stasemints

3, INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

[a] Invastment Valuation Policies The MOV af 3 Fusd, or each al ns Clasgey,
as appicable, 5 deterrnined by dividing the rotal value of ponfolio
imeestments and other assets attributable to that Fund or Class, less any
liakidities, by the totad rumber of Units cutstanding of that Fund or Class

O each Fund's Deabrg Day (a5 described in the coment Offering
Memorandum of the Trust), Fund Units are oedinanly walued as of the dose of
requiar trading on the New Yosk Stock Exchange (" NYSE Close™ ) information
that becomes kinown 16 the Funds or thes agects after the tme a5 of which
NAN has been calodated on a partcular day will not generally be wsed 1o
retraactvely adiust the peioe of a secusity or the KAY determimed earlier that
day ] régulai trad g O thi NYSE clodes eachis than whedulied, each Fund
may calculabe s NAY a: of the earher dosing time or calodate s MAV 2 of
the normaly scheduled close of reqular trading on the NYSE for that day
Each Furd generally does not caloulate its HAV on days duning which the
NYSE & closed However, f the NYSE i dosed on a day it woeuld nomally be
open for business, each Fund may caloulate its NAY as of the nomally
sehidubid NYSE Clone Tor such diry of such ather time that each Fund may
determine

For purpeses of calodating AV, portlolio seounties and other assets for
which market quotations e readily available are valued at market value A
marke] quotancen is readily available only when that quetaben is a quoted
price {unadjusted) in active markets for identical imeestments that the Fund
£an atess at the measurement date, provided that a guotation will not be
reacddy available it = not reliable WMarket value 15 aeneraly defermiid on
the basis of affcial closing peices of the last reported sabes prices The Funds
wall normally wse pricing data Tor domestic equsty secunties received shortly
after the NYSE Close and do not normally talie into socount trading,
dearances o setflements that take place after the NYSE Close Irvestments
Ter which market quatations are not readly avalable are valued at fair value
a5 detemined in good {mth by the Managix of persons acting a1 thes
direction As a general pringpde, the far vafue of a secunty o ofher et is
the price that would be receked tosell an asset or paid to ransder a hability
in an crderly transaction beteesn mardet participanis at the measutement
date. The Manager ks sdopted methods fior vatluing secunited and osher
assats in orumstances whese markel quates are not readily available, and
has the responsibility for apphsng the {air valuation methods. The Manager
iy value: Fund pomiolie securites Tor which markel quatations & nof
readily available and cther Fund assets utilizing srputs from pricing senvces,
quetation reporting systems, valuation agents and cther third party scamnes
{rogether, “Pricing Sauroes™) A Toeeign (non-U5 ) equety secunty traded on 2
feeeign emchange of on more than onie exchange 15 typically valued using

priting infeemation from the exchange considersd by FIMCD ta be the
pritnany exchandgs H markeq value picing e used, & ||;\n:1-r|':nm-l.l 5] equity
secunty will be valsed 2 of the dose of wadng on the foreign exchange, o
the NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close ocours before the end of tradng on the
foresgn enchange

Domestc and fareign (non-U 5 ) Thead income seoutities, non-exchange aded
desieatives, and equity cplions ae nommally valiued on the basis of quotes
it from brokers and dualers o Pracing sources wang such data
ellecteng the principal madkets o those seounnes. Prices abitaned from
Pricing Sources may be based on, amony ather things, information peavided
by market makers or estimases of market values cbtained from yield data
eelating 1o mrvarstments of secuntes with smilar charactermtics Cotainy fooed
imcome secufitees punchased on a delayed-delrery basis ane marked 1o market
daily untd settiement at the forward settlement date. Exchange-tradid
ophorrs, Excepl equly oplions, futures and optians on futures ane valued ac
the segtlement price detemmined by the relevant exchange Swap agreements
anevaued on the basis of bid quotes abtained from brobers and dealers or
maket-based prices supplied by Pricng Sources. With nepect to any portion
ol & Fund's asets than S ivedted in one of made open-end management
irnvestment companies (other than exchange-traded funds ("ETFs™)), the
Furnd's RAW will be caloulated based on the NAYS of such imvestments, Open
efd Mandgement | maestment companiel may mclude afid ated funds

H-a foreign (non-L) 5.3 equity secunty’s value has matenially changed alter the
close of the secunty's primary exchange of principal market bt beflone the
NYSE Close, the security may be walued a1 Rar valee bused on procedunes
established and approved by the Manager Foreign (pon-U15 ) equity
sequnities that do not trade when the NYSE & open are also waled 2 far
valug, With respect o fansign (non-U 5. ) equity secunties, a Fund may
detsimene (he G value of imvesiments based on inbarmation peovded by
Fricing Sources, whith may recommeend {air value or adjustments with
eeference toather securities, indees o asets. In conpidering whether fair
valuation i reguited and in detereninng Fae valoes, the Manages may, among
wither thirgs, consider sgnificant events (which may be corsidered to indude
changes in the value of U S seurities or securities. indexes) that ocour after
the diose al the relevant market and belose the NYSE Close. A Furd may
utilize modeling 1ools provided by thind-party vendors to determine fair values
of fareign (non-L 5.) soturities. For these purpases, unless atfserwise
determaned by the Manager, any movement in the applicable refenence index
of imstrument " zero trigger” ) between the earlier dose of the applicable
foresgn market and the WYSE Close may be deemed to be a significant event,
perormprting the application of the prang model (effectiely resulting in dasly
faur valuations). Forengn exchanges may permat mading in Toreagn {ron-U 5 )
exuity securities on days when the Trust is ot open fer business, which may
seside an a Fund's porthabe mrvestrmints iy alfected when Unitholdes ane
unabbe 1o by of sell Usss

Senios secured Poating rabe boans for which an adive secondary markef ests
102 relisble degree will be valued 1 the mean of the last available badlask
pices i the matket for such loans, as provided by a Priceng Sounce. Seniar
secured Tloating rate foans for which an active secondary market does not
exist 10 @ refiakie dogree will b valued ot Fair value, which is intended to
spproimate matket value. Invaluing & senan secured Tlaating rate loan at
faervalue, the Taciors considered may include, but e not limited to, the
{ollwang: (3] the creditwaithiness of the bonower and amy mtermediate
pamicpants, [b) the tenms of the lgan, {£) nedent prices 1 the marker for
samilat loans, if amy, and (d} recent prices n the market for instruments of
semilar quiality, rale, peviod wntil nexd interest sabe reset and matutity

Tereiitrnenls valued im curtenoed athier than the funonal Cuitdngy ol a
Furd ane comeerted 1o the functonal currendy wiing exchange rates chiained
from Pricing Sources. As a result, the value of such investments, and in tum,
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the WAV af the Fund's Units may be atfected by changes in the value of
onencas in relaton o the funclional cutrgry. Thi vialue of EvesEments
traded in foreiga markets or denominated in camencies ather than

the functional currency may be affected significantly on a day that the Trust is
net open for business. As a resull, 1o the extent that a Fund halds foreign
[Poer-L0 % ) irveestrmenas, the value of those mesiments may charmge at fimes
when you cannot purchase, redeem or exchange Units and the walue of such
imeestments wall be ceflected in the Fund's nest caloulated WAy

Fant viiamion erny nédguale SubpbcTneg defpimranations atout the vadve of a
sanurty. While the Trusts pofices and proedures are intendad fo resuft in a
ralculation of a Fund's MAW that fairky reflects secynity values a5 of the ime of
pracing, the Trmd connol endune That Tair vidlues detemined Ery thi Pr".ﬂu:}l'i
of Ppersons acting at ther direction weuld accurabely reflet the prace that a
Fund could cbiain for a secunty if it were o dispose of that security as of the
tirme ol pracing {for snstance, in & Sorced or disioessed o) Thir priicis usid

by & Fund may differ Trom the walue that would be reslized o the secunties
were sold

[b] Falr Vadue Hsraschy L 5 GAAP degonbes fain value a5 the proe thay

a Fund weuld recehee 1o S6fl a0 2556t of pay 1o transfer a habibty in an ordesly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It
estabhshes a fair walue heeraechy that priorfizes inputs to valuation methods
and roquires disclosure of the L valoe hierarchy, separately Tor sach magot
careqory of aosets and lisbilgies, that segregates Tair value meadwements inio
lewels (Lewel 1, 2, or 3} The inputs o methodclogy uwsed for waluing securities
are not necessarily an indication of the risks associated with imvesting in those
securibes Levels 1, 3, and 3 of che Tair value heeranchy are defined as fobows

» Lol 1—Ouated peices unadjusted) n active markets o euhanges for
Hentical assets and liabikties

= Leveld 2—Sigmificant cther clservable inputs, which may indude, but are
not limited to, quoted prices dor similar assets or abilities in markets that are
acne, guated pul;r“'.il;r sderihica o similar Ekets or labilibes in markets that
are pol active, nputs oshes than guated prices that are obsenvable for the
assets or habdites (such as interest rates, yield ourves, volatilities, prepayment
speeds, boss severities, credit risks and default ratesh o other market
comobasatied inputs

= Level 3—Signilicant unckrervable imputs based on the best infarmation
avaslable in the orcumatances, 10 The sxent absenvable inputs ane not
avalable, which may include assumptions made by the Manager ar persons
acting at their direction that are ysed in determining the fair value of
imesIments

Assets or kabdities cateqgonzed as Level 2 or 3 a5 of peniod end have been
transfermed between Level 7 and 3 ance the prior peniod due to changes n
thee ivisthased aithred i valinneg the imvesTments Traerfars from Level 2 1o Lewel
3 are a resubt of a change, in the normal cowrse of business, from the use of
methads wsed by Pricing Sources (Level 2) 1o the wse of a Broker Quote o
walusnon technique whedh utlines significast unokrenable mputs dus to an
absence of cument or refiable market-based data (Leval 3)

Trarsders fram Level 3 to Leved 2 are 2 tesilt of the avaslabality of current and
rehatibe marked-baked data providied by Pricing Sources of ofher valuabon
techniques which ubilize sgreficant ohsanable inputs

In acoordance wath the requirements o U5, GAAP, the amounts of translers
i and out of Level 3, @ material, ane dsclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Imvestments for each respective Fund

For fai valuations using ssynificant unchservable inputs, U5 GAAP requires
1o disclose ranslen nto and out of Level 3 of the Lai valos et archy and
purchases and sas of Level 3 et and habdites dunng the peviod

Additionally, LS. GAAP requires quantitative information regarding the
sagnificant uncbservable mputs used in the determinaton of Tair value of
atsets of liabilines conegorded 2 Level 3 in the Ear valos hecarchy. In
acmedance with the requirements of U5, GAAP, a lair value hieranchy, and i
matenal, details of significan unobsenvable inputs, kave been incuded in the
Mates 1o Schedule of Envestments for each respectie Fund

{e| Yaluation Technigues and tha Fair Yalus Hisranchy

Lawel 1, Level 2 and Lovel 3 trading assats and tradiag liabilises, st

falr vabee The valuation methads (e “techeigues™) and significant inputs
usid in detesminineg The fair valoes ol portiolio seountes of other aesets and
habilibes categerized as Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the far value beerarchy
are as fpllows

Common siocks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and financal dervatres
wEiruments, ech g Sutuies conteact, mghts and warants, of opdishs on
futures that are traded on a national securities exchange, are stated at the
last reported sale or settiement price on the day of valuation. To the extent
these sacuntes ane acinely taded and valuation sdjusirments ase not applied.
they are categonzed as Level 1-of the fai value hierarcy

Irreesiments in negistered open-end smaestment companees (other than ETFs)
will bt wirlued based woan the NAYS of such imeeiments and e caneqaihed
&5 Leved 1 of the fair value hierardhy. Imestments in unregistened open-gnd
ivestment companies will be Glculated based upon the RAYS of such
estments and are consadened Livel 1 providied that the NAVS ane
absenable, caoulated daily and are the vaboe at which both purchases and
sates will be conducted

Frogdl infome secunities mcluding corpoiate, convertible and municipal bonds
and notes, U S government agencies, U 5. peasury obbgations, sovetesgn
isues, bank boans, coneertible prefemed securities, non-U 5 bonds, and
short-term debt sstruments {such 3 commergal paper, bme deposits, and
certificates of depasit) are noemally valued on the bass of quotes dbtzned
fram brokers and dealers or Pricing Sowces that use broker-dealer quetations,
reported trades or valuation estmates from their intemsal priong models. The
Pricing Sources” inpérnal modey use mputs that Jee obsendable wipch o ssue
detaily, inserest rabes, yeld ourves, prepayment speeds, credit isks'spreads,
dedault rates and quated prices lor semalar assets. Securities that wse similar
valuation techniques and inputs as described above ane Categoniped a5 Leved
2 of the fau value hietarchy

Fiwed income securities purchased on & delayed-delivery basis oras a
ripurchaed commitment m . sale-buyback tracvacton ane matked to market
daily untd settement af the farward sentlement date and 2t categonzed as
Level 7 of the Fair walue hierardhy

Mertgage-relaied and awset-baced secunbes are usualy rsued 36 separate
tranched, of clisses, of securities withn each deal Thede secuntes ae o
nomeally valuad by Precing Scueces that use broker-dealer quotations,
reported trades or valuation estimates from their intemal pricing models. The
plicing models for chese seouites iy consider tranche-leved sinbutes,
curtent market data, estimated cash flows and market-based yield speeads fior
each tranche, and incorporate deal collateral periemance, as available
Mortgage-related and anset-backed Secunites that e smilar waluation
techmiques and inputs a5 desorbed above are categorzed as Level ¥ of the
fair value hierarchy

Iereessments valped (denaminated) in currenaes cthir than the funceanal
currendy of & Fund ane comverted 1o the funcissnal curmency uing exhange
rates {oumenty spot and forward rates) cbiained from Priang Sources As a
result, the WAV of & Fund's Uniss may be affected by changes in the valioe of
curiencas in felation 1o the funconad currency. The value of secunties traded
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in Foreign markets or denominated in curencies other than the functional
currency mdy be affected signilicantly on a diey that the Trust i not open Jor
business Waluation adpsstments may be applied to certain securities that are
solely traded on a bareign exthange 1o acoount for the marke? movement
between the dese of the foreign markes and the NYSE Close. These secweities
are valued usirg Priceng Sources that consider the corelation of the trading
patiems of the foreign secunty to the intraday trading in the U 5. markets for
imaesiments. Securitios wng these valwten adjustments aie cateqerized a5
Lewel 2 of thee Tar value hierarchy Preferred secuntes and other equities
traded on inactive markets of vafed by relerence i smaar instrumsents are
alse categorized a5 Level 7 of the Fair value hierardhy

Eoquiry-krked secunties are valued by telerencing the last repaned sale oo
settlement price of the krked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchange adpustments are applied to the last reported proe to
cornoen thi kriked equety™s rading curency 1o The conteact's seitling cuitenty
These imestments are categedized a Level 1 of the far value herarchy

Valuation adprsiments may be applied %0 certain exchange traded fulures and
ophions to adount Tor markel mavement between the exchange setthement
and the NYSE dose These secunties are valued wsing quotes obtained from a
quotation reporting sysiem, established market makers or Priong Sources
Franaal demeatnees using therse valaation adusiménts e |;.1:{V_pw|;‘|{ F ]
Lesed 2 o thee fier value hiedarchy

Equity exchange-traded cptions and ower the counter finandal derrvative
instruments, such a5 Tooward Joreign curtency contracts and options contracts,
derive their walue from undedying asset proes, indexes, reference rates, and
other inpats or a combination of these factors. These contracts ate narmally
walsed on the basis of quotes chiained fram a quetation reporting system,
estabbibid market makers o Pricing Soutoes (normally detesmined as af the
WYSE Chose). Depending on the product and the tems of the transaction,
finandial dertvative instruments can be valued by Pridng Seurces wsing a
serios of techniques, :r-:_I.J:Imq samalatlion piting madels. The pricing medets
s inputs that are obtenved Trom actreely quated markers such 8 quated
prices, isswer details, indexes, bidfask speeads, interest rates, implied
wolatibties, yield curves, dnadends and exchange rates. Financial dervative
instrumends that use similar valuation techagues and mputs a5 desoribed
abowe are categorized as Level I of the fair value Feerandhy

Centrally cleared swaps and cver the counter swaps detve their value from
underkying diset prices, inderes, reference rates, and other mouts o &
combination of these factoes. They e valued wsing a broker-dealer bid
quodation of on market-based prices provided by Pricing Sownces {normally
depeeminid a3 of the NYSE Close). Centeally deaned swagr and over the
coifter swags can be valued by Priong Soutces using a seties of techniques,
inclading simulation priceng models. The priang models may use inpats that
are obseneed from actneety quobed markets such.as the awernight index, fep
rane [TO8"), UBOR Toraard rate, srenet rates, veld cunves and credt
spreads. These sequntses are categonized s Level 2 ol the fair value hieraechy

‘When a fairvatuation methed & applied by the Manager that wies sgnificant
uncbesenable mputs, imvestments will b prced by a method tha

the banages or persons acting at theer direction beleve reflects far value and
ane categerized a5 Livvel 3 of the fair value haerarchy

Preoy piceng procedures set the base price of a baed incame security and
subsequently adjust the price proportionally to market value changes of a pre-
determined security deemed to be comparakde in duration, generally all 5
Tredgisy of sovermgn nobe based an country of lbuance, Thee base price may
be a beoker-dealer qoote, iransaction price, or an internal value a5 derved by
analysis of market data. The base price of the security may be reset on a
penods: basis based on the avadability of market data a0d proceduns
approved by the Manager Significant changes in the unobservable inputs ol

the prowy prcing process (the base price) would nmsult i direct and
propartianal changes in the Tar value of the secunity. These securites ane
categoeized a3 Level 3 of the far value hosranchy

The Opticn Pricing model may be utikzed if an income or market appeoach is
uneliable, o if the enterprise value is net sufficent 1o cover oustanding debs
and prefemed claims in the capstal suchre Option models can ko be
"hack-sabed’ if there are recent indicative transactions for securities within
the same nsver. For instance, the Bladk-Schobes model is a specific ype of
generally acoepted opton model, typacally sed b valee call eption, puts,
warrants, and corverntible prefermed securities. Significant changes i the
unpbservable inputs would result in direct and proportional changes in the
e value of the secunity These secuntses ae categored as Level 3 of the lair
value hieraschy

H third-party evaluated vendoe pricing is not available or not deemed 1o be
riccatror af fae varlue, the Manages may ¢hect to oblain Broker

Quedes directly from the becker-dealer or passed-through Brakes Quate from
a third-party vendor. In the event that fair valoe is based upon a single
sourced Broker Quose, these secunties ane categerized a5 Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy Broker Quotes are bypicaily eceved Trom establshed markey
partiopants, Although independently recenved, the Manager does not have
the grandpanendy 1o i the underbys g Inputs which support the market
quetation Sigreficant chamges in the Brober Quote would have direct and
peoportanal changes in the Tair value of the security

Befererce instiument valuation estimates Tair value by utilizing the corelation
of the HECUTiDY 0 0Nl OF Mohe Biroad-baried secunties, markel inden, andiar
oithear financial irstruments, whase peiong information i readily available
Unohsenrable inputs may inchude those used in algorithen Tormufas based on
percertage changi in the reference inssuments andlor wesghts of each
relerence wtrument. Significant changes in the unobsenable snputs would
result in direct and proportional changes in the fair value of the secunizy
These securities are categorized as Livel 3 of the fair vadue hisrandy

The Discounted Cash Flow model is based on future cash Aows generated by
thi investmendt and may be nomalized based on expedied imvestment
performance. Future cash flows are discounted 8o present value using an
Fppropdiate tate of retumn, ypically cabbrabed 1o the insal trarsacson dace
and adjusted based on Capital Asset Pricing Model and/or other market-
based inputs. Sigrifant changes in the waotservable inputs weuld result in
detet and proporteonal chandges en the Tairvalue of the security. Thess
secunities are categorzed 35 Level 3 of the fair value erardy

Secwities that are smaler in size than institulional-sized or round ot
posibiorn of the partcular secutitgfinstrument type may apply an adjustment
{actor 1o the daily vendor-provided price for the conesponding round lot
position 1o amwve at a fair value for the applicable odd lot positions The
sdustment Factor is detpmined bry companng the prices ol internal wades
with vendor prices, calodating the wegbled serage dBeences, and wsing
that diffesence as an adjustment factor o vendor prices. These securnbies ane
categeized as Livel 3 of the far valipe higrarchy

The Comparable Companies mode ks based on appheation of valuation
multiples. from publicly traded comparable companies to the finandals of the
subject company. Adusiments may be made to the market-derred valuation
multiples based on diHerences between the compatable corganies and the
subject company. Sigrafcant chamges in the unobseriable inpuns vwould tesult
in direct and proparional changes in the fair value of the securty These
securslies are cateqeriied as Level 3 of the Rar value Reraichy,

The Ceerparable Transacnons moded & based on application of valuaman
miultiples. from obsenable transactions compaeable to the secunity or
comparry Adjustments may be made (9 the mpled compatable trandscion
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multiptes based upon diffesences between the cherved transactions and the
subet Cosmpany F dcunty Sﬂjr.-"x.lul. changes i the unodrnenably inpuls
warild result in direct and propartional changes in the {air value of the
socurity These secusities ane cabegornized s Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Shon-tern debmstruments (Such 3 commernal e, ek dispasity, and
certificates of deposit) having a remaining matunty of 60 days of less may be
walued a1 amortized cost, so long as the amontized cost value of such short-
berm insthomienls B approomasely the same as thee {air value of the iritrument
a4 determined without the wse of amomzed cost valuanon These sequrities
are catagorized as Level 2 or Level 3 of the Lar value heerardy depending on
the source of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

|a] Delwyed Delivary Transactions Cortan Funds may purchase oo sell
sequitiog on o delaged-delaasrny Busis Thesie tanmactons imale 3
cormmitment by & Fund 1o purchase oe sell securities for a predetemined price
o yekd, waith paymens and delvery taking place beyond the customasy
setiement petiod When delayped-delecery transactions are outstanding

a Fund will designate or recerse a5 collateral agusd assets i an amount
sufficient 1o meet the purchase price or respective obiligations. 'When
purchiing a secuiity on & deleved-delnery banid, 3 Fund ssumes the nghts
and risks of ewniershop of the secusity, inchuding the nak of prce snd yield
Muciuatons, and takes such fuctuations into accoant when determining its
NAY. A Fund may dispose of or renegotiate a delayed-delivery transaction
after it s entered into, which may result in a realced gain o loss. When

& Fund hars sold 3 securty on & delaped-delareny basis, the Fund doess not
participate in Tuture gams and losses with respect to the securiy

[t} Inflation-Indexad Bonds Ceman Funds may imeest in inflation-mdesed
bonds. Inflation-indexed bonds are fwed income secuntes whase principal
walie is peviodically adjusted by the rate of inflation. The imterest rate cn
thveeses s o generally foed &1 issuance a1 a rane lowses than typical bonds
Owver the life of an inflaton-indexed bond, however, interest will be pasd
based on a principal value, which is adpsted for inflation. Amy increase o
decredie m the principal amound of an inflatan-irdeted bond v be wrduded
a5 ingevest income on the Saatements of Operaticen, even thewgh imestons do
nod recerve their principal untl matunty. Repayment of the onginat bond
prncpal upen mabuity (35 adpusted Sor inflation] 15 guatanteed in the case of
LS. TIPS For bonds that da not provide & smidar guacantes, the adjusted
principal value of the bond repaid at maturity may be less than the onginal
prvcpal

Ie} Lean Participations, Assignments and Oviginations Cotan funds may
imvest in divect debt instruments which are interests in amounts owed
lenders or lending syrdicates by coiporate, governmental, or other boerowers
A Fund’ s smaesiments in loans may be in the foem of partiapations in hoans or
assignments ol all or a pordon of loas fram thind parmses of iIevestments in of
onginations of leans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by a bank or
other Enangial instfution (the “lender” | that acts as agent Toe all holders. The
agent adminibeds the teems of the laan, x -.p-t'clrux.l ifn thir lgan agreement A
Fund may imes? in multiple senes or tranches of a haan, which may have
warying terms and cary different assooiated risks. When a Fund purchases
assignanents froe denders it acgures dinect rights against the borowess of the
lpans. Thete baans may include partopations & bridge laans, which ae lsang
taken out by bomawers for a short period {typically bess than ane year)
pending arangement al mane pn:f-.unmu:_‘m.]r.ur-] Ihw-ﬁ Ter moample, the
rsuande of bands, Trequestly Bugh yield bonds isued for 1he purpese of
BoquEstions,

The types of koans and related ivestments i which the Funds may invest
inclsde, among athers, senbor loans, subardinated baans (ncuding sscand

fen loars, B-Mates and mezzanine kaansy, whaole koans, commerncial real
eftate and other commaencial ioans and structuned daans. A Fund miry
afiginase loans or acquie direct irdedests in loans theoush primany laam
destrbuticns andor in private transactions In the case of subordinated loans,
thene may be sgnificant indebibedness rankng ahead of the Borower's
chibgation 10 the helder of such a laan, indudng in the event of the
baorowe:'s insohvency, Mezzanine kaans are typecally seceed by a pledge of
an equity inberest in the mortgage berrgmer 151 ovwne the real estate rathes
than an mbenest in 3 mongage

rrvestments in loans may indude unfunded loan commitmeents, which are
consractual cbigations for funding. Unfunded loan commitments may indude
esabving credit Tacilites, which may obbgate a Fund 10 supply addiional cash
1o the borrcwer on demand. Unfunded hoan comeitments represent a future
ohligation in full, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
nat b ublized t'f thie boreosne When imaesTing in o baan particpation, &
Fund has the raght 16 receie payments of peinapal, imaerest and arny fees 1o
whach it & entitied anly from the lender seffing the loan agreement and orly
upon receipt af payments by the lender from the boirower A Fund may
tecehve a commiament fee based on the wndrawn portion of the underhing
ire of coedit portion of a loan [ cerain oroumstances, 3 Fund may receive a
perralty dee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bociower Feet eaemed o
pand are recorded a4 & component of interesL income of Interest Expene,
respecively, on the Statements of Operatioes Unfunded loan comemtments
are reflected a6 @ liabadity on the Statements of Assets and Liabdites

{4 Mortgage Relaied and Other Asset-Backed Securitios Deitan funds may
eroest i morigage-refated and other asset-backed secunties that drectly or
inderectly repeesent a panicpation in, or are secured by and payable from,
iares o roal propesty. Morigage-related securitios. are reated from poals of
reqdentd of commenaal mongage loand, induding morgede loans made by
sanngs and loan iestinations, morigage bankers, commercial banks and
odhers. These securities provide a monthly payment which consists of both
riterest and principal Interes! mary be determined by fooed or adjustable rates.
The rate of prepayments oo underying mortgages wil affect the price and
volablity of a morigage-related senuily, and may have the efied of
sharening of extending the effecinee duration of the securtly relatneg 1o what
wik antepated ag the time of purchase. The timely payment of prncipal and
interest of certain mortgage-related seowites i quarasieed with the full Taith
and credit of the U5, Govemment. Pools created and quaranteed by non-
governmental ssuers, including government-sponsered corporations, may be
suppoeted by vanicus Toems of insurance of guarantess, but there can be ro
assurance that private insurers or quarantors can meet their obligations under
the infrance policis of guaranles anangements. Many af the nsks of
iFvesting in mergage-related securities seoured by commerncial momgage
fexans refbect the effects of local and ether economic conditions on neal estate
markets, the abiity of tenanits to make lease payments, and the ability of
peoperty 1o attract and retam tenants. Theos securities may be bess bauid and
may exhibit greater price volatiity than other fypes of mortgage-related oo
aiher asser-backed securities. Other asset-hacked securities ane created Tram
mamy tpes of ssets, inchudng, but et limited 1o, auts laans, accounts
recafvable, such as medit cand recefvables and hospital account recefvables,
home equity loans, student loars. boat loans, mobile home loans,
recreational vehecle baang, muanufactured howing loans, prralt e,
computer leases and syndicated bank loans. The Fund may imeest in any bevel
ol the capital structure of an ssuer of mortgage-backed or asset-backed
secuiities, inchuding the eguiy or “first leds” tranche

fa} Collateralized Mortgage Obgatiens |"CN0<"] e debt ebliganers of 2
legad entity that are collateralized by whole marigage loans or private
maigage bonds. and diided into dasses, ChOs are structured into multiple
clases, often relered 1o & “tranches” vath each dads beaning a didferem
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stated maturity and entithed 10 a different schedule for payments of peinapal
and infensst, indudeng prepayments. TWOH may b less iquad and miry exhibit
greater price volatility than othes types of mortgage-related or assat-hadked
seOilies

If] Strippad Mortgage-Backed Securitins (" 5MES") ane dervvatver multeclass
merlipage sscuntis AMES e wudly Snochoted with twio clinges that cecena
diffetent propomions of the smerest and principal distributions on a pool of
mortgage assets An SMBS wll have one class that wall recesve all of the
intivest {the inteneis-anly or "0 clasl, while the other diass will recense the
efitte priscipal {the priscpal-ealy of “PO class). Payments recenved for 103
are included in inberest incomee on the Statements of Operations. Because no
prircipal will be received at the matunity of an 10, adjustments are made to
thee coit of the sevunity on & monthly basss untl maturity. These adjustments
are ircluded in inbetest ingome on the Statements of Operabons Payments
recerved for FON ane tneated as reducdtions o the cosf and par value of the
saimnbes

Ig) Collateralired Debt Obligations ("CD0:") include Collateral zed Bond
Obdigations ("CHOs™), Collateralized Loan Obbgations {"CLOs") and ather
similarhy strucured secureties. CBOs and CLO% are types of asset-backed
secrives A& CBO B a trust which i1 backed by a dreeraihied pool al high nisk,
belew imestment grade fooed moome seountes A CLO i 2 pust typically
collateralized by a pood of loans, which may indude, among others, domestic
and Yaneign senior secured laams, senicr unsecured faams, and subcedinate
coepoeate loars, induding koans that may be rabed below rvestment giade o
equivaient unrated loars. The risks of an evestment in 2 CDO depend Lagely
on the type of the collmeral secunses and the class of the C00 inwhich a
Fund irvests In addsion to the normal dsks ssociated with fived incorse
securities discussed elsewhers in this repon and the Funds Offeqng
Mernarandum [e.q, prepayment nisk, credit risk, Bousdsty risk, markeq sk,
stogctyrad nsk, legal rok and insesest rate tisk [wbsch iyt empcirhated al
the irterest rate payabde on a stnactured finamcing changes based an
mudtiples of changes in interest rates oo imversely to changes in interest
ranes}), CHOL, CLOs. and ather CDO4 camy sddmional risks including, but not
limited %0, () the possdiity that dismibutions fram coll aberal secunies will nat
be adequate to make interest or other payments, (i) the guality of the
coflaseal many decling in valoe o delauh, G 1k risk that @ Fund iy st
in CAOs, CLOs, or other CD0s that ae subordinate to other dasses, and (#)
te comphiex structure of the security may not be fully understood at the time
of imvestment and may produce disputes with the issuer or unexpected
ImesIment et

[h} Payment bn-Kind Securities Certan Funds may imeest in payment in-kind
securities (T PIKs™ ) PIKs may geve the issuer the option 3t each inferest
payment date of making nterest payments in either cash andics additional
debt securities. Those addibonal debit secuntes dsually huve the same terms,
inclusding matunty dates and interest rates, and assocated nsks as the
onginal bonds. The daily market quotations of the iginal bends may indude
the socrued inbecst (referned 1o & & 'r!'n'ly-;ll;:-.-'l and isguane b pio 1
adjustment from the unrealzed apprecation o depreciation on imesiments
tovinterest recedrable on the Statements of Assets and Liabiites

0} Restricted Secwrities Cotan Funds may hold imestments that ane dubpec
1o legal or contraciual resinctions on resale These securities may be sold
privately, but may be required to be registered or exempted from such
regstration befone being sold to the public Private placement securities are
qcnrla'h- eorvindered 1o b dedtncted. Duipdsal of festrictied ireebiments may
imophee DEng-consuming regotiations and expendad, and prompt sale at an
acceplable proe may be difficull bo acheeve Restricted investments held by
the Funds at Ocicher 31, 2003, 35 applicable. are disclosed in the Mates 1o
Sehedulie of Investmenas

@ Strwetured Notes Ceriain Funds may invest in struciured notes and other
related instruments, which are pravately neqotiated debt obligatiors in which
the principal and' or interest is determéned by reference to the performance of
a benchmank asset, market or interest rate [an "embedded index”], such as
seliecied securites, an index of secuntes of specfied inteest ates, or the
ditferertial parformance of two assets or markets, such a5 indexes rellecting
e Strectured instruments may be issed by corporations, scluding
Buanikes, i wall a5 by govetnmental agencies. The terms of such structured
irstruments noemally provide that their principal andfos interest payments are
o b adpusted uprwvards or dowmwands ut ardinanly not below zeio) to
eellect chamgis in the ermbedded index while the strechured |nstnamesits e
outstanding As a result, the interest andior prindpal payments that may be
made on & structured prodiuct may vary wedely, depending on a vanety of
factors, ncluding the volatility of the embedded mdex and the effect of
changes i the embedded index an principal andior intenen payments

) U.S. Gawernment Agenties or Government-Spansored Enterprises
Certain Funds may ivest in seoities of U 5. Government agencies o
ginirninent-ipamonsd o leripimss U S Govenment secunties ané
ohbgatiors of and, in certain cases, guarantesd by, the U5 Government, its
agencies or instrumendaliies. 5ome U S Govemsment saourites, such as
Teeatury bilks, motes and bonds, and tecuntes quatarieed by the Govetnment
Mational Merigage Assocation (" GNMA® or "Ginnie Mae™), are wpponed
by the Tl Faith and credit of the U 5. Govermment; others, such as those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, afe suppaited by the rght of the mauer 1o
Earirons feom the U 5 Department of the Treasury fthe "U S Treasury™); and
oithiars, such 3 those of the Federal National Maorigage Association (FHMA®
or "Fareie Mae™), are supported by the discretionary authorty of the LS
Gimeenment b purchase the agency’s chligaions. U4 Govermment securites
may inchude 2emo coupon secunities, whach do not detrbute interest on a
curtent basis and tend 1o be subject 1o a greater sk than sleredt-paying
secynfies of simalse magyntees

Goveenment-related guarantors (i e, ot backed by the full faith and oedit of
the U5, Govemnment) incude FkA and the Federal Home Loan Morgage
Cu'pﬁr.llllbnl:' FHLMC® o *Frecidie Mac™) FRIMA &8 :]Er.lr:ftl'l:ér1-'4‘l|b|"m'r11
coiporation. FNMA puechases comvenpenal e, nat insured o quaranbeed by
any goverrement apendy] residential morgages from alist of appeoved
selleriferacers which mclude state and ‘.l,-:ll,-i.all‘,- chariensd Hrings a0 lean
asocasons, rutsal dvings banks, commercsl banks and credit unions and
manigage ankers. Pass-through securites issued by FRMA ae quaanteed a5
1o timely payment of principal and intenest by FRMA, but ate not backed by
the Full Taith and credit of the U Gevermment FHLMC ssues Particpation
Certificates ["PCs™ ), which ae pass-thiough seowites, each representing an
undriced imerest in 2 pool of residensial momgages. FHLMC guarantess the
umely payment of inbecest and ulomane collection of prncipal, bun PCs aee net
backed by the full faith and ceedit of the U 5. Genvernment

ey June 2019, FNMA and FELMC started issuing Urilomn Mostgage-Badced
Secuntars |\ UMES” | in plate of their qurent n||:r:rn.'l|1 o 13A-|,'f-'_;b'«_
securities {the " Single Security Initiatve” ). The Single Seowity Inidatie seeks
1o support the overall lquidity of the TRA market and aligns the
charsctersnes of FNMA and FHUME cemficatss The effects shat the Singhe
Setunty Imtatee may have an the market for TEA and ather mongage-
backed senunities ae uncertain

Boll-timing strategies can be used whene 3 Fund seeks to extend the
expiration e matusity of a position, such a3 a THA security on an underlying
asset, by dosing cut the position before expiration and opening a new
peosition weth respect to substantially the same undedying asset with a later
expiration dae. TRA secunties purchased of wobd ane reflecosd on the
Staterments of Assets and LiabBtes as an asset of liability, respecively
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01l When-lzsued Transsctions Certain Funds may purchase or sef secunties
on a wierrissued basis. These transactons are made conditionally because a
security, although autherzed, kas nat et been iwsued in the market
Transacticns to purchase oo sell senuities on a when-ssued basis imobee

a commitment by a Fund to peechase or sell these seourities for a
predetermined prioe of yeld, wath payment snd delrery taking place beyond
the customany serllement pesiod. & Fund may sell when-issoed sequrities
before they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain or loss

|m] Bamk Dbligations Bank cilgations in which a Fund may invest mdude
certificates of depod, barkers’ acceptances, and fooed time depodits
Certificates af depasit e neqonable comdicates issued against funds
depesited in a commercial bank for & definne period of time and eaming a
speabed ivtum Banken” acoeptances aie negotiable drafts or bals of
exchange, nermally deawn by an impaiter of expartes b pay Tor specific
maerchandise, which are " accepied” by a bask, meaning, in effect, that the
bank wwonditionally agrees 1o pay the face value of the nstrument an
matunty Fleed time deposss are bank obligatons pagable a1 a slated
matuity date and bearing interest at a foed rate. Fixed time deposts may be
withdeawn on demand by the imvestor, but may be subject 1o early
wathderaeal penalties which vary depending upon market conditions 30d the
remarary] manwity of the obfgation

In} Warrants Certain Funds may recehe warants. Wanrants ane securities
that are usually issued together with a deba security or preferred security and
that gree the Rolder the nght to buy 3 proporionate amount of common ok
at a specifed pace Waerants ae fresly ransferable and are aften raded on
major exchanges. Warrants nomally have a life that i measured in years and
entithe the halder to buy comeon stodk of a company a1 a price that is usually
higher than the market price a1 the time the wairant B dsued, Wasrants may
ental greater risks than certain other types of imeestments. Generaly,
warrants do nat camy the right bo recesee dividencs or exercise vosing nights
wath eespect o the undething securities, and they do Pt represent amy fghts
in the assets of the isswer In addition, their value does not necessanly change
wath the value al the underlang secuntses, and they cease to have value o
they are b exiicrbed an o belore thar apiration date. 1 the matket price of
the underying stock does not exceed the exercise price duning the Be of the
warrant, the warrant will expire worthfiess. Warrants may increase the
pesential prafit or orss 1o be realied froen the smnestment a4 compared with
imvesting the same amount in the underhying seoities. Similary, the
percentape indrease of demease in the value of an equity sequnty warant
iy B grieatis than the [pefcenlag indleade o decreasi in the walue of (e
underdying commen steck. Wamants may relate to the purchase of equity or
debt securities. Debt obligatons. with warrants attached to purchase equity
securities have many charactesistics of convestible secunties and their prioes
may, 1o some degree, refiac the peformance of the underhding stock. Debt
chligatians atso may be issued with warrants atfached to purchase additional
debit securifies at the same coupon rate. A decine in inferest rates wouold
pereret @ Fund 1o 46l such warrants at a pralic I infeessr ranes e, thegs
wairants would generaly expire with no value

5. EDRROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The fllowing desclosuees contain information on the Fureds: ability to lend or
borrow cash oo secunities 1o the extent pesmitied under the OHesing
Memarandum, which miy be wewed o borrowang or linanong transactions
bry the: Fumds: The locapon of these instruments i described below For a
detaled descnpion of credit and counterparty risks that an be associated
with b-ulr\clmnqr. and athet ﬁr.an:lnr_; traneactians, please see Nate 7,

incipal and Ot Rinks

fa) Repurchass Agresments Certain Funds may engage in repurchass
agreements. Uindes the terms of a typkal repurchase agreemend, 3

Fund purchaies an undarkying debt obligation (collaeral) subject ta an
obligation of the seller to repurchase, and a Fund to resall, the obligation at
an agreed-upon price and time In an open matunity repunchase agreement,
thane & no pro-detmined tepurchie date and tha st cin be
tenmoated by the Fund or cousemanty at any time. The market valoe of the
collateral must be equal to or exceed the tatal amount of the repuichase
abbgations, induding nilerest Repurchase agreements, induding accrued
e, s ecluded on the Statements of Asters and Libdoes, Inneest
earned is recorded a5 a compeoment of inberest income o the Statements of
Operations. by penicds of increased demand for collatera!, a Fund may pay 3
fese Tor teceipt of collateral, which may result in intenest expende 1o the Fund

{h) Aeversa Repurchase Agresmants Certan Funds may enter info reverse
eepurchase aeements In a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund defivers a
secunity inexchange Tor cash to a finanaal instiution, the counterparty, with
B simitarseous agreerment o reputchase the tame or substantally the same
Security at an ageed upon price and date. In an open matunty reverse
repurchase agreement, lhere & no pre-determaned repurchase date and the
sgieement can be Termenatied by the Furd o counlerpaty al afy time A
Furd is entstled to recene princpal and interest payments, If amy, made an
the secunty delirened to the countesparty during the term of the agreement
Canh recoived in exchange for securites delnarned plus acoued injeiess
paymenis to be made by a Fund 10 counserparties are reflecied as a habiliy
on the Slatements of Assets and Liahikties. Inferest payments made by a Fund
10 couniesparties are recosded a8 a component of inenesy EXpETRE On the
Saterments of Operations In periods of increased demand Tor the secuney, &
Fund may receive a fee for use of the secunty by the counterparty, which may
result in interest income to a Fund. A Fund will segregate assets determined
i koot Py By FEMCO) o il ofhisrvsise cover 195 oblgasions: undist pensris
repurchase agreements

el Sale-Buybacka Certain Funds may enter into financing transactions
refered to as “sale-buybacks' A sale-bupback finanting transaction consists
ol & $ibe ol & secunity by a Fund so.a Bnancial insbiuton, the countematy,
with a simultanegus agreement 10 sepurchase the same or substantially the
same secuity at an agreed-upon price and date A Fund is not entitled o
e principal and entenest payments, if amy, made an the securty sold ta
the counterparty duting the term of the agreement. The agreed-upon
peoceeds fod secuities to be repurchased by a Fund aee refecied as a bisbdity
on the Statersents of Assets and Liabiles. A Fund will recognize net incame
repinesenited by the price dflerential between the price recenved Tor the
transfered secuity and the agreed-upon repurchase prce. This is commaenly
referred bo as the ‘price drap’. A price diop consists of (i) the Baregome interest
and inMlasionary income adpustments, if any, a Fund would have othenwisa
recefved had the security not been sold and (i} the negotiated financing terms
between a Fund and counterpaty. Foregane interest aned inflationary income
SAqustrndnly, d afy, ate neconded a5 components o anilenest income o the
Saaterments of Operations. Interest payments based upon megatiated financing
e made by a Fund %o counterparties are recoeded a5 3 component of
et experese on the Slatements of Opefatns. In periods ol inceased
demand for the securty, a Fund may receve a fee for use of the seounty by
thi counterparty, which may result in inberest income to-a Fund A Fund will
seqregabe assels determined 1o be bqued by PIMCO ar wall othensse coer il
abbgatiors under sale-buyback Tarsactons

) Sheet Salex Certain Funds may enter indo shor sales tansacbors Short
sales are transactions in which the Fund sefls a secunty that it may not own
A Fund may make shoet sales ol seountes 1o () offset potential declings in
g posations. i simila seourites, (i 1o increase the fedbilay of the Fund,
(i) for imeestment retum, {w] as part of a risk arbitrage strategy, and () as
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part of its overalf portfolio management strategies imoling the we of
derative irdiruments. When a Fund engages in a shoet sale, 0 may bomow
thoe security sobd sheet and deler it to the courdemaety. The Fund will
ordinanly have to pay a lee or premium to borow a seounity and be obligated
1o repay the lender of the security any drvidend or inferest that accnaes on the
sacutity during the period of the loan. Securities sofd in shon ale tramactans
and the dividend ar interest payable on such secwities, if any, are reflected a5
paryabie tar shon sales on the Statemants of Assets and Liabisies. Short sales
exporke the Fund to the risk than it wall be requined 1o cover its shor pottion
at a time when the security or other asset has apprecated in vafue, thus
resating in icsses (o the Fund A shart sale 15 "aganst the box” if

e Fursd holds i il p-m'.ll;\lu;- of huag the right 1o aoquine the fecutity sold
short, or securities identical o the sequrity sold shor, at no addiianal cost. &
Fund will be subject to additonal risks 1o the extent that it engages in short
sales that &ee not " gaingt the box™ A Fund's loss on a shon sale could
theceetically be unlimited mn cases whese the Fund is unable, S whatever
reasan, bo dose out its shodt position

Ie] Lina of Crodit FIMCD Bermuda Bank Loan Fund M) entened o & 364-
diny seniar unisicured recobang creds agresment with the Bank of Tokye-
Misubisi UF), Lod {"MUFG"] and othér commenoal banks to be utdized for
temparany pumposes i fund Unitholder redempiticrs or for other short-tem
liquidity purposes. MUFG serve a5 both a bank and a3 30 agent for ot
banks that ane pasrteed 1o the agresment PIMCD Bermuda Bask Loan Fund
(M} pays Enancing charges based on a mmbination of S0FR-based variable
plus & credit spread. The Fund alio pays a fee of 0 30% per annum an the
unigbed comeretment amounts. The agreement wad tenewed a0 August 18,
2023 and expires on Aogust 16, 2024 unless extendad or renewed. There s a
mamstum aealable commiteent amaunt for PIMCD Bermudia Bank Laan
Fund (44 equal ta L28.000.000. Priov 1o Apgqust 18, 2073, the maesum
avaslable commitreeen amount for the Fund was §15,500,000 and the Fund
paid a lee of 0. 20% per annum on the unused commitment amounts
Commitment, uplront and interest Tees of 5100310 ped by FIMCO Bermesda
Bank Loan Furd (M) ace includied i amterest experse in the Stabemsenis of
Operations

Dunreg the penod, theee wete no bamawengs on 1his lne o erasdhit

B. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The I'D'iw.nm;d'y:hsl.rr's contain infammation on how and whry thee Funds wbe
Financial derivative instnoments and how Binangial derrratve msoumenss
affect the Funds” finanoal position, results of operations and cash flows. The
location and fair value amounts of these instruments on the Statements of
Assets and Lisbilries and the net nealized gain (loss) and ned change n
unreaized appreciation (depreciation) on the S1atemenis of Operations, sach
categorized by type of financial derivative contract and related risk exposure,
are ircduded in 3 table in the Notes 10 Schedule of Imestments, The finarcial
derivatve mitruments autsandng as of persad end and the amounts of nel
realized gaim {loss) and net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation)
on financal derfrative instruments during the period, as discosed in the
Hoites bo Schedule of Imvestments, serve as indicatos of the volume of
Tinandial dervative activity for the Funds

|s] Forvaard Forelgn Carreney Contraets Certan Funds may engage in
Torwiard fonesge currency contracts in connection with sestling planned
purchases or sales ol secunitees, 1o hedge the currency exposure Fisodiated
with some or all of a Fund's securities or as pant of an investment strateqy. A
Terwand loresgn currency contract is an ageeement between tag parses 1o buy
and 26l @ curency &l & 261 peice on & future date The market valve of a
Terwiard fpreign currency conteact Tluctuabes wath changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Forwand Soneign cumency contracts ane masked to market

datly, and the change in value & recorded by a Fund as an wnrealized gain of
Iors. Regfined gains of losses oo equal to the difference betwetn the value of
the contract at the tene 7 was opened and the valse 21 the tme (Dwas dosed
and are recorded upon delivery or recespd of the curency. These contracts
mary imvorhe macket risk in emoess of the ureealzed gain of bess reflecied on
the Statements of Assets and Liahdities in addition, a Fund could be exposed
1o risk if the cownterparties are wnable to meet the teims of the contracts or if
the vatue of the curmency changes urdivarably 1o the funcsanal aumency, To
entigane such stk cash o securiied may be exchanged o eollateral pursant
1o the terms of the underhying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hediged Clas, may abso enter inta Torwand toreign
curtendy cesiracts designiad o offset the effect of hediging at the Fund level in
arder to leave the hedged Class with an expasure to qurrendies other than the
functional curmency. These can be no guarantee that these Class spechc
lorevaed Foreign currency contracs will be successiul

) Fimres Contrasts Certasn Funds may enter inbo Tutures contracts A
fubures conbract is an agreement o buy or sell @ secunity or other asset for 3
56t price o 2 future date and is traded on 20 exchange. A Fund may use
futures contracts 1o A 1 Sapaune 10 The Seculits markets of 10
e in interest rates and curency valims. The primaey risks associated
with the use of futures contracts are the impesfect comefation between the
change in matket value of the secunties held by a Fund and the prices of
{utuses contracts and the possibiliy of am iliqud market Futunes comracs
are valued based upon their quoted daly settiement prices. Upon entering
into a futures contract, 2 Fund s reguired to deposit with its futures broker an
amount of cash, U S Gowvernment and Agency Obligasons, or select soveregn
debit, in acoordance with the initial margin requeements of the broker or
exchange Fulures contracts are macked bo market daily and hased on such
ervermeris i the prce of the contiacs, an Hpropnate payable of recenvabile
for the change invalue may be posbed or collected by the Fund " Futures
Variation Margin™}. Futures Variation Margins, if any, e discosed within
centrally deaned financiat dervative instioments on the Statemaents of Assets
and Liabalites. Gains of losses are recognized but not consadered realized untl
the contracts expiee of close. Futures contracts imvolve, to vansng degrees,
risk of bags in engess of the Futures Vatiabon Margin incdiuded wathin
exchange traded or centrally cleared financial demeatie inslruments on the
Statements. of Assats and Liabilties

e} Optiana Contragte Certain Funds may write of purchase ophions to
erthance retuns of 10 heddge an gxiling pasibon of future imsestmdnt. Coman
Furnds may weite call and put options on securities and finanoal detrvatie
irestruments they own of in which they may invest Winiting put options tends
o ingmease 3 Fund's exposune 1o the underhpng instrament. Wiiting call
optioer tends Do decregie & Fund's expoduse 1o Ih-.-u‘}dmh-.:'-g ansliument
When a Fund writes 3 call or put, an amournt equal to the premium receved is
recneded and subsequently marked to market to reflect the current value of
the option weitten These amounts e included an the Staterments of Asets
and Liahilimes Premiums recenved from wniting cptions whath expare are
treated as realized gains. Premiums recetved Tram waiting optians which are
exeicried or closed are added to this procesds or affse ] Emounls Akl
an the underdyng Futuses Phadp, JCUNY oF Cultendy IrERiaclidh 0 determine
the realized gain or loss. Certain options may be written wath premiums to be
deterraned on a fubwe date The premiunts for these optons ane based upon
erphed volatifiey parameters at specfied terms A Fund as a waiter of an
opticn has no control over whedher the wnderdying sstrument may be sold

(" call” Jar purchased ("put”) and as a resuly bears the market risk of an
unfivorale change in the price of the indtnament underhing the witten
option There is the sk a Fund may not be able to enter into a dosing
trarsaction because of an iqud market
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Certan Funds may abio purchase put and call options. Purchasing <all options
tends 1o ircrease a Fund's exposune 0o the wndethying mstrument. Purchasing
pul opthons bends. o decrease a Fund's expesure o the underdying instnament
A Fund pays a premium which is induded as an asset on the Statements of
Assets and Liabilies and subsequently marked to market 10 reflect the
current value af the option. Premiums pasd Tor purchasng opaens which
expire are treated as realized bosses. Certain options may be purchased with
premaans bo e detesmined oo a hature date. The premiums for these aptins
are based upon implhed valminty patamebers o specifeed temd. The mk
assooated with purchasing put and cal options is Bmited to the premium
paid. Premiums paid for puechasing options which are exertised or dosed ane
addded 10 the ameunits pad or alfusy agand the proceeds on the undething
imvestment transaction to determine the realized gain of loss when the
underlying bransaction is executed

Credit Dultwult Swaptions Cerain Funds may wite or purchase oedit default
S e 0D |||:1I|;r Epure 1o th ciadit ngk of an imetment vwithoo
making a commitment 1o the underlying instrument A crede default swapbon
is an opbion 1o sl or buy medit protection 1o a spedlic reference by enterng
it & pre-defined feap aqreement by some sechied date n the futune

Forsign Corressey Options Certmn Funds may wnte ar puichae oresgn
ousrency options 1o be used as a short o long hedge against possible
wariatiors in foeeign exchange rates of 50 gain exposure to foreign cusrencies

Inflation-Capped Optises  Certain Funds snay write of purchase inflation-
capped oplians 1o enhance nehums of for bedging cpportumtees The purpase
of purchasing imilation-capped options is bo peotect a Furd from inflation
erciaon ahove a certain rate on & given naticnal exposune. A Eloor can be
wied to groe downside protection 1o mvesteents in imflation-linked products

Intarest Rate Swaptiens Cemain Funds may wirle of purchass inferest 1ae
swiap bions which are oplions 10 ensel into a pee-defined swap agreement o
to shorten, extend, cancel or othersse modify an existing swap agreement,
by some specthed date in the futuee. The vaiter of the swaption becomes the
counterpaity 1 the seap if the buyer exercses. The nlerest rate swaplion
agreement will specity whether the buyer of the swaption will be a fmed-rate
recenver of a foued -tate payer upon exendse

Dptions sn Exchange Traded Futures Contracts Certain Funds may wiibe o
purchaie eptioes on exchange-traded fuhwes contracts (" Futures Opoian™) 1o
hedige an easting position or futune imvestment, for speculathve puposes o to
manage exposiuse b market movements. A Futures Option i3 a0 opbion

comtract i which the underking indtrament is 2 single futures contract

Dptions sn Seeuritins Ceetan Furds may waite of putchase apbans oa
securities i0 enhanoe returms of 1o hedge an exsting pasition of fuhee
imvestment. An option on J security uses @ specilied security &5 the underhing
instiument fat the Oftsan oalrdt

[d] Swinp Agresmmnts Certan Funds may arest in swap agyeements Swap
agreements ane bilaterally negobated agreements between a Fund and a
counterparty to exchange or swap investment cash fiows, assets, foseign
currencses of market-linked retumns at specified, fubwre intervals Swap
agreaments may be prvately negotiated in the OTC market or may be deared
thrisgh a third-party, known a5 3 central coonierparty of dervatives deaning
Grganizasan ["eenteally ceansd swag”™ ). A Fund may ender inbo asiet, fridi
defady, crosd-curency, antenest rate, total eetuen, vanamnce and other forms of
SWa( ajIPements 1o manage its exposure b credil, curency, inberest rate,
corsmodity, equity and inflation nisk. In conrection with these agreements,
secufiies of cash may be sdentified as collateral or mangen in accoedange wath
the teres of the regpective swap agpreements 1o prowade assets of value and
recourse in the event of defastt or banknuptefingalency

Centrally deared swaps are marked to madcet daily based upon valuations o
deemaned from the underying coniract o in adcadance with the
sequiremesits of the central counterparty of derraties dearning organization
Changes in market value, if any, ane reflecied as a component of net change
mnuneslined appreciation [deprecation) on the Satements of Operations
Dty chames in valuation of centrally deared swaps (™ Swiap Vanatean
Margin® ), if any, are dischosad within centrally deared finandal derivative
rrstruments on the Statements of Assets and Liabiliies. OTC swig payments
ecerved of pind it the beginming of the meatusement petiod aee inchuded on
the Statements of Assets and Lishilites and represent premiums paid or
received uptn eneling into the swap agreement 1o compensate for
deffererces between the stated teims al the swap agreement and prevailmg
matket conditions oedit spreads, oumendy exchange rates, interest rates, and
wother relevant factors). Upfiont premims recerved (paed) ace inifially recondied
ot liaahtie (nbpsts ) 3 subisqoently mgkad b macket to refleey the curnent
value of the swap. These upfront premiums are tecorded a5 realized gains or
Eorsses on the Statements of Qperations wpan termination or matwity of the
swap. A liquidation payment recerved of made ot the termination af the swap
& recorded s realized gain o loss an the Statements of Ciperations. el
pevindic payments recesed of paid by a Fund ae included as part of realized
gannes o losses on the Staterments of Operations:

For purpeses of apphang cenain of a Fund s imesstment policies and
testrictaons, swap agreements, like other derrvative instruments, may be
valued by a Fund at market value, national value or full exposure value, In the
casar of a credd delault swap, i apphing certain of the Fund's imvesiment
poboies and restrictaons, the Fund will walue the credit default swap atits
raticnal value or its full exposune value [1e., the sum of the noticnal amaount
for the contract plus the market valuel, but may vadue the cedit delault veap
at market value for purposes of apphimg certain of the Fusd's other
rvestrment pofcies and restractions. For example, the Fund may value aedit
delault swaps at Tull expasure value o poeposet of the Fund's credt quality
quidebres {if ary) because such value in genetal better reflects the Fund's
actual economic exposure duing the term of the credit default swap
agreement. As aresult, a Fund may, at times, have notional eposure 1o
st s [befiore pettingy) that & greater of besser than the stated limit ar
eestriction noted in the Fund’s Offering Memarandum: kn thes conteat, bath
the netional amount and the market value may be positrne or negatve
depending on whither the Fund & selling or buying protection thiough the
credit default swap. The manmer in which certain secunites or other
irstruments are valued by the Fund for purposes of apphying imvestment
pobeies and restrictions may differ from the manner in which these
ervesiments ate valued by other types of investons. Entering inta Swap
agreements imvobees, t0vanying degrees, elements of interest, oredit, market
and documentation msk in exgess of the amounts recognized on the
Staterments of Assets and Lisbibues Such msks involve the possdadey that
there will be no bguid market for these agreements, that the countesparty 1o
the agreements may fad so perform or meet an obligabon or disagree as 1o
the meaning of contractual beems in the ageesmnents and that there may be
unfavorable changes in inferest rates or the values of the assel upon which
Thar s 5 based

A Fund's maamurm sk of beis kom counterpaety credit sk o the drscounted
et value af the cash Tlows to be recetved from the counterparty over the
contract’s remaining life, to the extent that amount is pasitive. The risk may
b mitigated h,' hirding a master netling drrangement betosen: 4 Fund and
the counterparty and by the pasting of collateral to a Fund to cover a Fund's
exposure to the counterparty

T the extent a Fund has a pohicy to it the net amount owed 1o of 1o be
eeceroid Tram a singhe countesparty under exsting Sesp areemnts, such
hmitation only apphes 1o countesparties o OTC swaps and does nat apply 1o

Ml Rigpirt | Cctsbet 71, 2007

161/367



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

fNlotes to Financial Statements cou

Ooooooooooooooooooad

cenirally cleared swaps where the coungerparty s a central countesparty o
derivatives cleanng oiganz ation

Credit Dultault Swap Agreemests Coctan Funds may enter into cred defaoh
S s on comporate, loan, wovereign, U S mumopal of U5 Treadury sues 1o
provide a measure of profection aganst defaults of the issuers (i e, 1o reduge
risk wiwere & Fund cwns or has eposure 10 the referenced obligation) or to
takie an actooe Bong o shadt poditasn wath eespect ta the hkeliood o &
pamicular issuer's defauly Credhy default swap agreements imoobe one party
making a stream of payments {refermed to as the buyer of protection) to
ancther party [the seller of pratection] in exchange foe the right 5 rcenve a
speafaed retum in the even that the referenced entity, obSgation o index, as
spedfed in the swap agreement, undergoes a certan credit event As a seller
of pictectsan on ciedit default swip agreements, a Fund will genedally oo
Trawn the buer of protection a foed rane of meome throughoun the term of the
swap peovaded that thees is no credht event As the seller, a Fund would
effectively add leverage to its poetfolio because, in addition b its total net
asgets, the Fund would be subject 1o mvestment exposune an the netional
amauet of the swap

It 3 Fured is 3 selber of protection and a edit event ooous, a6 delined unde
the terere of thas partcudas swap agreement, 3 Fund wall either () pay 10 the
buryer of protection an amount equal to the naticnal amaunt of the swap and
take delivery of the referenced obligation, other debverable chligations o
underbying securities comgising the rederenced index o i} pay a net
settlement amount in the form of cash or secunites equal to the nabonal
amoizr of the swap less the recoverny vahue of the referenced cbligation oo
underkying securities compaising the referenced index. i a Fund is a buyer of
protection &nd a credit event occurs, & delined under the terms of that
particulyr swap agreement, a Fund wall eithes (1) recesse Trom the safler of
protection an amount equal ta the noticnal amount of the swap and deliver
ke refereniced obligason, other debwerable cbligations o underhing

saCuf ities compnsing the referenced index or i) recesve a net settement
amount in the form of cash or securities equal ta the notional amount of the
swap hess the recovery varlue ol the referenced obligation o underhng
spcurities comprsng the referenced index. Recoveny valoes are estimated by
market makers considering either industry standand recowery rates of entity
speafic factors and contiderations untl a credt event oocurs. I a credt enent
has oeoumed, the tecovery value 5 dessmined by a facilsated sucton
wherehy a minimum number of allowable broker bads, together with a
speatied valuation method, are used to caloulate the settlement value. The
ability 1o delrver other ablaations enay eesult i & cheapess-1o-defeer option
[the buyer of protection’s right to choose the delierable obligation with the
hrwwest value Tollowing a credit event]

Credin delault S0 Aol on Codil indexes irmahe one parmy making J
stream of payments to another party in exchange for the right to receive a
spexified retum in the event of a write-down, principal shortiall, inferest
shoetdill or detault of all o pan of the referenced entities comprising the
credit index A credit index is a basket of credit instrumnents of exposutes
designed to be representative of some part of the credit market a5 a whole
These indexes are made up of reference credins that are judaged by a poll of
diealers 10 be the medt liquid entines im the credit delault seep market based
on the sector of the index. Components of the indewes may inchade, but are
ned limited bo, imeestment qrade secaibies, hegh yield secunties, asset-backed
secudilies, emerging markets, andior vaiow credit ratings within each sectes
Credit indexnes ace traded wsing credit default swaps wath standardized terms
including a fixed spread and standard matunsy dates. An index credit default
s eiferences ol the o an the mde, snd 1 thite s 8 default, 1he cedit
event is seftled based on that mame’s weight in the index. The compesiton of
the indexizs changes periodically, wsually every six months, and For mast
indentd, dach nassk has an egual weight in the indi. A Fund may use ciidit

default swaps on credit indexes 1o bedge a portfolo of credit default swaps oo
by, whuch it less expensive 1han 2 would be 10 buy mary credit delault
waps 1o achieve a similar efiect Ceedit default swes on indexes are
instruments for pratecting irvestors cwning bends against default, and
Traders wse them 1o speculabe on changes in credit quabiy

ferplied credht spreads, represerned in absolute verms, uilzed in determnng
the market value of oredit default swap agreements on coaporate, loan,
soveresgn, U 5 municipal e U S Treasury isswes a5 of peviod end, i any, are
declosed in the Notes 1o Schedule af Imestments. They senve a5 an mdcate
af the current status of paymentiperirmance rek and repeesent the ikelhood
o risk of delault dor the referenced entity. The implied credit spread of a
panticular referernd enbty rielliscrs 1R oot of I:-;r_.1|:l?':.t~ ing proticton and
may indude upfront payments requined 1o be made to enter into the
agreement. Wider aredit spreads represent a detericeatson of the relerenced
eritity’s credit soundreis and a greater likelihood or risk of defauly or other
cradil event aoouming a8 defined under the terms of the agreement For credit
delault seap agreements on asset-backed securties and oedit indexes, the
quoted market prices and resuling values serve a5 the indicator of the turment
status of the paymentiperformance rek Increasing market values, in absolute
tems when oompared to the notional amount of the swap, repeesent a
detenceation of the releenced entitys coedit soundniss and a greater
Iikelthood o rek of delault ot sthes aedil event occutting a4 defined under
the terms af the agresment

The maximum potential amosnt of future payments (undiscounted) that a
Fund ot o peller of pratection could be requinsd 1o mabe under & creds el
swap agreement equals the notional amount of the agreement. Notional
ampunts of each indsvidual oredit default swap agreement outslanding as

af peciod end Sor which a Fund & the seller ol probechion ane disckosed in the
Mates 1o Schedule of krestments. These potential amourds would be partially
otfset by amy recowery values of the respective referenced obligations, upfom
payments necehd upcn eaterng inba the agreement, of net 3maunis
recenved from the setthement of buy protecoon credh defadh swap
agreements entered into by a Fund for the same referenced entity or entites

Interest Rate Swap Agresments Cerain Funds are subject to inbevest rate
sk anpdrsung on thee moimal courke {ll'p,l:-.u-r-q 1hatir irmaast ment Shjecteaes
Thee value of the fomed rate bonds that & Fund holds may decrease if imenes
rates fise. To help hedge against this nsk and to maintain &s ability to
genierate income 38 prevalng market rates, 3 Fund may inho inderest
rale Swap agreements. INEMest (ale swap speements smohve the exchangs
bey & Furd with ancther party for thelr tespective commitmsent bo pay ar
reeive imterest on the nstional amount of principal. Certain foems of intesest
rane S agréemeents may includie: (1} interest 1ate caps, under whach, in
et Bor & premium, one party agrees 1o make payments to the other 1o the
extent thal intenest rates ewcesd a spedfied rate, or “cap”, (i} intenast rate
floors, under whick, i retuin Tor a premem, one paity ageees 10 make
payments bo the other to the extent that inberest rates fall below a spedfied
rate, or “floor”, (8] interest rate coflaes, wnder which a party sells a cap and
puu:]l.l",l,-'. .l.‘!-q)cu of WICE Wer S In 3% Jet I|;h|."t-'.m|!|'.'.r'|| WPENLT INGiEEL
rabe movements eopedeng given minimum of masimum levels, (i) callable
inerest rate swaps, under which the buyer pays an uplront fee in
consideration lor the right 1o eadly Werminate the swap tramsaction in whole,
1 pero oSt and at a predetermined dane and time peiof B the matunty G,
() spreadiocks, which allow the intedest rate swap users b0 lock in the
forwaed diflerential (or spread) between the interest rate swap rate and a
specified banchmark, or () basis swaps, under which two parties can
exchange variable inferest rates based on difiersnt segments of money
miarkits

Tota| Rebern Swap Agreements [ eitain Funds may enter into total refum
SEED aqresments 1 gain of mitigate exposune 10 the underlying reference
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Tatal return swap agreements imvabie commitments whene single or multiple
cath Towss are eachanged baded on the prce of &0 underlying reference aet
and on a feeed or variable interest rate. Total retum swap agreements may
imvcve commitmenss fo pay interest in exchange for a market-linked return
One counsesparty pays out the total retern of a specific underlying reference
assel, which may inclade a single secuity, a basket of secunties, or an indes,
and in retum receives a foed or vasiable rate. Ar the matusity date, a net cash
floww i m:{har-']cd whive the total retum & equivalent 1o the retem of the
umdérkang reference rset less & finanong rae. if sy As arecener &

Fund would receive payments based on any positvee tofal retum and would
owe payments in the event of a negatre total return. As the payer, a

Fund would gwe payments om any positivg total metutn, and would recene
paymsents in the event of a ret negative total retum

T.PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

|a] Pringipal Risks In the noomal o of business, 1he Funds (o0 Acguied
Fundfs], if apphcable) tade financial instruments and enter inta finamoial
transactions where risk of potential loss exists dus to such things as changes
in thee market {market k) or lailure or inabiity of the ather parky Lo a
transaction to perform {credit and counterparty riskh. See below for a detailed
descripbion of sehedt prinopal risis

Fund of Funds Rish To the extent that certain Funds st substantialy af ol
thew respectig assits m Acguned Fund(3], the niks Fesodiased with imvesting
in these Funds will be dosely related 1o the rsks asspoated with the securibes
and other investments held by the Acquired Fund{s) The ability of the Funds.
ta achieve their respecinee investment objectnees may depend upon the ability
o the Acguired Fund(s) 1o achieve thes respective imestment objectives

There can be no assurance that the imestment chijectre of any Aoquired
Fundls) wall be achieved The HAY of an .ﬂ.l;u;-,;:lnr_; Fund will Buctuate in
Tespanie ba changes in the respectee MAY of the Acguired Fund(<) in which if
imvesTs

In the nermal cowse of business, Aogured Fund(s) trade finandal instnaments
and enter inge Bnancial ransactions where risk of peaential loss eaists dug o
changes in the market {market nsk), or failure or inabdity of the other pary 1o
2 ransaction 1o perfoem (credit and counterparty nsk)

Macket Risks A Fund's mvestments in financial dematnee instruments and

other Snancial instiuments enpos the Fund o vasious risks soch as, but not
limitad ta, interest rate, foeeign [non-U 5 ) curendy, aquity and commadity

nisks

Intgrest tate nsk 15 the ek that Fived smcome wecunteet and othed weiruments
held by & Fund may fluchuate in valoe because of & change in intenest rates. If
nominal inferest rates nse, the value of certain fixed income secunities held by
i Fund woodd ety decnease. A nomina! inbesest rase <an be desonbed af the
surm af d eeal intenest rate and an expected inflation rabe enesl rate
changes can be sudden and unpeedictable, and a Fund may lose money &
these changes are not anticipated by Fund management. A Fund may not be
able o hedge againgt changes in intetest 1ages of may chocde pat %o da so fior
cost of other reasons. In addition, any hedges may not work a5 intended

s of the date of thes report, mtenest rates in the United Stases and many
parts ol the waild "rcludlm; CiTamn Eurcpsedn countrues, comlings o ingeise
In effons to combat milation, the US Federal Reserve ramed inferest rates
multipse times in 2022 and 2023 Thus, the Funds cumently face a heightened
bevel of risk associated with fsing intenest rates andfor bond yeids. This could
be driven by a vanety of Bactoes, including but not kmited 1o cental bank
monetary policies, changing inflation o real growth rates, general economic
werditions, increaring bond issuances or reduced market demand for fow
wiekding imvesiments. Furither, while bond markets have steadily grown o

the past three decades, dealer imveniceies of comporate bonds are near histon:
Tt i relaton to market soe. s a sl theee has Been a signilicant
reduction im the ability of dealers to " make markets”

Foeeign (non-L0 5 ) securities in thes meport ane dassified by the country of
irorporation of 2 holding In certain imdtances, a secutity's country of
incoiporation may be diffecent from its country of econamic exposure

i & Fund iervests directly im foresgn {non-Ll 5.} cusmencies of in sequribes that
trade in, and cocende revsfuns in, {oeesgn {nan-i 3 ) curendies, o in Bnanaal
detrvathee inginaments that proade exposure 1o foregn {non-U 5 ] oenenoe,
i wall be-subject to the risk that those cumencies will dedine in value relative
1 the base curmency of the Fund, or, in the case of hedging positions, that
the Fund's base cuiningy wall decling invalye nelatve 1o 1he STy being
hedged. Currency rates in foreign countnes may luctuate significantly over
short periods of time for a number of reasons, induding changes in interest
sates, inbereeniion {of the fahine 10 ingeneng) by U5, or I'u.'l_-qn (eIl
centeal banks or supranational entizses such as the Internatonal Manetary
Fund, ot by the imposition of curmenty controls or cther pofitical developments
m the United States o abroad. As 2 resiy 2 Fund's investmenss in faneign
cunency-denaminated securites may reduce the Fund's retums

The market values of equities, such & comenan stocks and prefemed securities
of equty selated imvestments doch & futures and opteans, hae histancally
risen aeed Tallen in pereadsc oyches and may dedine due 1o genesal market
conditans which are not speaiically related to a particular company, such &
real or percerved adverse economic conditions, changes in the general
oullook !ur-:plpqr.!:[' vairangs, changes in el or Surnency rates, pubrlic
heaith emergencies, such as the speead of infectious illness o disease, of
adverse smeestor sentiment generally. They may abso dedine due to factors
whnch aflect & panicular snduitry o sdustries, such as Rabar thoitages o
increasad producton costs and competitve Comditions within an indusiry
Diflerent types of equity seturities may react differently to these
developments Equity secunites and equity relxied imesiments generatly hive
greatér marked price volatilay than faed income sequrities

Cradit and Counterparty Rigks A Fund will be exposed o oedit nisk 1o
parties with whom it trades and will ako bear the risk of settlement default A
Fund minimizes concentrations of cedit risk by .mdm.ul.n:j Lraractiond wath
& large number of cubtomers and countemartes on recognited and reputable
exchanges, where applcable OTC dermative transactions of other similas
irvestments ate subgect to the nsk that a courerpanty to the tramsacton will
mat fullill its contraciual sbiigations s the other party, as may of the
protectons afforded to centrally deared detivative transactons might mot be
avdilable for OTC derdvative transactions or other simila imvestments. For
deireatniid Waded on an exchangi of Ihruur,h acential counbtérpany, crdht
risk resades with the creditwonthiness of the Fund's deanng beoker, or the
clearinghause itelf, rather than with a counterparty in an OTC demative
trafsackion Changes: m iequlation relating 1o a Fund's uie of demrtnees and
related instruments could patentially kmit of impact the Fund's abding to
irvrest in denvateves, lemit the Fund's abiity to employ certain strategees that
ke dieivalred andics .h!w,".wh-.ﬂl'l::'. thee il o prn!:lm.lu:l:n‘ defmalnes
and the Fund. A Fund could lose maney of the msuer of quaeantor of a foed
rolime secunity, of the counterparty to a financial dervative

irstruments conliact, iepuschase agieement or a laan of portholio securties, is
unlile or umailing 10 make imely principal andlor inleesl payments, of 1o
otharwsse hanor its obligatiors Securities and fmancal derrvative instruments
ate subject to vanying degrees of oedit risk, which may be reflected in oedit
fabrgs

Similar to credit sk, 2 Fund may be exposed to courerparty rsk, o the rsk
that an institubion or other entity with which a Fund has unsattled or apen
trarrsacsans vall defaule PMCD, & the Manager, minimzes. oountesparty
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visks 10 the Funds through a number of ways. Prior to entering o
transpction with & réw countinparty, the FEMCD Counterpary Risk
Commirtee conducts an extensiee credit review of such counterparty and misst
approwe the wse of such counterparty. Furthermone, pursuant to the teims of
the underdyng centract, 1o the extent that unpaid amounts cvwed 1o 2 Fund
exceed a predetermined threshald, such countesp arty shall advance collateral
tora Fund in the form of cash or sequrities equal in value to the unpaid
ameunt cved 50 2 Fund A Fund may imeest such collateral in securties o
othet instruments and vall typecally pay irtenest ta the coumeparty on the
rollatesal recedved If the unpaid amount cwed to a Fund subsequently
decreases, 3 Fund would be reguined to retum to the countesparty all e a
porbon af the collateral prenously sdvanced. FIMCO's attempns 1o mirimize
counterparty risk may, howeser, be unsuccessul

Al ransactions in Bsted securities ace settbed’paid dor upon delrvery using
approved coumempartes. The tisk of delault i comidised menimal, o5 delroery
of secursties sold 15 anly made once a Fund has recened payment Payment 5
made on a purchase once the sequrities have been delivered by the
counterparty, The trade will fal il either party fails o meet its obligation

] Driheeer Risckn In geners, ach Fund sy be pubpect 10 sddimional ks,
includingy. but not limited o, risks related 1o government requlation and
interseniion in Bnancial markets, eperatonal risks, Fisks associated with
financial, econcenic and global market disnaptions, and cyber sogurity nisks
Pease refer to each Fund's ofliing docurments for & more detailed
descripticn af the: risks of investing in the Fued

Maaiont Disruptions Risk The Funds are subgect fo imvestment and
operational ritks assecuted with financal, sconomic and cther gloabal market
developments and disruptions, including these arming from war, terosism,
markel manipulation, gevernment inlerventicns, defaults and shutdowns,
political changes o dpfomatic developments, pubibc health emevgences
{guch a5 the spiead o infectious deeases, pancermacs and epudemacs) and
naburalfensaronmental disasters, which can all negatrely impact the secusities
markets, inberest rates, audtions, secondary trading, ratings, oedit rsk,
inflatian, deflazion and ather Factoes relating 1o the Fund's inves iments of the
Manager's operations and cause a Fund ta lose value These events may have
advese long-term efiects an the U 5. and world econemies and markets
generally These events can aka impair 1he technelogy and other aperational
systems upon which a Fund's senice providers, incudng PIMCO as the
Funds’ imvestment advisar, rely, and could athenwtse disnupt a Fund's service
prowiciers’ ability to fulhll ther obligations o the relevans Fund

U5 and global markets recently have expenenoed increased wolatiey,
including as a result of the tecent Failunes of certain U 5. and non-U 5. banks,
which could b hamful to the Funds and issurs in which they imvest. For
example, if a bark 0 which 2 Fund of issuer had an sccount T, any carsh o
other assets in bank or custody accounts, whech may be substantial in size,
rowld be temporarily inacoessible or permanently lost by the Fund or issuer. i
a bark that provides & subscription lee credis Fadhity, asser-based faciiey,
other credit faclity andior cther senvaces bo an isswer of 1o a fund fails, the
issuer of fund could be unable to draw funds under is aredit facilibes oo
ohiain replacement chedit {acilites o other services from coher Iending
instautians with similar pems

tesuers in whidh a Fund may imvest can be affected by volatility i the banking
sector. Even i banks wsed by isuens in which the Funds imvest remain schanl,
continged velatdity in the banking seqior could cosnbate wo, cause of
interesty an economic recessaon, inoease the costs of capital and banking
sornces of resull in thi issuers being unable to obitain of relinance
indiitedngss af ol o on as lvecable terens a3 could cehenwise b Been
ochiained. Conditions in the banking sector are evohaing, and the scope of amy
pozential impacts 1o the Funds and isswers, both from market condizions and

alsa posential legistative or regulatory responses, are uncertain. Such
conditians and IO, i well .'L'.d-:h.'mq:n-] AT fE ervE GO,
can contriute 1o deoreased meket hquidity and esode the value ol certan
holdings, induding those of .5, and nan-Ul5. banks. Continued market
widablity and uncertainty andior a dowmtuin in matket and economic and
financial conditoes, a5 a result of develapments in the Banking secior of
wthersize {induding as a result of delayed access to cach or oredin faclities),
could hane an adverse mpact on the Funds and issuers in which they imvest

Gevarnmant latarvention in Financial Markets Federal state, and olfwer
gavarnments, thist regulatory spence, of sell-requlaton onganzaiont may
take actions that atfect the requlation of the instruments in which a Fund
irwests, or the issuers of such instrements, i ways that ame unforesesable
Legislatin of requlaton may dka change the way = which a Fund isslf 2
eequiated Such legislatson o requliation could limit o preclude a Furd's
ability to achoeve s investment obpecinee. Furthermare, wolatile finandial
matkits can expost & Fund o greaber markel and houdly nisk and potental
dificutty in valuing partiolio instnaments held by the Fund. The value of a
Fund's holdings is also generally subject to the sk of future local, national, oo
ghobal econcmic disturbances based on wilknown weakneses in the markets
wwiich a Fund eveests. |m addition, it is rol certain that the U S Government
will inbervens in responrse 1o a future market dsturbance and the effect of any
such futaie intervention cannot be pradscted 1L & difficult Far itaes 1o
prepane Tor thee impact ol Bubuee fingrcial dovntuing, although companies can
seek 10 identily and manage fuhee uncertainties thicugh risk management
prCgrams

Ragulatory Risk Financial entibes, such a5 imasiiment companmies and
ienvestenent advisers, ane gertrally subpect to etenshe government segqulaten
and intervention. Government reqefation and'sr intervention may change the
weay a Fund is requlated, affect the experses incurred dicectly by a Fund and
the value of its imestments, and ket andior predude a Fund's abdity to
achiese its investment objective Government segulation may change
frequeently and may have significant adverse corsequences. Moreaver,
gaecnment requiation may hive unpredscablie and uninterded eflecs

Ogarational Risk An erestment i a Fund, hke any fund, can invohe
operational nisks anising from factors such as processing emors, human eemoes,
inadequate or faded intemal or extemal processes, Lalures in systems and
techaaloqy, changes in persanned and ercors caused by thind-pasty senvice
peewiders The ocourence of amy of these failures, emars of beeaches could
resylt n a loss of infoemation, regulatcey scrutiny, reputational damage or
other events, ary of whach could have a material adverse lfiect on a Fund
Witilie  Fund seets ta minimize such events thicugh conteols and oversight,
thene may still be failures that uld cause losses o the Fund

Cyber Security Riek Cyber secundy risk is the nsk that, as the use of
tichnatagy hirs become moie peevalent in the course of buiiness, the Fundy
hace became potentially more susceptble to operational and infoematian
secunty risks resutting from breaches in ober seounity. A beeach in oyber
security refers 1o both intensional and unintentional ober ments fom outside
threat acoes of internal resues that may, among otk thngs, chuse &
Fund o bose propnetary indormation, suffer data coenuption andfor destnection
o lose operational capacty, tesult in the unauthonized release or other
mitsuse of confidential infarmation, of otherwise disrupt normal business
operations. Cyber secunty falures of breaches may result m finanow! losses ta
a Fuewd and its Uritholders. These Failures or breaches may a%o result in
desipplions 1o business opsitatond, potentsilly sesuling s finarcial By
nterference with a Fund's abiksy to cafculate its net aset value, process
Unithodden bransactions of otheratoe transact business with Urithaldars;
impediments to radng. vickations of applicabde pevacy and ather laws:
tequlatary fines; penalies: thed-party claire in lifgation; reputational
damage; resbursemnent o ather compensation oosts; additonal compiance
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and cyber security risk management costs and other adverse corsequences. In
additean, substantial codts may be indamed in orded o prenint any ofber
incidents in the future These is also a risk that oyber seourity Breaches may
notbe detected. A Fund and its Unitholders may sulfer losses as a resultof a
oo secunity boeach related o the Fund, its senice providers. tading
countepanties of the issoes in whedh the Fund imasts

B.MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be sobiject fovanous nefting anangsments (" Matter
Agresments” | with seleq counterpanties. Master Agreements govenm the
terms of certain transactions, and ane intended to reduce the counterarty risk
assacutied vath relecam tantactions by specfying eredd protéction
methanisms and providing standardization that is mtended to improve fegal
certainty. Each type of Master Agreement gowerns certain types of
transactions. Dilferent sypes ol transactions may be traded out of different
legal entites or affiliates of a partinudas ceganization, resulting in the need for
mudtiphe agreements wath a single Counterparty As the Master Agreements
are speeilic 1o urmque operations of diflenent asset types, they allow a Fund to
clore out @nd net s nocal exposute to & counterpanty in the event of a defad
with respedt to all the transactions govemsed under a single Master
Agreement with 3 counterparty. For financsal reporting pumpases the
Stanements of Assets and Lishilites generally present dertvative assets and
lisbilities on a geoss basis, which reflects the full risks and exposuees prior 1o
netting

Matter Agréements can alia help limit coumepaety nsk by specdang
cedlateral posting arrangements a1 pre-arranged expesure levels. Under mast
WMaster Agreements, collsteral is rousinely transfened @ the total net exposure
o coraEn tandkschons {net af exishing collateral aveady in place) govermed
unider the refevang Master Sqresment with & counterparty in a given account
exceeds a specified threshold, which typically ranges from zeno 1o $250,000
diiending on the coottemarty and the Bpe o Maiter Mgrbenment Unied
States Treasury Bils and U 5 dollas cash are generally the preferred foems of
coilatenal, although other securities may be usad depending on the terms
outlined in the applicable Master Agreement. Securities and cash pledged a5
collavesal are reflected a5 35405 on the Statements of Assets and Labilite x5
either a component of Irvestments at value {securities) or Depasits wath
rounterparty. Cash collateral recenved s not typically beld in a segregated
account and a4 such = reflected a5 Babiliy on the Stmements of Assets and
Liabilives a5 Deposits from counterparty. The market value of any secunites
received as collateral is not reflected a5 a compenent of MAY. The Fund's
overall gxpodure Yo counberpanty risk can change substantially withen a shert
penad, as it is affectad by each rarsacton subject to the televant Master
Agreement

Maiter Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
(indhrdually ard collectely *Master Repa Agreements” ] qovem tepurchase,
reverse repurchase, and sabe-banback tramsactions bebaeen the Funds and
select countepartes. Master Repo Agreemints maintam pll:v.:.::sn;‘m_
amageg it things, infidlion, Soome payments, endngs of defauly and
maintenante of collateral. The market value of tansactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, coflateral pledged or recerved, and the net expasure by
counterpaty & of persad end ace dindesed in the Motes 10 Schedule of
Imvestmands.

Masber Secunties Fornwand Transaction Agreements | Master Forwand
Agresments” | Govein oeitan loeaaid setthng transacteans, wich & TBA
seourties, delayed-delivery or sale-buyback transactions by and

batween the Funds and select coundemaeties. The Master Foreaed
Agregments mantain proveion fee, amanyg other things, initiabaon and
confirmation, payment and trarsfer, events of default, 1eranation, and
mainbenance of collateral The market value of forward setting transactions,

collateral pledged or recenved, and the net expodare by counterparty as ol
petiod end ang dickesed in the Noses ta Schedule of Imvesimenss

Custoemer Acoount Agreements and related addenda govemn cleared
dexivatives trarsactions such as futwes, opticrs on Aatures, and deared OTC
derreatives. Such transactions require posting of initial mangin as desermined
by each relevan dearng agency which s segregated in an account at a
futures commissica merchant {"FCM”) regestensd with the Commodity
Futunes Trading Commission [ CFTCT) In the Unted States, :cr:ln:\rfp.u?"nsl-
iy b eeduced a5 credanees of an FOM cannot have & clam 1o Fund assets in
the segregated acooent. Portability of exposure in the event of an FCM
detault scenan further reduces msk 1o the Funds. Variation mangn, o
changirs in marke? value, ane ljl'nrl.:u'.‘;'-.':-:l:hn;l'd daily, but may nod be
nethed between futures and deared OTC derhvatives unlass the parties have
agreed to @ separate arangement in respect of fund mangineng The market
wilue o aocumulated untealged appnecation [def'ri_lul'mi_ i fmangn
pasted, and aey unserthed vanabon margin a5 of pencd end are didosed in
the Notes to Schedule of Investments.

International Swaps and Demvatives Assecation, Inc Master Agreements and
Credit Suppon Annexes (" B0A Master Agreements” } govern bilateral 0TC
dexivative transactions entered into by the Funds with select counderparties
B0 Masied Agreements maintan prsisions for el obligations,
repnesenlations, ageeements, collaberal posting and events of default o
termination. Events of termenation include conditions that may entitle
courtematies 10 elect to teminate eary and cause setthernent of all
outilanding Transacions under the applicable 1308 Mirites Agreement. Ay
election to terminate early could be matenal to the financal statements. The
G0A Master Agreement may contain additional provisions that add
coursepaety pratection bevand coverage of exsting daly sxpoture if the
countedpasty has a declne i credit guality below a predefined level oo as
required by requlation Similarly, if required by regulation, a Fund may be
eequired 1o past additionsd collateral beyand coverage of daily mpoture
These amounts, i any, may [or i cequired by lawe, wall) be seqreqated with a
third-party oustodian To the extent a Fund 5 required by requlation to post
additicnal coliateral beyond coverage of dady exposure, i could potentially
mcur Costs, imchuding in peocuring eligible assets to meet collseral
equinemsents, assocated with such posing The market value of OTC
financial derrratmve instruments, collaterad recenned or pledged, and net
exposane by ooumerpaty a5 of pencd end are dischosed in the Nates 10
Schedule of krvestments

Ml Rigpirt | Cctsbet 71, 2007
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Notes to Financial Statements co Oetaber 31, 2079

8. FEES AND EXPENSES

wing Bees payable at the falloweng annual rates (stated as a percenttage of the average dally net assets of each Fusd, or Class, if

Fund Managasant Advisany Administrative Agency Destr ibution
MMCO Bermnda Emerging Markets Bosd Fund |1

= et UPY) - 0F5% 0.20% -
u gl JJPY, Hedged) = 035% 020% =
FIMCO Bermwds Global Aggregats Ex-Japsn Besd Fund (M) = 0'Z3% 020% =

MMCO Bermda Income Fend &
s FUPYi - - - -
= FRIED - -
= JUPT)

= Jus0| - - - —
= K S0

= W UPY Rebwiuory | 0TE% - - DEEY
w W USD Advieanyd IT5% 05% IE5%
*  HWFM

= N {E0) - - - —

= NN SO

= Piuey HEEN = = < nE5Y,
SR LY ] - —~

= R U

= RS DES - 020% -

= 5 LUPY)

= SiEny ES% = (iRl -

v 5SS - -

= T PP o

s U2 e - - —

=  WUsD| D% 0%

- NUPT 6% - - =

. s - -
= YR
= ¥ S0p - — — -
= IR
PIMEO Bermads Merigage Oppartanities Fend
= lanl LPY Hedgedh L _
= JUPT)
= JUSD) - — — -
= usd
PIMCO Bermuds U5 High Yoald Fand 1| (M) - 35% 0% -
PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
= UsD [40% 010%
FIMCD Warld High Incema 0% = = 010%

Ml Ripirtl | Detsber 71, 2007
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Notes to Financial Statements

f a w r wh (3w g x
v A v c ¥ r
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i
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r
"
s ¥ Falma x5 T » . ¥ r
L i E; i ' 8 i B P ¥ C E

AR
Wiy,

ST and [

equited by the Trust and apphcable
eases resuling from an increase im ret

1 e

Fund. FIMCO, and mat Un
assebs. Inaddi with

ke Aboe, ol
abe in fapan, is paid a fee Trom the lapanese investment Trusts of other emestment vehides that in
e it for 1k senices, a5 applcable

| Lames and govemmenial fees;

) Clarsses), PRMCO Core Income Covporate Bond Fund 2020-10 and PIMCO Workd High
4 1o the pioids 6

y b 1 F
lated party fes

H ang ) al Al

> related party, ff amy, ane

mounts, if arsy, ang deciesed oh the 318

ment AG, a related pasty of the Trust, owned 0.013% cf the net assets of PINCD Bermuda Dynamic Mults-Asset Strategy Fund and 0.014% of

SEcunt e Trofn of 1o
designed to ensure
/ing & common adviser for
4 in purchaes

I

il Loy Dermtn bcome Fund

Misnil Rupint | Detsbet 31, 2003
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

e

Changes in Units of beneficial imterest were as follows (units and amounts in thousands™)

Yaar Emdsd Viedd Enchisd Year Ended Wear Ended

October 31, 3033 Octobar 31, MR35 October 31, 700 Ochober 31, 313

UhniEs At Uniis Ao Lirts. AiTeoairt Uniis AUt
[Fcwipty for onity woid 318 % B33 WA L1 Wik WA Hik Wik
m ik m m 5 4 184 m Hik
FIUSO} m HiA s 3 Nk WA Mi& m
P MK ik 4 160 Wik WA i ("
g L L} 7 1583 Nk WA HiL Wik
m [ WA m [ T Mk Wk
HiK Hia [T m Wi WA n 184
m [ 3 168 A A i ik
Wik Wik Nl Hia P 447 Hu (1)
Hih Wik NE W' - 1 51¥ Hu, Wik
Hik NIk [T Hix 1w 138 MK m
m Wil n i i WA s HiA
N ik Hith W MK K L1 MK
I Wi [T m 1 ] M Nl
I [ s 5254 fik [ IS ik
Rk Hik N Hig 15 185 K &
Hih Wik NE K a0 2917 Hu, Wik
Hik NIk [T MK fik TR ] 5162

m Wik 22 13 A WA M3 Wk
Wik Wik Nk Wik w2 1|3 Mk Hik
HiA Kih NE WK i1 T Wik Hik
Hik Hik [ T [ER 1,130 T Hik
m Kk ] T Wi W i3 Hil
ikl V51,008 L Wi Kk [ Wik Wik
HiA ik M M 1535 LB MY Hik
[ ik 11,8080 TR RE0 Nt [ T} M
S HiA KA e i i WA MR WA
HiA WA &1 o] Wi WA M WA
Kk Kk Na L1 15} 381 LY K&
m Hid i m o) oS T MK m

Misnil Rupint | Detsbet 31, 2003
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

Year Erced Your Endied Year Endet Wear Enced

Oetober 3, 2023 Oetolar 1, 223 Celober 3, T3 October 3, 2023
ity Armount Unitz Amaount Units. Amecunt Units Amaunt
Wik Wik Nz Wi L WA B & imAm
ik Wik (e O R L ] Wik [ Hi ik
NIk Wk M ML [t TR T L M Wy
WA WA N'A W ] Ll vi g LU Hi#
Wik Kk L Wi B {7,580 HiK Rk
Wik ik -] 08,385 Wik WA Wi Wiy
040N % (MS0ERH IBEH 4 [5LIBD 2534 & (56900 @ne 8 f5,46T]
Year Ended Yeu Ended Wear Ended Year Ended
Ociober 31, 2023 Octoker 31, 2023 Sclober 21, 7023 Cotober 3, 2022
g Arraiint Units LT T Ureta Ameunt Uit Amaunil
ik Kk W m Wik WA M o EIES
ik Wk NiE i Ficc LN (Y HA
NIk ik N N L] 51,173 Wik Wi
£ 1 BED NE qu Hik L Hiu Wik
Hik Wik B 15,1550 Wik WA ] bk
NIk Wik T s i TFL50E M iy
i Wik Wik N'a, L] 3 33 Wik Wik
| LI 15401 138,600 N Wk Wik KA Mk Wik
Wt ircreaen [dicroanal
reaading an Fund unt
Trares e W8 § G37H B b 4.6 b | N Lrt] §
Year Ended Year Ended Wear Ended ‘Wear Ended
Ociober 31, 2023 Ocobar 31, 2023 Oclober 31, 2023 October 3, 2123
Linits Asnoint Units LT T Urets ATt Units Aol
Rewpts For onty pold et 4 M8 157 i IRME HEEIG § LEHEW Hig
F LI HIK Wik N's Wi L0 A 1,808 [
FILSD) Wik Wik N 1Y KA KA 2140
JEP NIk Wik M MK Hik WA L]
J I HiA WA N W LI KA 4
HIk Rk NL Wi Kk L ]
HiA Hak N N Wik WA 1350
Ty Rik N iy WA KA 14,800
NIk ik [T N Wik [ 1,743
Wik Hik N& W L) KA 1,767
Wik L N WA Wik L] ]
Hik Wik Y ik Wik R {E1]
NIk ik N T Wik KA 1,957
Hid KA WA Hid Wik [ 1 i)

Misnil Rupint | Detsbet 31, 2003
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

Year Ended Yau Ended Year Ended Year Ended
October 3, 2023 Octobar 11, 2023 Cctober 11, 1023 October 1, 2123
Uit Asmcunt Units Amount Urats Amourt Units Amsunt
T Wik Wik [T Wil Wik WA CIE T
L] WA N'& W KA A HE s
KA R NL N Hik L 1 1)
X IS0 NIk Hik [ A K KA L 11,200
¥ ] Hik Wik Wi Mix Wik N 50 70,750
] HiA KiA NE LU} Kk L 1880 136,258
MiA bk Wik s WA W R W
Wik Wik [ ML ik WA T

Wik Wi [T} K KA Lo 12338
J LI HIA L N i, L R u
HiA Kid L N HiA RiA 126"
NIk KA T Hia WA KA i
Wik Kk MR Nk Kk KA % v
Coar ol omm redpwrnid TETIR T ] o - R T LLE T T e ] Hia
FLI7] WA Wik N LTHY HiA KA 3.3
0 ik Wik NIA ik Wik Kk £ Esl
JLg Wik Wk L] LU Wik L L]
ik WA Win Nis WA L) |15
ik ik L L1 Kk K A |
HIA Wik N MiL Hik Kik 1148 R
Ik NiA Na N ik [T o] 17,354
WA HiA N WA KA L kel WA
Mk Wi M N Wil WA 53N V4 E35|
oA Wik MR HiA Wik WA Ak .75
HIA Kik NE Wi Nk KA 13 00
Wik Wi W Mk Wik A {L-1]] L]
Sy HIA WA 1) HIA HiA W ] B4
TP I WA M Wig Wik i LR TIZEATE
HiA RiA N i Kk L (1]
HiA WA N L Wik R (=]
NIk WiA N Nis L [ et
WA ik A L) Hid L CE]
¥ U0 Ik WA MNIE Hia Wik Kl L Eol]
£ LI Wik Wik N& Yk Kk i 1]
Wit irroen [dacreasel
resaiting om Fusd st
iAo 3 8 BT | < b ] WIE- 4 MR Fo ke O B ]
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

‘ear Erded Yiear Endesd Wear Ended Faar Enced

Oclober 34, 2073 Octobar 31, 2023 October 31, 7003 October 31, 273
Lirins AErint Units LT T Ursts TR Unils LT
Kk KiA KR LE) Kk WA 308 LR ]
Wik Wik B3 §  BLTEE L1 WA W Wik
NIk Wik WA iy i Wiy Ry
ME ot ] 1] ML Wik L1 Mg (1}
2 ] N'A W L A LU Hi#
NIk Wik WA LU NI WA nA M
158 L) N2 N Wil KA HIE Wik
HrA K W H Wik L 5,350 TEAS
NIk Wik 555 151 58 Kk KA NiX Wik
Mk Wik N Uy bl Al ML N
LU Rik LU W [, ] I1, 128t ML NIk
Wik Kih WA N = 11,5011 Wil Wik
1] 12 N M Kk KA Wi Wik
¥ Whorid EE] 115,535 N L WA KA My Nk
Wet irzrease [derrsasy]
remsiting frem Fund umit
mmacten B3 d 18,538 B4 B A58 [ ([ 1 | i & A
aar Ervled Vst Endded Wear Ended ‘vear Enced
Ociober 3, 2023 Octobr 3, 23 Colober 3, 7023 October 1, 2023
Unity Aenount Unity Amount Unite Amount Unite Amaount
Racwgrn for onm il 2F 13Mm N N a (Fpa) W &1
oed i rwrwnetment of
fntribuzom Wik Kk K N m 2Hmd ] 5151
et ol niy rednened =] (12754 [T N (k=] PE.IrS 0] EATN
a0 KA KiA A I v Kk WA Hig Wik
Wit irerires [oaesaae]
resiong tram Fumd e
mirestTenn [T I | cr T N« ey s % LR B P
‘Year Ended Your Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Ociober 3, 2023 Ocobar 31, 2023 clober 31, 7023 October 3, 20123
LAnets Asnoint Units A Urets ATt iUnits LT
1277 ] HHS WA N Wik L 2 i 5
Wik Wik 5 3 vl Wik KA ni WK
NIk Wk ] (F] Wik KA W ik
Wik Wik 2 ] L1 L Wik Wik
Wik Wik 7 13 L ik LE) ik
Wik Wik ML ML ot 5] Hin Wik
Hik Hid NA L ] L2 M Wik
J DR Mik Rik ] n WA KA Mi& NIk
Rivmaal Papirt | Detsber 11, 2005
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 3

‘Wear Erced Yioar Endid Year Ended Waar Enced
Oetober 3, 2023 Oetokar 1, 223 Celober 3, TIE3 October 3, 2023
Lrity Armount Unitz Amaount Units. Amecunt Units Amaunt
Wik Wik 2 § 15 L1 WA W Wik
NIk Wik 1 ] Wik [ Wiy Ry
| Wik Wik b a2 Wik L1 Hig (1}
JTRY] Y Wik 4 Fall Wik WA M Hik
JEUE Wik Kik Na Wi 2 ] 108 HiK Rk
L
skt N Wik Nk N NI K RA W
J LALID Hik KiA 55 k) Kk WA Hig Wik
J Wik Wik 11} 208 Nk Lo W Hid
CAL NIk Wik 3 1] Wik [ Wiy Ry
I A Wik Wik 'l h Wik [ 1] Mg (1}
Y Wik N W 1 ] M Hik
LU Kk Na Wi 2 105 HiK Wik
R, ik ik ] {r7] Wik WA Ny Wiy
J N Ik Wik 3 {1 KA KA M NIy
| EER Nk Wik 7 75 Wik 7] LU LIL]
J iy Wik Kik v 51 Wik Kk Mik il
JATHY] ik Kk 1 58 Wik WA W ik
J LD ik Wk M uis 1 1 C1iY HiA
IComt of units redesmnd 138§ SAEMI N& LY Kih L i 5 M5
J RLID NIk Wik 1] ] Wik L Wi Wik
J BB Wik Wik 1% =] Wik WA Mg Wi
d Ty ik (1] 51 Wik A M Iy
J Wik Wik 11 i33m L0 WA Wik Wik
J EELIRI Wik Wik AR 1Ty ] ({21 '1r'y Wik
J GGER Mk Wik N N (1] (] MK Wik
i Mk Wik 15 1388 Wik NA ML N
J NIk Wik [ [t 1] Wik [ Mik NIk
d Wik Kk 18 o Wik L Wi K&
J WA L g (7534 WA KA Wik Hin
J TR NIA Wk I e ] Wik KA Wiy ik
JEUSE Mk ik N ik 0 13 Hik W
Mt irgroees [reerogsal
nesiting e Fund g
Imheas berd [l LT T 1 B = 1] (1 T 1 T ] (1T (i 4] [T 1348
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

Wear Ended Fead Ended Wear Erdesd ‘Wear Ended
Ctober 3, 2033 Cicholar 31, 2023 Cctober 31, 2023 October 31, 2073
LAnics AFrint Units AT Ursts TR Unils LY
Fwpts For anty woid | L -] KR L5 <] ¥ B3 HiE W&
| K HIA Kik NE L1 L KA 52 i)
JBUED HrA WA L] Mis Wik Rl 1,681 11,200
¥ | HIA WA ] WA HiA WA o ¥
P, Fadpad HiA WA MIA T KA A (] |
lassaad aa mweTe Nl ol
e MIA Wik LI N His L L &
1 I HiA WA A NIA MR K 48
HIA WA MR Hia Wik WA il
¥ HIA ik NE L1 Nk KA n
Lot ¢l wotm redparmnd (1] en LTI ¥ T | 550 15190 MR
NIA KiA K LU ) Nk KA rel]
Wik L1 Lo N Nk L) 2
WA WiA N (11} L KA A
HIA WA N Na WA KA i
Py, Mg Ik Kk N His Kk KA il
it Fereess feeroussl
iy e Fued Lo
s Ier i # .1} ] ] .44 [r.{ B (16T a8 &AM
¥iear Ersed Vs Erichind
Oclaber 3, 2073 Oicholar 31, 2023
Ui Al Units LT T
HiA KiA n i 515
[ 1 we N
= 130 MR Nis
418 A N'A L)
NiA Wik KA N
3 148 N
H 7 NA
1 B N
13 ] N
Rk Kk M
1153 15115 N
rd ] 34 5% L1}
15l {114} NA
(25 1238 NI
(LT T whés v 0
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31, 2079

13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

anits in ary maseial Itigation or arbitration proceedin 05 o d are not aware of any matenial lit Gatean of Claim pending of

Aisnil Rapirt || Detibat 31, 20
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Sehedule of Investments PIMGO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10

fimaunls in thousands®, ot rumber ol shasis, conlracts

ML
I HAL
L] e ]

JE BONDS &

astructurs Lid

EPA Infy

42000 do 02220008 ¥ Lo gre
Weodiide Finarcs Ltd
B0 dow OMOSHE k.1 ] 15
Tetal Aumtralia 1,167
Cost $1. 2335

AIRFORATE BONGS & NOTES 1.8%
Bireastis Lid
52500 dos 08112025 220 3
Bacards Lid
A 4500 dob DSYSTD0S 1,258 1716
Tistal Badruda 3358
Ceat $3.4570

CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 0.1%
omanry Lid
53755 den 12017004 m ..
Tistal Canads 294
(ast 4300

ONCPAL

AT LITIE
HIB Growp PLC
3% dow DAIDTTTS i 4354 4,250
Bank ol Ireland Greup PLEG
5000 de 1129702) 1500 1454
SMBC Avistien Capital Firance DAC
J50% do (TS 41 4050
Tatal lretand 13,880
Cest $ 19570

\TE BOND
Iatesa

3 250 o 323004
S 0717% dow DEDEGIM
Uniliadig 558

T BN e K0AE2Y
Tatal ialy

ot $0.7T%)

HALE BL) -

Nigean Matar Ca. Lid
SR doe DYNIPEDS

Niomuwa Holdings, Ine.
VA1 dun DNRETICS

i Tatal Japan

SHYMAN ISLARDS 2.5%

CORPOHATE BONDS & NOTES 5% st 16250

Park daraspace Holdings Lid.

5 A0 o (RS 210 208 R

Seapate HOD Caymin ABN AMAD Bark WY
& TS0 dos 010172075 e & TR do 02EINY
Tetal Cayman Istands BIZ) g PR T
[Cisat 85,197 LIPS e DA
: LeassPlan Carp. NV
v TEBONDS & NOTES HT5H o 12U
Olasske Bank A% S'lnp_thuruH'!'
5 375% tos DVEIAA 1,500 g ST dwe IACATS
Tatal Deamark ag el Netherhady
e 1,915 st HIE53400

A.T05% don DVIRDTS g i
BPCESA.

£ 50 don DVTL0Y &g Lim
Crndit Agricals S0

TSN dow ON17 7025 om im
Secita Genarade 5.0

& 500 don DVHIDS &1 3E33
Ttal Franca 15,783
Cast $16,779)

T mromparyay min

m

i

5500

1B

10

1

413

IH
LE ol

ERL]
623

1853

4313

2808

4 BE2
14,898

TIERLAND 3.7%
\TE B & NOTES 1.7% {

HATRLS & Trl
UBS Groug AG

25T doe DHE12005
TR dow 05247028

Tatal Swatredland
Cast 38,1121

HEEC Heldisga PLE
3803% due DVI102025

& T50F dob DETROITS
Imparial Brands Firance PLC
40 dee 0113005

Ueyds Banking Group FLE

4 50 den DI0A605

4 5005 do 11047004
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anm
1,500

4519
681

1,600

158
¥}

b

2H5
1658

ONCPAL
AT LITIT
L] Loei T

NatWest Groug PLC
4% don DATITNE LI 35!
Rells-Reoyen PLE
IR de IHIAREDS 200 ]
Saatandes UK Breup Haldiags PLC
| AT dow QVISHRS o i
Simndard Chanesd PLC
I TE5H: dee 05217005 400 e
Tiatal United Kingdom e ]
Caat $22478)

RITED STATES $80%

3300 o DWIRATEE L 18
bty Frnancial, s

& EYE% dow 03007024 4 500 43
Aiwi Capital Corp.

02007 dus DRI i 157
Hithnn Glehal Fending

25007 doe DVHIDS 13m 218
FBiviation Capital Growp LLG

4 K75 doa DBN1/2025 L3 1,554
Bowing Cu.

4 015 do DRT1202S s 1M
DAE Funding LLC

S duw Q220D 1,000 s
Ensct Haldinga. Inc.

65000 due DA TSRS 200 1,567
EPH Propesise

4 50 doe 04172025 1,300 1254
First American Fnancial Cop

4 500 doa | VESTIOM 1630 2.748
FirstEnsngy Tramsmission LLC

4 750 doh DVESTZS 1EM am
Fantross Transp & Infr 1 [114

B SO0 dow 150017008 B 2
Geneesl Matais Ca,

B K25 don DI 5100 550
Geneais Ensrgy LP

65000 doe 190172025 1100 182
GLP Capital LP

57500 due DST2025 250 M)
Gray Oak Pipeline LLE

15007 due | VSTIRE a4 5
Hoxt Hatuls & Resarts LF

0007 deg DETLAE 3 k1)
Hyatt Hotels Cerp.

S175% dow UTHDS 400 1950
Laa Vogas Sandi Corp.

2500 due DEZSEI2S B4 EDN
Mishevast Canmasctar Capital Ca, LLC

3500 don IAN12004 (0 1802
Nevernaarh Growp. Inc.

6.5 dow 1 VIBADET e 1840
MM Haldngs. Inc.

T A0S dow DET1202% 2000 2005

Bl Rapert | Detobar 31, X151



Schedule of Investments PIMCGO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10 iCont

L
AT WL
O L
Dmarga Healthcar leventor, Inc.
4 S0C5% do QSIS ] ERL ] =07
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.
1505 g OR300 6,105 L]
PRA Greap, lae
TA75% don 030172025 20 1802
Radian Graug, ne,
B EXS% doe DVESH2S 4000 e )
Sabre GLEL, Inz,
505 dob IS5 m m
Santander Haldings USA, Inc.
& 50056 dow 0ANITATES L) 480
Fprit AareSyatems, Inc,
T 506 dow DA/ VS200S 1.2 1,154
Starvosd Propanty Triat, Ine
55000 due 100172621 i 200
Synehreny Fesanial
4 5007 doa 07257025 1,000 &40
TuipAdwisar, Inc.
7000 due OVYS20ZS 1A% 1387
Uiniited Hirlisas 370021 Ciass & Pass-Thraugh: Trust
& VSR don DA/ET2TM4 L L1 |
Univigion Communicstions, Inc.
5 I05% dow (TAVSALNS 1548 1513
WICI Praparties LP
4 BY5% dow DEAS00S 21m il 1]}
Viutrs Opsewtions Cs, LLC
1 550 doa DIVESED4 400 380
'WEA Finance LLC
3 T do D9 72024 LI LEEG
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2022 10 31

PIMCO 2020-10
2022 10 31

* 222,589 32,843
0

0 0

0 0

1 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

TBA 0 0

2,492 368

0 0

225,082 33,211

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

TBA 0 0

0 0

0 0

1,054 156

0 0

72 11

0 0

0 0

18 3

60 9

118 17

1,322 195

223,760 33,016

241,628 35,652

0 0

178/367



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Oooooddoooooooooodod

0 0

0 0

2,300 339

223,760 33,016
2,356

94.98 14,014

179/367



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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8,231 1,214

0 0

8,231 1,214

0 0

1,175 173

0 0

1,909 282

294 43

0 0

3,378 498

4,853 716

(3,893) (574)

0 0

0 0

1 0

0 0

(3,892) (574)

(25,182) (3,716)

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

(25,182) (3,716)

(29,074) (4,290)

(24,221) (3,574)
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PINCO 2020-10
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4,853 716

(3,892) (574)

(25,182) (3,716)

(24,221) (3,574)

(117,004) (17,264)

(141,225) (20,838)

364,985 53,854

223,760 33,016
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2020 FASB LIBOR
Accounting Standards Update
ASU 2020-04 ASU  2020-04 2020 12 2022 12 31
2021 LIBOR
LIBOR 2023 30 2022 12 FASB ASU
2022-06 LIBOR 2024 12 31
LIBOR
ASU
2022 FASB ASU 2022-03 820
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2020 COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO 2020-10 PIMCO
10
2022 10 31
PIMCO 0.008
PIMCO 0.013 PIMCO
0.678
2022 10 31

PIMCO 29,442 88,857

250 3,302
PIMCO

2,063 4,178
PIMCO
97,560 2,379

PIMCO 121,667 153,576
PIMCO 4,410 5,517
PIMCO 10,938 12,360
PIMCO

927 3,672
PIMCO 2020-10 - 7,488
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. DRGANIZATION

Each Furd discussed in this repart {each a "Fund” and collectrvely, the "Funds™), which alst inclsdes each diass of units of that Furd {pach a "Class” and collectively,
the "Classes™), s a series trust of PACO Bermuda Trust 1 {the "Tnust™), an open-ended unit tnast established under the laws of Bermuda as a muls-series rust
pursuant b a et deed moeduted by Winchéster Global Trest Company Limited on December 1, 20032 (34 aménded leom time b hime, She ™ Trust Daed” ) Effectve &
of the chose of business (Eastern tme) on September 79, 2017, Maghes Tomtee Senioes (Beemuda) Limiced (the " Trustee”) weas apposmited a3 trustes of the Teust
Paafic Imsestment Management Company LLE ("FIMCO®, the " Manage:r™ o the "lmvestment Adwiser” ) is the spomser of and was responsible for stracburing the Trust

Thee Taurt 15 sudpect 16 requlanon and sopenvaagn as provided Tor in the Imeeiiment Funds Act J006 and related rules ielating 10 slandard funds

The teems of the Trust Deed conder wpon the Trustee, with the cangent ol the Manager, 1 powes, inthe Tuture, to establmk further Tunds in addition to the Funds
cusrently in opesation as of the date of ths report

Refesences 1o wnitholders {each, a “Unitholder™, and collectrrely, the “Unithelders™ ) i, or units of lor an imeesiment in), the Fund shall mean Unitholdess of the Fund
who hold units, or clamses of vriss (3 aoplicable), winch ane sesibuzabbe 1o thae Fund

The Funds peesented in this repert ae listed belbow

AMC] Brrvecdls Basi oo Fued A Offerned smly 1o Forcht work 3 “Frond ol Fusds™ sirutone, i delead i O roles of v Dvespm Tross Adestaon
PAMCD Bormends Bask Lo Fund B Japan, or 0 any sther presdeton

AMC] Bwirsedts Bask Lode Fusd C

PAMED Bermesdy Bask Loan Fond 0

FIMED Brroets docomt Fend

AMCD ereceds Dysame Man-Reist Sategy Fusd
PIMED Bermmends Low Duraton lacomes Ford

ANCD Erargeg Bond frgoms Fasd I

M0 Emargng Baad lecoms Fesd 0l

ANED Birregely Bask | ode Fussd (M) Ofarnd ooy B3 i st [0 Bl B2 0 eyl e D el vl 121 tuch R
PMED Bermeds Eromgeng Markrs Band Fuasd 1M1

AMC] Beriects Globad Agerogats Ex-Japa Bocd Fasd (M
M0 Berreasty bueoeras Furd |MD

PIMED B 1 5. High Yool Fronad | M1

AMED By LS. Hagh Yialdl Fand W W]

PMED Emargeg Bood frcome Fesd (W)

ANCD Barmesdy Emargeng Murtans Basd Fusd 3 Ot Dpanis ol QO S
PIMED Bormods Gioba! Aggrogate Evapes [Yen-Hedged: Baed fund
PMCD Berwsds Global Aorregate Ex-Japan Bosd Fand

FAME] Buerrely batomm Fond A"

PHMCD Bermos bortpage Opportestes e *

FIMGD Cotw brstorva Corperant Bored Forsd 2020-10° "

BMC0 LS High Yield [Yan-Hedged) Foed |

FIMICD LIS Hagh ‘Yiodd Fusud 11

AMCO U5 Hegh Yadd Suwiegy hnd

PHAACD LS High Yield Strategy Fund il

FINCD Warkd Hgh Isgamg™ "~

PMICD Stoet-Termn Mortgige lnoane Ofared bo Sapunume and athel memase Usis of the EUR, JPY ared U S0 Claizes are sHeced 4o totsd ovmizn in
b By iy of piobles ofer theeugh B dmtnbaner i Japan, wnd sy b effeeed 1o sthir ewasien o the
et of e Masager. Unizs of the EUR, P arad EESD) Olaev will bow rerisactond it iy thoms imessony wha an
Irea by e M

PAMCD Eraprgng Bosd (Ver-Hedged) income Foag O%eresd oy 22 Fured o Fureh type Japusese mveriment trests siganieed ender B Lanw conoerany | mssirnang
ANC] Erargrg Bond fniare Fund Trest ieed Iowwereae Compaty of Jiges Ul Eovmntrment Tiatt™] whach will cHee fhar ot 12 the puble 1
FIMICD LS Hugh ‘iedd ['-Husdpesd ] Foorsd g ithar by wary off pubdle aHnng or privace phesmeet asd which are managed by FUMCO Jagen Lod o o
PAMCO S High Yoedd Fured warely Igproed svethmaind nnl SsigEn il cornpaner andd pabact P rales of the bvminest Tio s
Fepgangs, Japs
= =) - i " . 2.xx ‘ot b = ~ g > r
' v g r : rx r = i .
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. = of T r
r . o8 chitor P i g o r Z
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of sigrefcant accounting polices consstently
followed by the Teust in the preparaticn of its financial statements i
conlarmity with accounting principles generally accapred in the United States
of America ("U.5 GAAP™) Each Fund is treated as an investment comparry
under the reporting mquirements of LS GAAP. The peeparation of francial
statemints in aoondance vath U8 GAAP requines management b make
estimaies and assumpbons that affect the reparted amounts of assets and
lisbilties and disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date of tha
financial stazements and the reperted amounts of intreases and deceases in
net assets from operations dunng the eeporting period. Achaal results codd
diffier from those estimates

In] Acwedred Funds The Trustes and Manager may apply all or a porbon of
th st of (1 PIMCD Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCO Bermuda Bank
Loan Fund B, FIMCO Bermuda Bark Loan Fund C and FIMCO Bermuda Bank
Laan Fund Dy {il) FIMCO Woeld High kncome:;, (i) PIMCO Bermuda Global
Aggregate Ex-Japan (Yen-Hediged) Bond Fund and PIMCO Bermuda Global
Aggregate Ex-lapan Bond Fund; (w) FIMCD Bermada Inoome Fund A and
PMACO Bermuadla Bncomse Fund D (v} FEMCO U5 High Yield {Yen-Hedged)
Fund, FRACO LS, High Yield Fund, PIMCO U5 High Yield Srategy Fund, and
FINICO U 5. Hagh Yield Strateqy Fund I fa) FIMCO U S, Hagh Yield (Yen-
Hedged) Furd 1l and PIMICO U S, High Yield Fund II; faf) PIMED Emenging
Bond (fen-Hedged) Income Fund, PIMCD Emenging Bond Income Fund,
PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund Il, and FINCO Emerging Band Income
Fund Il {each redered to herein a3 a “Fund of Funds® o *Acgueting Fund”®,
which imvests in other Funds] to the respective oredit of () PIMCO Bermuda
Banik Loan Fured (M (il) FIMCO Bermuda Emerging harkets Bond Fund (M)
[} FIVCO Bermoda Global Aggregane h—aapan Bond Fund (M) [} PRICD
Bermuda Imcome Fund (M ) PIMCO Bermuda U 5 High Yield Fund (M; ()
PINCO Berrmuadla U 5 High Yield Fund 11 (M) {vis]) PIMCO Emengng Bond
Incaere Fund (MY (redened 1o berem a5 an " Acguiied Fundis)”® Adry HE 0
applied wall be held in sisdh Acguired Fundish as i received directly. Whese
assets ane sa applied, the Acgured Fund(s) will recosd the issue of units to the
relevant Aoquiring Fund at the iswe pice per unit of such units and wal
reputchase such units at the repunchase price per unit of such units at the
time of repurchase Accordingly, the ability of the Aoguiring Fund to achiewe
it irvestment abpecteee wall depensd upon the ability af the Jﬁ:!lr..b!@
BAegieed Fund 1o achieve ity evestment objecine. There can be no asurance
that the imestment objectve of the Acguired Fund will be achieved

Ratiors shown in the Financial Highlights do rot indude expenses of the
Acpired Fund(s), See Note 8, Fees and Expenses, for Burther information
regarding fund fees, as applicable

[b] Securities Transactions aad Investmant lncome Securities ansachions
are recorded ad of the trade date for financial reporting purposes Securties
purchased or wold on & wher-isaued or deleped-delrvery barsis many be

settled beyond a standand sectlement period for the secunity after the rade
date Realized gans and losses from seusities sold are recorded on the
wentfaed cost basis. Deadend income is recorded an the ex-dradend date,
encept certan diidends Trom faseign seomites where the ex-devidend date
may have passed, which afe reconded a5 soon as a Fund & informed of the
ex-didienad date, Intenes] income, adudied fiar the accretion of drcounts and
amertzation of premems, is recoeded oo the accrual basis from wedement
date, with the exception of securities with a forward starting effectve date
whee interest income & recoeded on the accrual basis bom effecie date. For
cofrertible secuifies, peemiums attriutable 1o the comersion featune e not
amortzed Estimated tax liahilites on certain foesgn seouwities ase recorded
on an acorual basis and are reflected as components of interest income o net
change i unresized apprecation [deprecstion) on imeesiments on the

Staterments of Operations, as appeopriate Tax habdSties realized a5 a result of
such secuity sibes e refected & a component of net realzed gam (loss] on
ienestments an the Statements of Operaboes. Paydown gains and losses an
morigage-related and other asset-hadced secuities, d amy, are recorded as
compenents af intevest income cn the Statements of Operations

Dbt obliganons may be placed on non-accrual status and 1elared stenest
imcome may be reduced by ceasing current acouals and waiting off intarest
recereabde when the collecnan of all or a porticn ol inteeest has become
doubtful based on consstently apphed procedures. A debt obligation
removed from non-acoual status when the issuer resumes interest payments
o when collectabaity of interest is piohable

] Cosh amd Forsign Cummengy The fmandal statements of each Fund are
presinted using the cuimency al the prmary economic erdangament & which it
cperates (the “functianal cusrency™ ] The funcbonal curiency for each of the
Fureds is listed in the befow table

The market values of loerign securities, curtency holdings and other assets
and liahines are translaned inta sach Fund's functasnal currency based an the
cuntent exchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of senuities
and income and expense items denominated in foreign carencies, if any, are
wranilated into each Fund's rispective functsanal curtency at the exchanage
rate in effect on the ansaction date The Funds do not separately repaort the:
edfects of changes i foeeign exchange rates from changes in market prices on
secunitios held. Such chamges are included in net realied and net changes in
unrealized gain or koss fram imvestments on the Statements of Operations
The Furds may smiest in foreign cumency denominated secunties and may
engage in fedegn curmeney trarsactons sither on o 1008 (cah) bt at the
rate prvading in the curency exchange marker at the teme of through a
forevasd Foreign cumency contract. Realzed foeeign exchange gains o losses
arising ko sales of wpot foreign cusnencies, curnency gains or fosses resfized
between the rade and settlement dates on securines rarsactons and the
differere between the recorded amounts of daidends, interest, and foreign
withholding taxes and the fumcticnal currency equivalient of the amaunts
actoally recenved of pand are inchuded in net realized gaen o loss on Toreign
curtendy transactions on the Satements of Operatoss. Net unrealined foregn
euchiange gains and kosses arseng from changes in doreign exchange rates on
foreugn denominated assets and labilities other than mestements in securtios
el at the end of the reporting penod are induded in net change in
unrealized apprecation or depreciation on fossign cumency assets and
abilies Gh 19 Stabements nH'Ip:'qu;rA

T Met fsseq Value [ WAYV" ) and total resurrs of cermam Funds (or Classes
thereol, as applicable) are presented in the curnency for which the NAV is
repierted (the “MAV curiency”™) as detaled im each Fund's Qlenng
Memorandum (the “Oflenng Memorandum™) For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAY and the total return in the NAY aomency, the
beginning and ending NAVs are conwerted using the peviod beginning and
ercding exchange rates, respectnasty, and distnbutions sre commened using the
exchange tate at the tme of the distribution. See the followeng table for the

HAV currency of each respective Fund
. Fusetiosal
s AN Camecy &
FWED Barrusds Baok Loan Furd (W0 U5 dollr U5 dodar
FIMCD Bermud Bank Loan Fund &
*  FIB U5, dolfar UE dolar
= Jlm Jagorase e UE dofar
= JRSD SapurEn e L% dor
I EF G ot LS. dokar
s viEn Japariess yn IS ol
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FundTa MV hurctionl P~ NAVE Functiosal
PSMCD Bermusda Bk Lean Fund B FIMCO Barrru LS. High Yistd Fund 1 (M dagarera e LS doar
= Fikum hastralen defler B 5. dollar IPMCT Core incoma Conporme Berd Fund 20010
" Y [AICH Jemnese yen US. dollar ] [1:41] 15 dolly Usglla:
LI Japarese yen 5. dofar PRCT) Ermeeprg Bond Ten-Hedged| incoma Fund Japoen e U5, dolar
L Japaness yin S dolar PIKCD Ernergng Bond brame Fund Jananess e S dolar
= Y[AE Jeparess yen 5. doller PIMCD Ernergeg Bored bzares Fund (N0 U5 dollr U5 dobw
LI 11 S Jntess yn CER: PINED Emespng Bend incame Fund [
PSMCTH Eirmeta Bk Loan Fumel «  JiAUm Japeress yan U5 dollar
Rl e Jagucdas pe Lbn 2 = JiEn Japuanese o0 U, detar
PSMCTY Biprmla Bk Loan Ford 0 w  JICAD) Japenese e WS, dola
u Y Wi Jagtens yen 1 5. dolkar . JIChE* Jaranecy UE dolar
PAMACT) Burmuzda Dymarac Mults Ason S2ingy Ford «  JiDE Japanecs qen U5 dolar
= i Jagarese yen 5. dollar = JENR Jagarese e 115 doflar
=150 L5 dollar 15, dioliar = JiEFW) Jaganet 115 dol
PUMCT Bormadla Ermarpng Mharkouts Bosad Fundl M | LIS dollav S ek 5 ik daguris v LS. dollar
PSNACTY Bzt Emerging blarkets Bond Fund 11 »  JITAY] Japanesy e LS dolar
LI LY T ] U5 dollr PIMED Ereegg Bond bncame Fund I
= b Y Hesiged Jogures vin U5 dellar # JiEUA Jaganesa IS dolar
PAMCT) Bermcds Globed Aggregane Ex-Jepan {Yas *  JiGE Japaness v L5 dollar
Hesdped! Biord Fard ——— A il « D Japaret vin (15 dlar
PEMCT: Eermoda Blobad Aggrogate Fu-Jagan Bond IPMCT Shers:Term Mortgage income
Fard SACR T D 5 e T [ U dotae
PMCT) Bermuda Gobal Aggregate ExJogan Bord LI | Japaness e 5. doflar
Fend 1] N— E5. dolr LY, Hedped Jagarese 115, o
PIMCT Eerruda Income Furd U LIS dallai HE. dollar = IED US dolar 1 5. dollar
ML Bermuods Intome Fund A PIMCO LS. Hagh 'Fisld e 1 hnd | Japorwseyen | US dolar |
= Fuml Jagmnes yen 5. dolar PN 15 Hagh 'rosid [ YorHdgad] Fund I B il IS dodar
s FilED LS dolar WS dolar PIMCD LS. High 'fisid Fumd Japaness yen 115 collar
LI L Japaness yen UE dolier PMCD UL S Hach Yield Fuedl I dagorese 115 dolar
= JjuEDi JgEteis yen U5, dolar PINECH L5 Hagh osld Straesgy Fund
= KIS 15 dolae 05 deer = Jim Japere e U5, colat
" NP Mdvmory] Jepinean yen U35, dollar »  JLIPY, Hedgedi Jaganese yen 115 dollar
L M (ST Adraory] LS dolar 05, dolor . JUED U35 dollr U5 dolar
LI 1 ] JgmnEse yen U dollar L ] Japeness yn L5 doliar
= WIS Jagmrete yen 05 dolar » YUY, Hednd] S i LS dol
= N ED LS. dollar L5, dofer PIMCD U5 Hagh Yield Stradegy Fund I
s P Jaganess jen U 5. dolar = YALDI e 5 dolar
LI LY Jpanese yen 5. dofer *  YIBRL s i 4
= Rhum gt v 5. detar = Y{NOM| Jaguness e 115 dolar
= RS U5 dolwr U5, dofar «  Y{TRN Jagonese ymn 115 dolar
= ELEN Jogarese yen U5 defer PINCT Wiorkd High bcarss 115, dolbe L5 dolt
s T Jpanese yn U3, dofr * Effuctivs Aord |3, 172 the Cass changed s rama fem J (PLUEY 1o J CRH
LI <Y ] Japmires yon US. dollar
W SO0 " - "
: ;_J‘Fr.s‘_’ \lJI;ad'::m :g x ) Mubticlags Oparations Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
. ¥ !FI:I I '“a‘" WS delir rights to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
5 '|'|JF-'r' PR S dollar Fund, a5 apphcable. except for specilic asets and gaing a0d lossed designated
. YIEED R B dollar 1 & Class relating 1o curtency hedging operatans. [moame, mon-Class specific
. ZIEY Jmarets yen % doliar expenses, and nen-Class specihic realzed and wniealized capstal gains and
ML Eermath ncome Furd lersses ane allocated to each Class of unins based on the relate net assets of
5 RN deiradan defar 05 doliar each Class of the sespectve Fund, a5 apphcable Chis specfic expentsd
Y [rddl Jeinese yen 05 dolar cumently indude management, advisory, administratve, agency and
PMCT) Bermuds Lovwr Durarton dngome Fund distributicn {ees, where applcable
el s ] g s o) Diatribution Poliey The fofiowing table shows the anticpated freque
PAMCT Bermuda Morig 9 iy
P Bermada Merigage Copoctarities Fnd I detibistivns for each Fund, Distibutions | b Fund |
o st LIPY Heckoad] T H 5 dollr of deitnbistions lor each Fund Destirbuticss from each Fu m.‘rl.-b{' declansd
T i e U5 dols and distributed to Unitholders anly upon the suthorration of the Manager
" ::;[|5:|| Jipmress yen % dellar whnch authorzation ey b wdtibikd ant 1he Managers discretion
= |50 115 doliar 1 5. dolar
PMACT By U5 Hagh Yosdd Fured M} U5 dolai U5 dals
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PAMACO) Baemods Hask Lo Fared &
PO Barssuds Bask Lewa fond B
PMC Bermuda Hanki Loan Ford €

PARC0) Bormed Bask: Loan Fund [
PRACO) Bueemmids Incomma Fund A
= P
" Rl
L JIF
= s
W
]
N SO
& DM
L] X
= A s
" ¥ L)
= YiBE
FIMED Berruds lecoma Fund O
FIMECD Bermuda Morigage Oppernmstas Ford
= Jim
= JuED
I 1]
PARC0) Gmargreg Band [Fen-Hudgesd| Income Fond
FIMED Erengng Bord incoma Fund
FINCD Ervergng Bend incama Fund |

PR Emergng Bond Income fond Bl
FAMCT 5. Magh Yl [Yer Hdgad] Fund
FINCD U5 Hagh Yisid Fund

FINECD U3, High osld Stranagy Fund
FINCD 5. High isid Strategy Fund I
PINCD Warkd High Income

Declared and Paid Qu d

PIMCD Bermurda bcome Fund A

- 0P

L]

are nd Fai I

PR Bermuda Dyrame Mut-Saset Syategy Fond
PIMCD Bermurda Income Fund A

i

L] P LI}
[l R
FIMECD Short-Tesm Mortigage income
* HR
LI
= JIPY, Hedgad]
* =D

The Messger does not enpect ts declsne distribwtions with respeet to these

Funds jsr Classes ttreod, i applicablsl, but may, in its discrotion, deslars
wiiil pay devtaibutises io the Unitheldees ai sy Lima,

FINGCE) Barmusds Bank Loan Fusd WG

FICO Berrruods Emangng Mackets Bord Furd B

PIACD Bermuda Emergng Warkets Bord Fund 1|

PINCO Barmisds Global Aggragate Ex-Japan [Ven-Hedgad] Bond Fusd
PINED Beerrasds oted Aggragatn Ex-Japan Bond Fund

The Manager does nof expect (o declare din tributioes with respeet 1o thess
Funds (or Clazses therwol, W applicablol, but may, in iy Sseention, declare

and pay distribwlinns to the Unitholdars at any s,
PRMCO Bermuda Giohal Aggregate Bo-bigan Bord Fend (W5

PRMLT Barmuda income Fund A

= KDl

. M LY Advesaryl

L] U520 Achemaryi

. T

L v 1Y

= W0

CI-11 ]
PRMLD Bormeda Income Fund k8
PRULT) Bermeds Low Duratios Income Fund
PR Bermasda Mempage Dpportursties Fued

vt LY Hedged
PINLT) Bermeda 11 5. High Yiekd Fond il
PV Bormeda 113 High Yield Fund B (M
PR Corn brcome Dorporais Boed Fund 2010
PRACT) Emarpeng (Boad Incorne fend [MI
PRI LS. Mgl Yiokd [YmeHedgadi Fond B
PEMED LU S, Hagh Yield Fond

* By datributioes wath eespect tn Cliss U2 LPY] Lt of the: Fund wall be deciared in
accordanca with 3 ipther agreement betwom the Mansger and the meesior n much (lass

Distrbatiors, i any, will genesally be made from the relevant Fund’s {or
Chis's, |I'.:pp|-:..|{1||,': et imnstment Same. B additon, the Managet may
autherize the payment of net realized capital gains available jor dstribution
Additional dstributions may be declared a5 the Manager deems appropriate:
Destrbutions paid with sespect to any Fund {or Class shereod, if appicabile)
will reduce the NAY of such Furd {oe Class thersof, o applicabde) At the
descretion of the Unitholders, cash distnbations from a Fund (or Class thereaf,
i ipplicable) may either be rervesbed i additicnal units ol a Fund {or Cliss
thereal, if spplicable) o paid to & Urathelder i cash Cash payments wall be
pand in the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund (or Class: theneod, if
applicable) may declare further distributions if considered necessary in ceder
1o mardain 3 redsonable hevel of distriusans bar 2 Fusd {or Class therso!, if
applicable] In the event that there 5 inadequate net income and ret realized
capita gains to pay a disinbuticn of a Fund (o2 Class thereof, if applicable)
eequired by the Offering Memcrandism, the Mansger may pay & deirbution
consisting of @ portion of the capital of sudh Fund [oe Class thensod, i
applicable). Distributions nat collected within six years from their due date
will lapse and wall aocrue 16 the beneht of the relevant Fund {oe Class thersc!,
il applicable)

i) kst and Reparchase of Usits Subsequent o a Fusd (o0 Class thereod i
applicable} commendng business, Units of each Fund (or Class thereod, if
apphcable) may be ishaed by the Manager an a continudus basis at the Net
Aazet Value per Unit of that Fued {or Class thersof, if appheabile] at the teme
of such isswe, subjedt to the right of the Manager o its appoented agent, in
thee sole discrefion of the Manager, to tempaoranidy suspend such issue. Unless
stated otherwise in the relevant Oifiering Memorandun, for each Fund for
Class thereof, if applicable), the issse price per Linit for such Uinits wall be the
Het Asset Value per Unit deteminied on each Desling Day caculated a5 s
{orth beloaw under * Determanation of Meg Asast Valpe™: pronded thag il a
request to purchase Urits in & Torm acceptable to BEH is mat recesved by BEH
prior to 12:00 noon [Eastern time), the issue price per Uni of the relevant
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Fund [or any Class thevect, i applicable) shall be the Met Asset Value per Unit
disberninisd oo the rext Desling Day. In the G ol repurching of Units o0
terminaticn of the Funds in the Trust which are registered in Japan for direct
distribution in Japan, the Urits of such Funds shall be repurchased from
Unithalders in cash Ne repurchase in kind may be allowed in such Funds
Except & otherwise previded in the relevant Offering Memarandum, payment
of the repurchase price will be made by the Trustee or its appointed agent by
bank trargfer genesally within twe (7) Business Days after the Dealing Day
upon which the repurchate notce 1 recenved. of deemed 1o have been
recerved, by BEH, although under certain drcumstances, payment may take
up i eight {E] Business Diays after such Dealing Day Unless stated otherame
in th nrlevar Offering Memarandum, the Funds ae net subject 1o
subscnption or repurchase Tees, provided, however, a detnbutor appointed in
the parisdiction where a Fund is distrbuted may charge subscription o
reputchire fees in fuch amounts &5 agresd weth the Manager e the
Trestes

Il Nisws Betausting Proasuncamints sad Reguletery Updates o Maech
20200 the Finanoal Ace GURAIngG Standards Bosed (" FASE™ ) szued an
Accounting Standards Update ("ASU™), ASU 2020-04, which provides
optional quidance to exse the potential acoounting burden assocated with
transitoneng .m.r,'-‘:l;v—u the Londan Intechank Offened faze (“UBOR™) and
othes relerence tates that ane expecied 1o be disoontinued ASU 2000-04
effective for certain reference rate-related contract modifications that oo
during the pencd March 12, 7020 theough December 21, 2022, In March
2021, the adesrssiraior for LBOR anncunced the extension of the publication
of a majonty of the USD LUBOR settings to June 30, 2023 In December 2022,
FASE issued AU 2022-06, whch includes amendmaends o mdend the
duraton al the US0R vansition rdiel o December 31 2024, after which
entities wall po langer be permirted 1o apply the referende rate reform relied
Management is continuously evaluating the pobential effect a decontinuabion
of LIBOR could have on the Funds” imestments and has determined that it is
unlikedy the A5U°s adoption will have a material impact on the Funds’
financial statements

In June 3023, the FASE msued ASL 2033-03, Fair Value Measuremend [Topsd
EX), whoch aflects 4l ervlites that have investmens in equily Securties
measured at fair value that are subject to a ontractuad safe restriction. The
amendments in ASU 2022-03 daify that a contractual restnction on the sale
of &n equity seaxity & not corsidered part of the unit of accoust of the equity
sequrity and, therefore, is not considered in measuring the Fair value The
amendmenis alsa require additional dedosures for equity seourites subject to
corriractunl sabe estnction. that e mepured af far walue in aocordance
wath Topic B30 The efiectve date for the amendments in ASU 202203 are
for fiscal years beginning atter December 15, 2024 and intenm periods within
thorsee Tiscal yoars A1 this e, manadgemient is evaluating The implcations of
these changes an the financal stabements

3 INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

() Investmant Valuation Pelicies The price of & Fund's urts is based on
the Fusmd's NAY. The MAY of a Fund, o each of its Classes, as applcable. is
dhirter i fvisd by drading the tote value [:f[ql'.fp'lp rveslEnents g0d othid
assets atrnbutable bo that Fund or Class, bess any abilites, by the total
nureber of units autstanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Dy (s described in the currest Offering Memarandum of the

Trgst), Fund uriss are ond s iy wikued a% of thee clase of reqular trading on
the Mew York Steck Exchange ["NYSE Close”). Information that becoemes
known &o the Fands. of theis agenis afier the time as of which NAVY has been
caiculated on a particular day will not generally be used 5o retroactreely adjust
the price of a secutity of the MAY determined earher that day Each Fund

reserves the right to change the time as of which its NAY is calculated if
the Fund clises earer

For pusposas of caloulatng NAY, portiolo securities and other assets for
which market quatations ane readily avalable are walued at market vafue. A
market quotation is readily avalable cnly when that quotation i5 a quoted
peice funadjusted) in actve markets Tor identcal ireestments that the Fund
can aooess 3t the measurement date, provided that a quetation will not be
readity avalable if # is not elable. Markes value i generally determined on
the baea of official diciang prices of the List repoited sales poces. The Funds
will normally use pricing data for domestic equity seowities received shortly
alter the NYSE Close and do nat nommatly take into account tradeng
cleaanoes of setthements that Take place afer the NYSE Clase. Imasiments
for whoch market quotations are nof 1eadily available are valued at fa value
a5 debermined in good Fath at the Manager or persons acting at their
datection. As & genedal |:r||K||:|r'_ he Tar walue of 2 Lty af Glber d5set i
the peice that would be revesed to sell an asset of paid to transfer a habaty
in an erdely transacton between market partopants at the measurement
date: The Marager has adapted methods for vafuing securities and ather
F5sets i arcumstances whene market quotes are nat readily available, and
has the resporsbility bor applying the Fair valuation methods. The Manager
iy vtk Fund pnrl‘.-:llh:l secirilies for which markes QUTations ane fat
teadily seadable and gther Fund aisets utilzing inpas Tnom pracing senices,
quotation reporting systers, valuation agents and other third-party sources
{together, *Pricing Sowces”). A foreign {nonel 5.) equity secwity traded on a
‘.l;lw;'l exchange of on mdde than ohe exchange & r:.-p-;ulh vialied wiing
pricing irifermation from the exchange considersd by FINCO o be the
primany axchange. f marked value pricing is used, a forsign {non-L.5 ) equity
secunity will be vabasd s of the dase of vading on the foreign exchangs, o
thee NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close ocours before the end of trading on the
{oresgn excharge. Domestic and foresgn {nom-U %} fixed incoee securities,
-mn-n:}‘muc_w teaded dervateeds, and equity aphons dne nommaly valysd on
thie baesd of quates olitasned Trom brokers and dealers of Pricing Soutces
wsing such data reflecting the principal markets for those secunties Prices
obtared from Pricng Sources may be based on, amaong other things,
riormaticn provided by market makers or estenates of marker valees
otaired from yield data relatng to Ewestments or securities with smdar
characterstics Certaim fined meomi secunities purchased on a delayed-
deinyery buarsis ane matked 5o markey daily ol senbemint 31 the Torwand
settfement date. Enchange-iraded options, except equity optons, futses and
optiors on fubwes ane valued at the settlement price determined by the
eelmvant exchange, quotes obrtained from 2 quetaton reperting system.
established market makers or Prcing Sources. Swap agreements are vatued
on the basis of market-based prices supplied by Pricing Sowees or quotes
chitaned fnom broters and dealers, A Fund's imwesimenss in openend
management imestment compacess, ather than exchange-raded funds
{"ETFs™), are valued at the MAYS ol such investments

H a fareign [non-U) 5 ) equity securty’s value has materialy changed after the
close of the security's pnimary exchange of principal market but bebane the
MYSE Close, the seourity may be walued a1 Far waliee based on procedures
eitablished and approved by the Manager Foceign [ron-42 5 ) equty
securities that do nat Trade when the NYSE & open are atso vafued 21 e
value With respect to barsign (non-U 5.) equity secunties, a Fund may
detemine 1he Lar value of imvestments based on indmation peovided by
Pricing Sourges, which mury recommend (i valye or adjushmienls with
reference to other securities, rvdices or assets | oonsidening whether fair
valuation is required and in determining faiv values, the Manager may, amang
ather thcgs, considier qull’l:u.—n everds (educh may be considensd 1o incdude
changes i the value of U5, seoutites of seowites ndices) that eoour after
the chose ol the refevant market and before the NYSE Clese. A Furd may
wlilize modeling tools provided by tird-pary vendors 1o determine fair values.
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of loreign {non-U 5 } securities. For these purposes, wnless othenwise
determinid by the Marager, any movemisl in 1I|-c‘.|pp":|;.:br relenence index
of instrumendt {"2era trigges”) bebween the earlier dose of the applicable
fereign market and the NYSE Close may be deemed to be a sgnidicant event,
promptang the application of the pricing model (effectrvely resusing in daily
Fair valuations) Fareign exchanges may permit radng in fareign (non-U 5
equity securities on days when the Trust is net open for business, which may
risat in & Fund's portdolio imesiments being affected when Unithalders an
unable 8o boy or sell units

Senior secured fleating rate kaans Bor which an active secondary market exsts
102 reliable degree will be valued at the mean of the Last available bodfask
praces in the market Toc such loans, s pronadied by a Pricing Sendce. Senior
saqured fipating rate loans Tor which an acthve secondany market does mot
exsst to a refiable degree will be valeed at fasrvakue, which is intended fo
apprommate market vaiee bn valuing o senior secured Roating rate loan m
Fair value, the factoes considersd may indiode. but are mot limited 1o, the
Tellowing: (a) the ceditworthiness of the bormower and any inbermediate
participants, (b the teemes of the laan, (<) recent prices an the market for
similar haans, iF amy, and {d] recent prces in the market for instruments of
similar quakty, rate, penod unbl next interest rate reset and matunty

Imagstmends valued in uenencsts othied than the fenctonal curtency

of & Fund ane corvered to the funchional cutrendy wang exchange ra1es
ohiained from Pricing Scunces. As a result, the value of such investments, and
in tum, the BAY of the Fund's units may be allected by changes in the value
of curtences in relation 10 the funcional curnency. The valpe af imeeriments
traded in Boreign markets or denominated in cumencies ather than

the functional currency may be aflecied significantly on a day that the Trust is
nod open for business A% 3 result, %o the exnent that a Fund halds Teeeign
{mon-L1 % ) imvesimends, the vatue of those investreents may change af times
when you cannat punchase, redeem o exchange units and the value of such
imeestmenss will be reflected m the Fund's net caloulated WAy

Far vauation may require subseiive determinations about the value of a
secuity. While the Trust’s poficies and procedures are intended fa resuftin a
calrulation of a Fund's NAV that farly reflects security values a of the time of
pracang. the Trust cannol emure that Tar values detemined by the Manage:
or persons acting at ther direction would accorately refieat the price that

a Fund could obtain far a security o it wene 10 depase of that seawity a5 of
thie time of praceng (o indtance, i 3 foroed or deptressed sale] The poiced
used by @ Fund may differ from the value that would be realzed if the
secuities were sokl

[b] Falr Valos Hisrarchy U5 GAAP descnbes fai value as the proe that

a Fund would recenve 10 46l a0 a5et of pay 1o tramifer & habikty in 20 ondetly
transaction between marked participants at the measurement date It
establishes a lair value heraschy that prieitizes inputs to valuation methods
and tequires drschosse of the B valoe hieraichy, separately for each magod
cateqary of assets and liabilties, that segregates Tair value measuements into
levels (Lewel 1, 2, or 3} The inputs oo methodology wsed for valuing securdties
aié ot nistEsanky ah indicaton of ke ik msaciated with wmeting in thods
spcurines. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the Tair value hierachy are defined a3 faliows

= Level 1—Quated peices (unadjusted) in acteee markets or exchanges fal
identecal asets and labikties

= Leved 2—Significant ocher sbservable inguts, which may indude, but e
not limited to, quoted prices Sor similar assets or Rabilities in markets that are
o, guated prices lor sdenitical oo similar assets of Babilies in markets thay
are el Bcthve, nputs osher than guated prices that are obsanable lor the
assets or Babilites (such as interest rates, yield ourves, volatlities, prepayment

speeds, lows sevenities. cradit risks and default rates] or other market
oorobarated gyt

& Lol ':—E:;rl‘x.uill unabservable mpots bided on the bes inlesmatan
Srvailabile i the crcumitanced, Bo the extent obsenable mputs aie mot
available, which may indisde assumptions made by the Manager or persons
acting at their drection that ane used in determining the fai value of
rreiimnishtd

Assets o habilities calegonzed as Level 2 o0 3 as of penod end have been
transfemed between Levels 2 and 3 since the prior period due 1o changes in
the meshod wtilded in wiluing the eweiments Tearaters from Lowed 2 to Loved
3 are & result of a change, in the noimal course of business, from the wse of
valuateon methods wsed by Priong Sources {Lewsl 2) to the use of 3 Broker
Quete or valuataon technique which ulilizes ugraticant uncbeervable inputs
due to an absence of current or rebable market-based data (Level 3)

Transfess. from Level 3 to Level 7 are a result of the awailability of cument and
rehatde markel-baded data peoredhed by Pricing Sounces of ather valiaation
techengoess which lilze significant cbaervable snputs

I acrordance with the reguirements of U S GAAP, the amounts of transfers
inand out of Level 3, if matenial, ate disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Ievorisrnents for each respectnae Fund

For Fair valsations wsang significant unobsensable inputs, U5, GAAR 1equines
1o desclose bransfers info and out of Level 3 of the fair value hierasdhy and
purchases and sspes of Leved 3 assets and habilines duning the pencd
hdditicnally, U5 GAAP requeres quantitative infarmation regarding the
sgnificant uncbrservable inputs used in the determination of fair value of
sty of habilities categorzed a5 Linngl 3 inthe far valoe higranchy, In
Bocpedance with the tequirements of U S GAAF, a Tair value hietarchy, and if
matena, details of significant unobservable inputs, have been induded in the
Bates 1o Schedule of vestments for each respectve Fund

il Valuation Technigues and tha Fair Value Hisrarchy

Lawal 1, Lovel 2 and Lovel 3 trading assats and trading liabilities, at

fair vabes The valiation methods (o0 “techrigues™) and significant inputs
used in determining the Eair valees of partlolic seoarites or other assels and
Fdesiliths, cabegirized o Level 1, Leved 2 and Livel 3 of the fair valoe Feeranchy
ate @ Bl

Fined income securities mcluding <orporate. comvertible and municipal bonds
and netes, U5 government agendes, U5 teasury obigations, sovesmsgn
rsues, bank baans, oomeertible prefermed securities and non-U 5 bands ane
nommaly valued on the basis of quetes chtaned from brokers and dealers or
Priong Sources that wie bioker-dealer quotations, neported trades or
valuaban estmates feam thesr intermal pricing models The Pricing Sousces
siemal models use inpuls that are observable sudh as issuer detals, snferest
tates, yiekd oarves, prepayment speeds, credit nsksispreads, default rates and
quodisd prices {or similar dptets Secuntes that use smilar valuatan
techmiques and inputs as desoribed above are categorized as Level 2 of the
{air value hierarchy

Fined income sécunties purchased on & deliyed-dilveny basis of 35 4
repurchase commitment im a sale-bisgback trarsacton are marked 1o markes
daily untd setthement at the forward settlement date and ate categorized as
Lewel 2 of the Fair walioe Baerarchy

Morigage-related and asser-backed seounties ate usualy isued as separate
tranches, of dasses, of securities within each deal. These secunities ate also
nomrealy valwed by Pricing Sousces that use broker-dealer quotations,
reported rades o valuaton estmates from their intemal priong models. The
peicing madels for these seowites wsually oorsider tranche-level attributes,
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current market data, estmated cash flows and market-based yield spreads for
each ranche, and incompoarate deal collasenal performance, & available
Maongage-related and asset-bached securities that wse similar valuation
techniques and inputs as described above ane categonzed as Level 2 of the
fair vahue higranchy

Commen stacks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and Tinanod deerratne
instnimeents, such a5 futures contracts, rights and waerants, or ogitions on
Tutures that ane racked on 3 nabond secuntes {"ll:h.'I.'I:J{'_ ane stated at 1he
last reported e or seqtlement prace on the day af valustion. Ta the extent
these securities are actrely raded and valuation adjustments are not applied,
they are categorized as Level 1 of the far value heerarchy

Imeesimends valued {dencemnatad) m cunences ather than the functional
oureny of @ Fund ase comverted bo the functional cumency using exchange
rates (oumency spot and Borward rates) obstaired from Prcing Sources. As a
resutt, thie NAY of & Fund's units sy be aflected by changes in the value of
currencies in refation o the functional curency The value of secunties paded
in Foreign markets or denominated in currencies other than the funchional
cirrency may be affected signilicantly on a day that the Trust is not open for
business Valuation adustments may be applied 5o certain securities that are
splely taded on a foreign exchange to account for the market movement
bebwneen the cese of the foreign markes and the NYSE Olose These securitues
are valued wing Priceng Sources that consider the corelation of the 1rading
patterrs of the foreign security to the infraday tradng in the U 5. markets for
imeesiments. Securities wing these valuaticn adjustments ane clegorzed as
Lesoed 2 o thee Tanr value hierarchy, Preferred securities and other equities
traded cn inactre markeds or valsed by relerence to smilar instruments are
also categorzed as Level 2 of the fair walue herandy

Equity-briced Secuntss aie vadued by -'l'lHl:r.f.l:n] the lasl reported Lale o
settlement price of the knked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchange adjustmenis are applied to the last reported price to
corrert the bmbed equity’s trading currency 1o the contrat's settling currency
These imestments ane catégeeized & Level 2 of the far value besraichy

Investments in registered open-end imvestmant comgpanies (other than ETFs)
wal be valued based upon the MAVYS of such imvestiments and ane cateqonzed
a5 Lesvel 1 of the fair value hierzechy Imvestments in eniegistered open-end
imeestment companies wall be caloudated based upon the MAVs of such
imestments and aee consdesed Level 1 provided that the NANS are
obiervable, caboulabed dady and are the value at whech both purchirses and
sales will be conducted

Valuation adpssiments may be apphied %0 certain exchange traded fulures and
optians to account for markel movement Between the exchange settlement
and the NYSE dose These secunties are valued wsing quotes obtained from a
quotation reporting sysiem, established market makers or Priong Sources
Fangial derveatves using these valuation adusiments ane Cateqorngd af
Lesed 2 o thee fier vakue hiedarchy

Equity exchange-traded options and over the counter finandial derrative
instuments, such a5 Torward foreign curtency contracts and options contracts,
derrve their walue from undedying asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
other inputs or a combination of these factors. These contracts are narmally
waloed an the basis of quotes chiained from a quotation teponing system,
estabbibind market makess o Pricing Sources (normally detesmined as af the
NYSE Chose). Depending on the product and the terms of the transaction,
financial desivative instruments can be valued by Pridng Sources ising a
senies of techniques, mchyding samulation piting models, The pricing models
use inputs that are cbeerved Tram actively quabed markets such as quoted
prices, issuer details, imdsces, biddask spreads, interest rates, implied
wikatilties, yird cunves dnadends and exchange b Foancal demvatne

mestruments that use wmilar valuation techniques and inputs as described
abane aee cavegonsed s Level 3 of the i value hieracchy

Centrally deaced swaps and over the counber swaps dertve thes value from
underying asset prices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs o2 3
combination of these factors. They are valued wsing a broker-dealer bid
quatation of on marker-based pices provided by Pricing Sources [noimally
detarmeaned as of the NYSE Closa) Centrally cleared swaps and over the
courtis fwapd Can b valued by Pricing Sounces wsang a senies of Sechniques,
including saefation peicing modiels. The pricing models may use inputs that
are pbserved from acteely quoted markets such a5 the ovemaght index swap
rate, UBOR forwand rate, imenest rates, yeeld curves and credst spreads. These
securities are cateqoeized a5 Level 2 of the far value Bierardy

Witen a fair valuation method is applied by the Manager that uses signifecant
unohserrable inputs, imvestments will be priced by a mathod that

the Manager of pevions acting at their dinection etiemn reflects Tair value and
ate categonted as Level 3 of the Tair value hierarchy

Py peicing procedures set the hase price of a fived inoome security and
subsequently adjusi1 the price proportionally to markes value changes of a pee-
detsmmaned security deemed 1o be comparable in duraton, generalya U S
Treasury of sovereign note based on country of issuance The base peice may
B 2 broker -dealer quote, thandacton phce, of an miternal value a5 demeed by
analysis of market data The base price of the secunty may be e ond
pevindic basis based on the availabikry of marker data and peocedures
approved by the Valuation Oversight Comemittee. Sigrificant changes in the
unohierrable inputs of the ploy priang process (the bare price) ol neuht
in ditect and propaional changes in the fair value of the security, These
securities are cateqorized as Level 3 of the fair value Kerardhy

H third-party evaluated vendos pracing i5 not avalable or not deemed 1o be
ndeative of far value, the Manager may elect to obiain Broker

Queoses directly from 1he broker-dealer or passed-through Brober Quate from
a third-paity vendar In the event that faor wahot 14 based upan a hn}f?
sourced Beoker Quote, thise secunties are cateqocized o Level 3 af the Far
value hierarchy. Broker Quotes ane bypically recetved fram establshed market
partiopants. Although independenty recened, the Manager does nat have
the eandpaiency to view the underdying inputs which support the market
quotation Signficant changes in the Braber Quote would have direct and
propartianal :I'--r..]l:-g in the fairvalue of the wecunty

Felererce ingtmament valuation ettimates Tair valye by wtilizing the cormelatian
of the seqeity to one of mone bicad-based secunities, market indaces, andior
olher financial instruments, whose priang informaticn i readily available
Unobsercable inputs may inchude these used in algositben Tormulas based on
percentage change in the teference instumenis and'or wesghis of each
reference instrument. Significant changes in the unobsenvable nputs would
result in dine) and progmignal changes in the Tair valys of the ungy,
Tt secursies ane cateqorized a4 Level 3 ol the far value harandy

Commen stock equivalent valustion estimates fair valhse by appiing an equity
adpustenen! based on cbeenvable comparable companies” equity valoe
vananges. Significant changes in the urobsenable inpuss would result in
deed and propeetional changes an the fairvalue of the-security These
secunties are categorized a5 Level 3 of the Rer value Herardhy

The Descourted Cash Flove madel i based on fubure cash Rows aeniabed by
the investment and may be noemalized based on epected imestment
pesformance. Fulure cash flows are discounted S0 present value using an
appropdiate tabe of retuen, typically cabbtabed 1o the inital transaction date
and adjusted based on Capital Asset Pricing Mode] ard'or ather market-
based inputs. Significant changes in the unctrservable inputs would result in
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direct and proporional changes in the [air value of the secunty. These
SEecurilies e Cabegoiibid a5 Leved 3 of the Lag value huestarchy

The Comparable Companies moded & based on application of valuaton
musltiphes from publicly traded comparable companies to the finanoalks of the
subpeet compary, Adjustmisnls may be made 1o the market-demed valuason
multples Based on ddfenences bebaeen the comparable comparses and the
subject company. Segnilicant changes in the unobservable inpats wiould resudt
in dirgct and praportional changes in the fair value of the security These
spcuries are cabegotined &5 Level 3 of the fae value hieranchy

The Comparable Transachons model is based an appfication of valuation
multiphes from chservable tramacdions comparable S0 the security or
company, Adiustments may be made 10 the implied comparable rantactan
mudbpies based upan differences between the obsened ransadtions and the
subject company or secunity. Significant changes in the unchsensable inputs
waoild result in dineey and propostianal changes in the Tair value of the
security These securities are Cabbgonzed a5 Level 3 of the fair value hietanchy

Shart-term debt instrumends (such a5 comemercial paper} having a remaining
maturity of B0 days or bess may be valued at amonized cost, so long as the
amortzed oost value of such short-term debt instruments & approxmabely the
same 3 the fair vabue of the instrument as determened without the use of
amoriced oo valuaton. These secuntsss ane categonded a3 Level 7 of Livel
3 of che Tair value hietaechy depending on the source of the base pice

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

[a] Detayed Delivary Transactions Ceman Funds may punchae o sell
sequfities on a delayed-delrery basis. These transachons imoke a
commitment by a Fund to purchase or sell secunties for a predetermined price
or yiekd, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the oustomarny
setthement petiod When dilrped-delreery ransactian ane outstandng

a Fund will designase or secence & collateral lgusd assets & an amount
sufficient 10 mest e purchate price or respecihve obilgations. When
purchasing a seowity on a delaped-delivery basis, a Fund assumes the nights
and risks of cemershap of the seousity, indwding the nsk of prce and yield
flucthrations, and takes such fluctuations into acoount when determining its
NAN. A Fund may depose of o senegotiote a delayed-delmny transaction
afves it entered into, which may result in a realized gain of loss. When

& Fund has sold & secunty co 8 delayed-delveny basis, the Fund dees nat
participate in future gaims and losses with tespect to the secunity

[b] Inflatian-Indexced Bonds Certan Funds may imvest in inflatien-indened
bonds Inflation-indixed bonds ace fmed mcomst secunties whose prncipal
w14 petiodically adjusted by the rae of mflaton. The mmerest rate on
these bonds & generally Toed at issuance at a rabe bower than typical bonds
Over the lile of an inflation-indexed bord, however, ingerest wil be paid
based an a princpal value, which i+ adpssted for dlaben Amy increase or
decrease in the principal amount of an inflatan-indexed bond will be induded
a5 infevest intome on the $atements. of Operations, even though imeestors do
ol recerve their princspal unol matunty. Repaymnent ol the anginal band
prncipal upon mabweity (a5 adpsted for inflatien] is guatantesd in the case of
LS. TIFS. For bonds that do not provide 3 smidar guarantes, the adjusted
priveepal walue o the bond repaid at matunty may be less tham the onginal
prncipal

I} Loan Participations, Assignments and Oviginations Certan funds may
imoest in direct debt instruments which are interests in ampunts owed 5
lenders or lending syndicates by corposate, governmental, of ather bosrowers
A Fund s svisssments an boans may be inthe form of participasions in loars o
assignments of all or a partion of loans from thind parties or investments in or
originations of loans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by a bank o

ather financial irstitution {the *lender™) that acts as agent for all holders The
aqent sdminisbers the 1emr of the loan, a5 ',r.r-::‘l{d i 1k loan agreement

A, Fund may irvest in multiphe senies or ranches of a baan, which may ke
varying terms and caey different assocated risks When a Fund purchases
assignments foom lenders it acquires direct ights against the bomowers of the
hoans, These loars may indude participasions in bridge loans, which are loans
taken out by bormwers Tor 8 short period (typically less than one year)
pending arrangement of mere permanent financing through, for example, the
eauance of bends, Fequently high neld bonds msued fiar the purpose of
aoquisitions

Thee typeess ol loars and related imeestmeents in whidh the Funds may smest
include, amare others, semol laans, shondnaed loans (ncluding second
hen loans, B-Motes and mezzanine loans), whaole loans, commencial real
estabe and other commerncial boans and structured boans. A Fund may
cigursate boans of acguee direc infehests in lodns theough primadey loan
destrbutice andiar in piivate tansactions In the case of subordinated laans,
there may be signilicant indebtedness ranking ahead of the borower's
clibigation 1o the hefder of such a boan, inchuding in the event of the
benreowset’'s insobeency. Mezzanine baans are typecally secuted by a pledge of
an equity interest in the marigage borrower that owns the real estate rathes
Than an inbenist in & mongage

Iereeszments = koans may include unfunded loan commitmeets, whach ane
contraciual chigations for funding, Unfunded loan commitments may indude
sevcdving credit Tacilitees, which may obbigate a Fund 1o supply addibonad cash
10 thie boerower on demand | Urdunded loan commatments repaEsent i future
ohbligation in full, even though a percentage of the commitied amount may
ot be ublized by the bomower When imvesting in a kaan partiopation,

& Fund hag the rght 10 recetee paymients of princpal, mteres and any fess 10
whach it & entithed anly from the lender seffing the loan agreement and only
wpon receipt of payments by the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
ticiee 3 commisment Tee hased on the uwdrasn pofion of the ;Jnl:l-rlh.':.'lg
firee of coedit porsson of a loan In cemain droumstances, & Fund may recenve a
penaty iee upon the prepayment of a loan by a borrower. Fees eamed or
paid are reconded a5 2 componen of interest income or interest expense,
respectreely, an the Statements of Operatiorn. Unfunded loan comemiments
ate reflected 26 a lisbdity on the Statements of Assets and Liabdites

{4 Mortgage-Ralated snd Other Asset-Backed Securitios Ceran Funds may
irnvest in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities that diracthy ar
indtectly represent a panticpatian in, of ase secured by and payabls from,
Ioans on real propery. Mortgage-refated securities are created from pooks of
residential of commercial mongage leans, including mortgage laams made by
arangs and loan irdliiulions, morlgepe bankess, eommeraal banks and
oithiers. These secanties provide a mosthly peayment which consists of bath
imerest and principal Interest may be determined by lived or adjustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underbang mior b v 1 aflect 1he phce and
vodablity of a morgage-refated seourty, and may have the efled of
shartening or extending the effective duration of the security eelative to what
war anticipated af the time of purchase, The tmely payenent of prncipal and
intenest of cemain morigage-related tequites B quarasieed with the full Tamth
and credit of the U S Gevernment Poels created and guasanteed by non-
gavernmental issuers, including governmen tspanscred corperations, may be
ppocted by vanicws Torms of insurance of quasantess, but there can be na
assurance that private msuners of quarantors can meet their obligations under
the insurance policies or quarantee amangements. Many of the ks of
rnesting in mortgage-related seounies seouned by commencial mongage
bevarnes redfiect the effects of local and cther economic conditions om 1eal estate
markats, the abiity of tenants to make lease payments, and the ability of a
property 10 attract and metan tenants. Thise secuntss miny be s bgusd and
mnay exhibit greater proce welatdity than other types of mortgage-related or
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other asset-backed secunties. Other asset-backed secunties are created from
Ty b of arseets, inclding, but nat bm soed 1o, auta loans, accounts
recenvable, such as credit cand receivabbes and hospital agtount recetvables,
home exquity foans, student dnans, boat loars, mebile home loans,
recresational vehiche loans, manudactered housing loans, aincaft leases
cormputer leases and syndicated bank lparrs The Fund may imvest in 2y level
of the capital stneciuee of an issuer of mortgage-backed or asset-badted
seoiities, mehiding the equity or “brst bess” tranche

Ie) Cablataralired Mortgage Obligations ["CNOs") am debt obligasons ol a
legal entity that ate collateralized by whole morigage loaes o prvate
mirtgage bonds and divsded into classes. CMOs are stnechred inbo mudople
classes, often referred 1o & “tranches”, with each dass beaning a diffesent
stated maturdty and entitled 1o a different schedule far payments of prinopal
and inferest, indwding prepayments ChOs mary be less hgud and may exhibit
greater price volatility than othes types of mortgage-related or asset-backed

siCuhes

If1 S1rippad Mortgage Backed Sacuritios {"SMBS") are derrate mult-class
miigage secunties. SMBS are usually stnectwed with two classes that receive
diftesent propoions of the interest and princpal distributions on a pool of
morigage aitets An SMES vall have one cliss that wll recene all af the
inbeeest (iFe irenest-anky of "0 class), while the ot Class wall recedve the
entice prncipal {the princpal-only or “PO" dass). Payments received for s
are included in interest income on the Matements of Operatiors. Because no
principal will be recerved at the matunty of an 10, adjustenents ae made to
the cost of the sequrity on a monthly basis unsd maturity These adjustments
ane included in inteiest incame on the Slatements of Operaton Payments
recerved for PO ane treased as reductions 1o the ¢ost and par value of the
sarumities.

Ig) Collutaralired Debt Obbigatioas ("CD0s™) include Collateralzed Bond
Dbhgatsans (*CBCx™) Collmeralized Loan |:b|qﬂlltl'ﬁl:lll.-|.l:|'i--| ard otk
similarty structured secursties. CBOs and CLOS ate types of asset-backed
sacurities. A CBO i a trust which is backed by a diversified pood of high risk
below imestment grade Tmed ncome seountaes. A TLO i a st opically
collatesidaied by & pocd o loans, which oy include, amang others, domdstic
and bareign senior sevured hoans, senicr unsecured faans, and subcedinate
coepoeate loars, incuding koans that may be rated below evestment giade or
equivaient unrated loams. The msks of an evestment m a CDO depend Langely
on the type of the collateral secuntes and the dass of the CD0 in whidh

a Fund irvests In addition to the nonmal risks assoniated with feed income
st it chcusded elievwhine i this repor ansd the Funds’ D‘.ll,'un-]
Mesnarandum (2, prepayment hak, eradit nak, Bousity ek, market ek,
structural nsk, Jieqgal risk and interest rate nisk (which may be exacerbated d
the mtenest rate payable on a struchused financing changes based on
mudtiphes af changes in iptenest rates of imversely to chamges in inberest
rates)), CHOs, CLOs, and other CD0s camy additional risks induding, but not
limitad %o, (1] the possibility that distributions. from coll abeval seourities will not
be adequate 1o make nteredl of other payments, () the quahity of the
cofateral may decline in value of default, () the risk that a Fund may mvest
in CBOs, CLOs, or ciher T00s that are subcadinate to other dasses, and ()
thi complix sttucture ol the secufity may nat be Rilly waderstood 8 the time
of ivvestment and may produce disputes with the issuer o unexpected
imeestment nesufts.

[h} Payment lo-Kind Secuvithes Cetain Funds may imeest in payment svkind
secuihes [T FK™ ) PG mary ol the dsue this option a each inteiest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor additional
debt securities. Those additonal debt securites usually have the same terms,
including maburity dates and interest rates, and assocated ngks as the
ongingl bonds The daly marker quotations of the anginal bands may indude
the accrued inbesest {referred o as a "dirty pce” ) and fequire a pro rata

adprstment from the uneealized appreciation or deprediation on imvestments
10 imeeds recereabibe on the Stasements of Asbets and Liabilites

i Rastricind Sexurities Certain Funds smay hald imvestments that ae subjec
1o hagal oo contractual restrchons oe resale. These securitses may be sold
pumeately, but may be required to be registered o exempted from such
tigistatan beloee bixing $0hd 10 the puble. Frocane placement Securties ang
genetally considensd o be restricted. Dispodal of restrcted imsstments may
irvedve lime-gonsuming neqotiabons and expenses, and prompt sale at an
acceptable pice may be difficult to achieve. Restricted imvestments held by
the Funds st Oetaber 31, 2022, a3 appleable, are deicdated in the Nates o
Schedule of krestments

1§ Struetored Notes Certain Funds may imvest in structuned nates and other
related mstruments, which aze prvately negotated debi obligatiors in which
the prinopal and! of interest 15 determéned by reference to the performance of
a benchmark assel, market of intenest rate [an " embedded index”], such a5
sefiecied seouribes, an index of seountes or speafied interest rates, or the
ditferential performance of hwo assets or markets, such a5 indexes relleting
Bands. Stroctuned i mtramints may be isdoed by corporations, including
banks, a5 well as by govetnmental agencies The fers of such sirucrured
Irstruments noemally prowide that their princpal andfor intevest payments are
T boe arclpusted eprwands or dowmaands (hut ondinanky nat befew pen) ta
iellicy changes in the errbddid index while the stnscheed instnements ae
outstanding. As a result, the interest andfor pancpal payments that may be
made en a structured product may vany widely, depending on 3 variety of
Tactors, including the volatility of the embedded ndex and the effect of
changes in the embedded index on principal and'o! mterest payments

&) U5, Gavernment Apencias of Goverament-Speasored Enterprises

Cortan Funds may mvarstion snoprities of U S Goweenmint agencies of
gavernment-spansoced enterpraes U S Government secunties are
obbgatiors of and, in certain cases, guarantesd by, the U 5. Government. its
agencies or instrumentalities. Some U S Govemment seounties, such a5
Treasury bills, petes and bonds, and securitees quaramieed by the Government
Hational Mortgage Assooation (" GNMA™ or "Ginnie Mae™), are supported
by the full faith and credit of the U S Govermment; others, such as those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, sie suppaned by ke rlqlllql' the is4uer o
Esoreowy from the U 5 Department of the Treasury (the “U S Treasuy™); and
oilhers, such 36 those of the Federal Nasonal Mortgage Association (TFHMA®
ar " Famnsk BMae” ), ane supported by the drscretionany autheeity al the LLS
Goveenment to purchase the agency’s cbdigations. U5 Government secuntes
may indizde zera coupon seounties, which do nat dismbute interest on 3
curient husis and tend 10 be subjict 10 2 gréater rik than slensl-paying
secursties of samelar maturites

Government-selated quarantors {i.e, not backed by the full taith and oedit of
the U5 Govemment) incude FRBA, and the Fedéral Home Laan Mongage
Copocation {“FHUMC® of *Freddie Mac™) FRMA & 2 govemmént-spondoted
coiparation. FRMA puechases comventaonal (i e, not insued o quaranbeed by
any govemment agency) residential morgages from a list of approved
sellerafienacers which imclude state and federally chanered wnangs a0 loan
associatons, mulsal saings banks, commercal banks and credit unins and
marigage bankers. Pass-through secunties issued by FNMA ame quasantesd a5
1o timily payment of prngipal and imenes) by FRMA, but ate nog bahed by
the full faith and credit of the U5 Government. FHLME ssues Participation
Certificates (" PCs™ ), which are pass-through seunities, each representing an
undnidied ntenest in 2 pool of mesidentiad martgages. FHUMC guataniees the
timely payment af inbezest and ulomate colfection of prencipal, but PCs ace net
backed by the full faith and credit of the U 5. Government

I Bune 20715 EMMLA and FHLMC started imling Uretarmms Iv'ca'lgag{'-l-'-.-:u:l\.rd
Secunitues |"UMBS ™} in place of thew curent affermgs of TBA-shgble
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securities (the ~Single Security Initiative™) The Single Secunty Iritiative seeks
o suppait the overal I||;||.:||:|r,'n': 1 TE markes and dgre the
characieristics of PMMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Security Initiative may have on the market for TBA and cther morigage
backed sequrities ane unertain

Rifl-neansy srateges can be psed where a Fund seeks 10 extend the
expiration of matrity of 3 position, such as a TBA saaurity on an underying
asset, by clasing out the pedtion bedane exgatabion and opemng 4 new
podition with respect 1o substantially the same underkang ssset with & Later
expiration date. TEA securities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Statements of Assets and Lishilibes a5 an asset or lability, respectrely

{1l When-lszued Transsctiees Certain Funds may purchase or sell secunties
ot wihenisgued basis. Thessr ransacmons are made conditionally because 3
security, although aighorized, has not et been issued in the market
Transactions to purchase cr sell securities on a when-sssued bass imoive

a commitment by 2 Fund to puechase or seldl these seoities for
pridetemmened prce of yeeld, weth payment and delrreny taing place biyond
the customary satilement pediod A Fund may sell when-issued securifies
before they ane defvered, which may result in a realized gein ar loss

Im] Baak Dbligations Bark chligations in which 2 Fund may invest include
certficates of dipowy, bankers acceplances, and doed Bire diposats
Certificates of deposit ae negetiable cerificates ssued agairst funds
deposited in 3 commercial bank for 3 defirite penicd of time and eaming 2
spenfed retuin. Sankers SLOEplaNCES e m.‘w;d}l.]llll' drafis of balls of
exchange, nedmally deawm by an impeites or exparter to pay Jor spedfic
marchandise, which are " accepied” by a bank, meaning, ineffect, that the
bank wngonditsanalky arie 1o pay she Tace value of the indtrument an
mabutity, Fooed time deposs are bank obligatons payable a1 a stated
matutity date and bearing interest at a fiued rate. Fined time deposits may be
wathcrawm on demand by the mmvestor, but may be subject 1o early
wathdearwal penaliies which vary depending upon market condtions and the
remaining matuity of the abligation

5. BEORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The follewing disclosures contain information an the Funds” ahility to lend or
borrow cash oo seowtities 1o the extent peemitied under the Ofezing
Memararcum, which iy Eee vidssd a6 I,u;\m;wr\-g ar 1|n.m4:!"-g transactions
by the Fundt The location of these instruments 1= described below: For a
detailed descnpton of oedit and oounterparty nisks that can be associated
with Eamanwings and ather irending transactaons, please see Note 7,
Prencipal and Other Risks

|a] Repurchase Agreamants Certan Furds may engage in repurchase
agreements. Under the terms of a iypical repurchase agreement,

a Fund purchases an underbying debt dbligation (collaterall subject 10 an
obligaton of the seller 10 repurchase, and a Fund 1o resel], the obligatan ag
an agreed-upon peice and time. In an apen maturty repurchase agreement,
Ihere is no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
terminated by the Fund of counterparty &1 any time The suket value of the
codlatesal must be equal o of exceed the total amount of the repurchase
chligations, incuding interest. Repuschase agreements, induding acoued
mnterest, &e inchuded on the Stagements of Astets and Liabilmes. Infenesy
eamed i recorded & a companent of inenest inceene on the Statements of
Operaticns. In periods of inmeased demand for collateral. a Fund may pay a
few for recespt ol coflateral, which may result in intenest experrse to the Fund

[b] Revvmrse Repurchase Agreoments Cevlan Funds may entirn oo s
repunchase agresments. [ a teverse repurchase agresment, a Fund deliers a
secutity in ewchange for cash 1o a finandial institution, the counterparty, with
a simuaneaus agreement 1o repurchase she same o substantially the same

secunty at an agieed upon price and date. In an open maturity reverse
tipurchins Spioemenl, here & 0o pre-detemmaned nepurchae date and the
agieement £an be femunated by the Furd or counterpaty at any time

A Fund is entitled to recewe principal and intevest payments, if any, made an
the security defroened 10 the countesparty during the Sem af the agreemen
Cash recesved in emchange for seunivies delered plis acciued ingeress
payments ta be made by a Fund 1o counterparties ane reflected as a ability
an the Statermints of Assets and Liobilies. Inserest payments made by a Fund
1 counteparties are eootded & & companent of inerest opende on the
Statements of Dperations In penods of increased demand for the security,

a Fund may recene 3 fee Tor use of the secunty by the coanteparty, which
eyttt io ieenedt inccene 103 Fund. A Fund wall wagregle Htels
detemined 1o be hquid by PIMCD or will cthenwise cover its obigations
under reeerse repuichase agreements

k| Sale-Buybechy Cestan Funds may enter into finanang ransactions
sileiend 8 as “sabe-binbacks’. A sale-busdack ‘.rl.‘leu.n'll;]l.‘lnw:['.qn EOrEl
of & sale ol @ secunty by a Fund o a finandal insbtuthon, the counterparty,
with a simuitanesus agresment 1o repurchase the same of substantially the
Lo security ol an dgheed-upona pice and date A Fund 5 nat entrtled to
tecetie principal and inenest payments, i ary, made on the securty sol 1o
the counterparty during the tem of the agreement. The: agresd-upon
proceeds o seoutities to be rpurchased by a Fund ate reflected a5 a liabdity
on the Satemens of Assets and Lighilties A Fund well recogrize net inoome
eepresented by the price differential between the price received for the
transered secuity and the agreed-upan repurchase prce. This is commonly
eefarred to as the ‘peice drop’ A price diop corsasts of (i) the faregone imenest
and inflasonary inceeme adjustments, if any, a Fund woubf have otherwdse
maceved had the secunty not been sold and (i) the negotiated financing fems
between a Fund amd couniterpaty. Foregane intecest and inflationary income
adjustrents, # any, ae recorded &5 components of interest income on the
Statements of Operations Interest payments based upon negotiated finanong
e made by a Fund o counterparties ane recoeded a5 a companent ol
rilefest experrie on the Statements of Opesatons. In periods of increased
demand far the seourity, a Fund may recete a fee Bor use of the seourity by
the counterparty, which may esuft in inbeeest income to o Fund A Fund will
segregane atsets determingd 1o be laquid by PIMCO or wdl othensse coer s
cbbgatiors under sale-buyback transactions

0 Sheat Salex Certain Funds may enter info short sales transactiors Short
Lales are wantdcticen in which the Fund sells 2 sec urety that it may nog cvm
4, Fund may make short wales of seounites 1o (i) offset potential declines in
long pessations. in similar seouwities, (il by increase the Bewbility of the Fund

(i) fer imeestment, retum, () a3 part of 3 risk arbitrage strateqy, and (v) a5
pait of o5 ovinall portiolo management strasegies erchang the use of
derivative instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
the secunity scld short and delver it to the counterparty The Fund vl
ondnaily hkive 1o pay a foe of premium 3o bedrew 2 security and be cblgated
1o repay the lender of the security amy dwvidend or interest that acorues on the
security during the pericd of the loan Securities sold in shon sake transacticns
ard the dindend or intenest payable on such securities, if ary, ae reflecind =
paryable for shom sales on the Statements of Assets and Lisbdites Shan sales
expose the Fund io the nisk that it will be requied to cover its shoet position
at a tme when the security ar other asset has appreciated inovalue, ths
resultrng in losses 1o the Fund: A short sale 15 " against the bax” i

the Fund holds inits portiolio or has the right to acquire the sequrity sold
short, o secutites identical 1o the secunty sokd shoet, at no additonal st

A Fund wall be subject o addivonal rsks to the exen that i efijages in shor
sales that are not ° against the box”™ A Fund's loss on a shost sale could
thiegretically be unlimitad in cases where the Fund is unable. for whateser
s on, 10 close ouf its short postion
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{1 Lime of Credit AMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) entered mio a 364-
day senior unsetured revohing et agreement with the Bank of Toiyo-
Msusbisha UF), Lod ("MUFG") and other commescal banks oo be ytdized for
tempaorary purposes to fund Unitholder redemgitioes ar for other short-tem
liquidity purposes. MUFG serves as both a bank and as an agent for other
banks that se pares 16 tha areemént FIMOD Barmoda Bantk Doan Fund
M) pays Enancing charges based on a coebination of S0FR-based variable
plus a credit spread, The Fund also pays a Tee of 0.30% per annum an the
unused comeEiment amounts. The agreement was renewed on August 15,
02t aed capined onfusgust 18 2023 unless extenced of renewed. Thene o a
maxemum avalale commitment amount for PINCD Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (M) equal to §15, 500005 Prior to August 19, 2022, the maxmum
avalable commitrsent amaunt for the Fund was 545 000,000 and the Fund
paid a fee of 0:275% per annum an the unused comeriiment amounds
Commitment, uplront and interest fees of $137, 270 paid by PIMCD Beirasda
Bank Loan Furd (M) aee included & intene expnge i the Slatemses ol
Dperations

Dunreg the pediod, there were no bomowangs on this ine of oedit

6. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fedewnng descosures comain infomeation cn how and wiy the Funds use
finarcunl dinedneg indtnomints and how binanaal défacalre msuments
affiect the Funds” financal position, results of aperations ard cash Tiows, The
location and fair value amounits of these instruments on the Statements of
Aggets and Ligbilities and the net nealized gain (loss) and net change in
unreahned apprecistion (depreadtion) an the Satemenis of Dpeabions, gach
categarized by type of financial detivative contract and related risk exposure,
are included in a table in the Nodes to Schedule of imestments. The financial
derivatve insruments outitandeng as of perod end and the amounts of net
realzed gam {loss) and met change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation)
on hinantal dervative instruments during the perod, as disdosed in the
Modes 1o Schedule of Invesiments, sered 3t mdicatons of the wileme of
Tinancial dedtvative actvity far the Funds

|2l Farvard Foreign Currency Conftracts Cerain Funds may engage in
forward fereign currency contracts in connection with settfing planned
purchdss ar wales ol secunte, 1o hisdge the Curfendy oporsie isocated
wath same o all of a Fund's secunities of & pan of an imesiment stransgy, &
forward foreign curnency canlract is an agseement between two partes 1o buy
and w2l a curency at a set price on a lusure date. The market value of a
Ferwsand fonesgn currency conteact Nuctuates wath changes in Lonewg curiency
exchange rates. Forward foreign cumency contracts ane marked to market
daily, and the change in value is recorded by a Fund as an unrealized gam or
loss Realzed quns of losses e egual 1o the difference between the value of
the contract af the time it was apened and the value at the time i was dased
and ase reconded upon delivery of receipt of the currengy. These cantracts
iy et market nik in i of e unneglized o o reflectind an
the Statements of Assets and Liabilties. in addition, a Fund coufd ke exposed
to nisk if the counterparties ane unable to meet the terms. of the confracts or if
the value of 1he curtency changes unfaeorably ta the functional cureney. Ta
mitigate such nsk, cash or secunties may be exchanged as colateral pursuam
tor the temms of the underlying contracts

Cestann Funds, having a hedged Class, may also emer mio farward lecesgn
curreny cantracts desigred 10 offces the eflact of hedging at the Fund beeel in
order i leave the hedged Class with an exposwre to currencies other than the
furctional cumency. There can be na quarantee that these Class speafic
fesward foretgn currency contracts wall be sucoesslul

[h] Futures Contracts Certan Fundy may enef e fulwees contraos A&
futures contract is an agreement to buy or seffl a secuniy o other asset fora

se1 price on a future date and is traded on an exchange. A Fund may we
Tutuies contracts [0 manage /s exposure 10 the secuntes markets of 1o
miemenis. in interest rates and cumency values The primaey risks associated
with the use of futures contracts are the imperfect comefation between the
chandge in market value of the securites held by 2 Fund and the prces of
futures conbracts and the passibility of am dliquid market Futunes contracs
are valued based vpon their quoted dady setthement prices. Lipon entering
i1t @ futunes conteact, a Fund i neguared o degrosit with it futures braker an
amount of cash, U S Gowermment and Agency Obligasons, o select sovesegn
debt, in accoedance with the initial margin requirements of the broker o
exchange Futures contracts are marked to market daily and based on such
mnowemdns in the price of the conteact, an appropnate purpable o recenvable
for the change invalue may be posbed or collected by the Fund " Futures
Variation Margin™h Futures Vasiation Margins, if any, are dischosed within
cienttally deaned financ derrvatne instrumenty on thee Satements of Asets
and Luabdlites. Gains of losses ane recognized but not consadeced realized unil
the contracts expire or close. Fusures conkracts involve, o vanying degrees,
risk of bass in enznss of the Futures Vatiation Masgin indiuded within
exchange traded or centrally deared financial dervative instruments on the
Statemenis of Assets and Liabties

i} Optiona Cowtraete Certain Funds may write or purchase apbors to
erhance retuins oo 1 hedge an exiling pasition or Tutuie imwestesst. Cetain
Fumds may weite call and put opBions on securities and financial derivatve
irstruments they owin of in which they may irvest Winting put options. tends.
1o increase a Fund's eposune 1o the underkang instnament. Witing <all
opbons temds to decrease a Fund's expoduee 1o the underhying instrument
Vihen a Fund writes a call or put, an amount equal to the premium recefved is
recoeded and subsequently marked to market to reflect the curment valee of
the cption wiitten Thise ameonts aie included an the Satements of Asgets
and Lighilites. Premiums recenved from writing cptions whach espare are
treated as realzed gains. Premiums recetved from wniting eptians which are
exeroraed or chosed are added to the proceeds or offset agairst amounts paid
an the underying fulures, swap, Secunty of cuimendy transaction o determine
the reafired gain or loss. Certain options may be written with peemiums fo be
detemmaned on a futee date The premsgmns foe thisse apbons. ang based upan
iemphed volatihiy parameters af spechied teema A Fund a5 8 weiter of an
option has no centrol ceer whether the undedying mstrument may be sold
{"call” ) or purchased ("put™) and as 2 resuls bears the marked risk of an
unfavoratie change in the prce of the instrament wnderhing the witten
option There is the nsk a Fund may not be able to enter into a dosing
trarsaction because of an Wiqud market

Certain Fundi may a0 purchade put and call options. Purchising call sphods
tends 1o increase a Fund's expasure 10 the underking instrument. Purchasing
put opticers tends to decrease a Fund's esposure to the underlying instrument
& Furd pays a proesmum which m ngluded a5 an asset on the Statements al
Assets and Liabilites and subsequently marked 1o market to reflect the
curent value of the option. Premiums paid for purchasing options which
exping @ eoated & realized lodies. Comtan optices may B purchased with
peemiures 1o be detérmined on a future date. The presiuns for these options
are hased upan impled volatdity parameters at specified terms. The eisk
assaaated with puichising put and <all oot is limited 15 the premium
pliid. Préssnums pasd far purchising aplioes which e imbrised of closed ate
added to the amounts paid or oifset against the peocesds on the underkying
irvestrment rarsaction to determine the reakized gain or loss when tha
uniderhang 1ansacnon s iyt

Cradit Defantt Swaptions Certan Funds may waibe or putchase credit defauft
swaphions to hedge exposure to the oedit risk of an emrestment without
making a commitment to the underying instrument. A credit default swapbion
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is an option 10 sell o buy credit protection 1o a specific reference by entening
1t a pre-defired seap agreement by some sptcified date in the futune

Foreign Corressy Options Cetann Funds may wiite or purchase feeegn
ourendy ephions 1 be used as a short o long hedge against possbis
wariations in foeeign exchange rates or fo gain exposure bo foresgn cusrencies

Intlation-Capped Dptiees Certain Funds may wieie o purchase inflation-
capped opfang b ehhance mehams of fiar i'md.]:lm opporunitei The purpdis
of purchasing inflation-capped options is to protect & Fund from inflation
erosion ahove a cerlain rabe on a given noticnal exposue. A floor can be
usied %o grve dosndide peobichion 1o ievestments in sllation-linked producs

Iminrmst Rate Swaptiens Comain Fundg Ly W e O purchage inteedl e
sweap s which ate options 1o entet into a pee-defined swap ageement o
to shorten, extend, cancel or othersse modily an emsting swap agreement,
by same specthed date m the futers, The witer of the swapticn becomes the
counterparty 1o the swap if the buyer exerdses The ntenest rate swaption
agreement will specify whether the buyer of the swaption wil be a fmed-rate
receiver of 3 faed rate payer upon exense

Dptinns en Exchange Traded Futures Contraets Certain Funds mig wite or
purchase optioes on exchange-traded fulures contracts {"Fuiures Option™) 1o
hedge an existing position of futune evestment, for speodatie puposes o to
manage exposue o market movements. A Fulures Option is an option
cefiract i which the underkang instrament i 8 single futures contract

Dptions en Securities Cértan Funds may sibe of puichiase optons oh
securities 50 enhanoe returrs of 1o hedge an awsting position o lubse
imvestment. An cplion on a seowity uses a specified secwity & the undesking
insbrumen for the O Coflra

[d] Swap Agressmnts Certan Fumds may Brest in swap AFeements Swap
agreements are bilaterally negotiated agreemaents between a Fund and a
counlerpaity %o exchange o swap imvestment cash Ficws, anssits, feewign
currencas of madker-linked returrs at specified, futune intervals. Swap
agreements may be priately negotiated in the OTC market of may be deared
throwgh a third-party, nown as 3 central counterparty or demvatives deanng
organizasion " centrally cleared swaps™) A Fund may enter into asset, redit
defaidy, cross-cumency, intenest rate, total rehan, vanance and other forms of
SWE AFEREMENts 10 manage its exposwe to oedit, urency, inberest rate,
cormmodity, equity and inflanon sisk. In copnection with these agreements,
secufibes of cash may be sdentified a: collateral or mangn i aocoedance wath
the terms of the respective swap aeements o prowde assets of value and
recourse in the event of defash or bankuptopfirsohency

Centrally cleared swaps are marked 1o market daily based upon valuatons &
determined fram the underlying contract or in accordance with the
requeements af the central counterparty or dervatives cheaning ceganization
Changes in macket value, if any, a0e reflected &5 2 companent of met change
in unreakzed appreciation (depreaation) an the Statements of Dperanons
Diadly changes in valuation of cenirally deand swaps [ Swap Vanation
Mangin™), if any, aee disciosed within centrally deansd Snancial dervathe
instruments on the Statements of Assets and Lisbdties OTC swap payments
received of paid at the begirning of the measurement pericd ane induded on
e Statements of Asats and Liabiltis and eepresent premiums paed of
recetvid upon entering into the wap agreement o compersate far
differences between the stated terms of the swap agreement and perevading
market condilions {credit spreads, cumency exchange rates, intenest rates, and
othé tedevant Tacai |.|p1|dn| pemuims tecenadd Hasdy ane imbally tecnrdisd
as ligbilities [assets) and subsequenty marked fo market to reflect the cument
walpe of the swap. These upfront premiums ae recorded a5 realized gains or
losses an the Statements of Operations upon lemmanation of maturty of the
swiap A loguedation payment received of made at the termination of the swap

is mecoeded & realited gain o loss on the Statements of Diperations. Net
petiodic puyments recered o paid by b Fund aee included &6 pan of realged
ganns o losses on the Statements of Operations

For purposes of apphang certain of a Fund's imestment palicies and
restrichions, fwap agreements, libe other derrvatve instruments, may be
valued by a Fund at market value, notional value of Tl exposure value, bn the
case of a medit defiault swap, in applying certain of the Fund s investmant
pobcies and restrctans, the Fund will wilus the credi dedanh awap at ith
nationa value of its full expesure value (e, the sum of the notiona amaunt
for the contract plus the market valuel, but may value the oedit dedault swap
at market value for purposes. of applying certain of the Fund’s other
irrestrnint polcies and ninctions. For example, thee Fund miry value crisdit
dedault seaps at full exposure value foe purpeses af the Fund's oredit quality
quidelres {if any) because such value in general better reflects the Fund's
actudl ecanomic expodune duing the teem of the credit defadt swap
agieement As aresult, 8 Fund may, attimes, have notional expasure 10 a0
asset dlass [before netting] that i greater or lesser than the stated limit or
restriction noted in the Fund's Offering Memorandum. n this context, both
the retional amaunt and the market value may be posithe of negatie
depending on whether the Fund is seling or buying protection through the
credit delault swap The manner m whech cerlain securnitees of other
irdtruments are valued by the Fund Tor purpodes of apphing imiestment
poboies and restrictions may ditfer from the manner in which those
investments ane valued by other types of mvestons. Entering inta swap
gfeements reobai, 10 Vg d-o:ngﬂ_ dements of mlenedl credie markes
and decumentation risk in excess of the amounts recognized on the
Satements of Assats and Liabikties. Such nsks involve the possbilty that
thised sl bet md bigund marked Tee these aqreements, that the counteparty 1o
the aqpeemernts may defaulf on its obdgation to perfoem or disagres a5 1o the
meaning of contractizal terms in the agreements and that there may be
unlretnable l:!1.1|u]|"1 W e rates of B values of the aiset wpon which
the swap i based

A Fund's madmum risk of boss from countesparty credit risk & the discounted
net value of the cash flows io be received from the countesparty over the
contract's remaining life, 1o the extent that amound i pasitve. The nsk may
b mitigated by having a master netting arrangement beteveen a Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collateral 1o a Fund to cover a Fund's
exposaie ta the coumermpaty

T the extent & Fund has & peficy to keit the net amount owed 1o of 10 be
recefved fram a single counberparty under existing seap agreements, such
limitation anly applies to countesparties to OTC swaps and does not apply to
centally cheaned swgr where the counberparty = a central counberpany o
derteatives deazing poganization

Cradit Defanlt Swap Agreamants Certain Funds may enter mio credit default
swaps on coiporate, boan, soveresgn, U 5 muniopal or LS. Treasury issises 1o
provide 3 measure of prosecton against defaults of the issuess (e, to reduce
sk where & Fund o of has exposure to the referenced obligation) of to
take an active lomg o short pasition with respect 1o the likelihood of &
particular issuer's default. Credit default swap agreements involee one parsy
mating a stream of payments (referred 10 as the buyer of protection) ta
anather party (the seller of paotectian] in exchange far the rght 1o recete &
spechied return in the event that the referenced entity, obligatson or inde, &
speahed in the swap ageement, undengoes a certain credil mment. As 2 seller
ol protection on ceedit default swap agreements, & Fund wall generally recene
freem thee baryer of peotechon a fied rate of ingome trecwghout the tem of the
swap prowided that thene i no oredit event. As the seller, 3 Fund would
'.‘".Il.‘t'.rﬂ'l‘r'.llh‘f bevirage L0 itE portfalo because, i sddmon 1o s total net
assets, the Fund would be sibgect 1o invesiment exposure on the notional
amaunt of the swap
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IF a Fund i a seller of protection and a aedit event oooms, as delined under
the tereres of that pariodas swap agreement, & Fund wall either () pay 1o the
bures of protection an amount equal to the mabicnal amount of the swap and
take delivery of the referenced cbligation, other delverable cbligations o
underkng secunites compasing the rederenced inde or [n) pay 2 net
setlement anount in the form of cash of seouritees equal to the notional
amounit of the swap less the recovery vafue of the referenced chligation oo
un-ﬁrr?ﬂm] ECUIGS ompeising the referenced index. f a Fund 15 a Enryer ol
protection e 8 credit event ooeurs, & deflined undes the terms of that
partiodar swap agreement, a Fund wall either (il recene from the saller of
protection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swag and deliver
the referenced obligation, cther delwerable cbligations & undirhing
securities comprising the referenced indax or (i} receive a net settlement
amaue. i the form of cash ar sequrities equal fo the notional amount of the
sweap less the necoveny value ol the refesenced abligation or undidyng
sagurities comprising the referenced index. Recovery valses are estimated by
market makers considening either industry standard recovery rates or enlity
spectic factors and considerations unbl 3 credit ivent occurs. If 3 credt event
has oeosred, the recovery value is determined by a facilaated aucton
wherelry a minimum number of allowable broker bads, together with a
speabied valuatson methad, are used to calculate the setthment value The
ability 1o delrver other cbiligations may resull in a8 cheapest-to-delver option
{the buyer of protection's right to choose the deliverable obligation with the
lowest value (otlowing 3 credt event)

Credit default swap agreements on cradit indeoes imctve one party making a
stream of payments 1o anather party in exchange Tor the right to recerve a
spedfied retum in the event of a write-down, principal shoetiall, interest
shartfall o delault of 8l of pam of the eferenced ennmes O Sing the
credit index A credit imdex is a basket of credit instiuments or exposures
designed to be representative of some part of the credit market a5 a whole
Thete indices o made up of reference cedts that e judged by a poll of
diealers 1o be the mest liquid entitied in the credit default sasp market based
on the sector of the index. Components of the indices may indlude, but e
nod limited S, investment grade secusities, bogh yiekd secunbes, asset-backed
sacutities, emerging markets, andiod vanous cedy ratings within each sectes
Credit indices are fraded using credit default swaps with standardized terms
inclading a fixed spread and standacd masundy dates. An index credit default
swlp referenoes all the narmes in the sdex, and if there i a default, the cedit
event is settled based on that name’s wesght in the index. The compositsn of
Ihe indices dhanges penodizally, wsually every six manths, and for most
indices, emch name burs an equal weight in the index. & Fund may use credit
defaudt-swaps an cedit indsoes 1o hedge a portiolio of credin defauds swaps or
bonds, which is less expensive than it would be to buy many credit default
v s 1o achiese 3 similar eflecy Credit delaudy swaps on indices e
instruments B protectineg irvestors awning bands agaieet defaull, and
traders use them to speodate on changes in aredit quality

Implied credit spreads, represented i absclute terme, utdized in determining
the market value of credit default swap agreements on oompatabe, laan,
spvereign, U5, mursopal or U5 Treasury issues as of perniod end, if amy, ase
disclened in the Notes 1o Schedule of Imeessments. They serve a5 an indicasor
of the curcent status of paymentiperloemance cisk and represent thee Belihood
o risk of default for the referenced entity. The implied credit spread of a
particalar referenced entity reflects the cost of buyingfselling protection and
may mcludie updion payments requred 1o be made 5o enter inta the
agreement Wider medit speeads represent a debencration of the referenced
entity's credst scundness and a greater likefibood oo risk of default or other
cridit evenil CESurTing O defined undes the weems of the agreament Far credss
defady swap ayeements on asoel-backed secunties and credt indices, the
queted market prices and resulting vases senve as the mdicator of the current
status of the paymentipetormance risk. Increasing market values, n absclute

tems when comparned 1o the notienal amount of the swap, represent a
detenceation of the refeenced enitity"s credit Soundness and & greater

kelihood ot ik of default or pther aedit event ooouring a5 defined undar
the tevms of the agreement

The man mum poterinal ameoat of futune puyments [uhdiscounted) that

& Fund a5 a seffer of peotecton could be requered ta make under a credi
dedault swap agreement equals the notional ameunt of the agresment
Motonal amourts of each indandual eredit dedault WD agreement
outstandng & of penod end Tor which a Fund is the seller of protecon are
disclosed imthe Notes 10 Schedule of Investments. These potential amounts.
woukd be partially offset by amy necoery vallues of the respectve reberenced
hibgation, U|:.‘:|;r1 aymninls secened upon entening o Thr agresment, of
et amounts receved from the settlement of buy protection cedit dedauh
swap agreements enfeved inba by a Fund for the same relerenced entity or
enities

Interest Rate Swap Agrosments Cenain Funds ae sbpsct to inberest ate
risk exporsure in the noimal course of pursiang their imestment objectves
The value of the fued rate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease if mtenest
rates it To help hedge against thes nsk and 1o maintsn &5 ability 1o
genefabe moome at prevaileg marked rates, a Fund may enter into interest
rate swap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements mvolve the exchangs
by a Fund with ancither pary for their eespective commitment 1o pay of
e e ienest on the netional amownt of principal. Certain farms of intesest
rate swap agreements may include: [} interest rate caps, under which, in
retEn for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other 1o the
extent thal innenest rates exosed & speafied rate, or "cap®, (i) nterest rase
floors, under which, #n return for a premium, coe party ageees b make
payments b the other o the extent that inferest rates [l below a spealied
cate, o “fooe”™, fml intene rade collaes, uhdes which 8 party e84 2 Cap and
punchases & floor of vite versa in & atemgt 10 protect msell agandt inteest
rate movements exceedng given minimum of maximum hevels, (i) callable
et rade swaps, under whech the hu:mf pays an up‘.ll:.nl feein
consideration Tor the right 1o eadly terminate the swap transaction in whole,
at zern oost and ab a predetermined date and time poor be the matunty date,
) soreadiacks, which allow 1he inteest rate swap uiers 1o bock in the
Torwied differental (or spread) betaeen the interest rane swep rate and &
specified benchmark, or (w) basis swaps, under which two parties can
exchange variable inferest rates based an diflerent segments of money
matkets

Total Ratwn Swap Agroements Ceitan Funds may enter into tetal retumn
SWap agreements B0 gain o mitigate mxposure 1o the undezhying reference
Tonal neturn swap ST I SOMMIL Menls whide unghé of mutphe
cash fhowes are exchanged based on the price of an uderying reference asset
and on a foced orvanable interest rate Total return swap agreements may
ENGdE Commitments 1o pay inenest m r'l.:h.ml;r' for 2 market-linked retun
Oine counterparty pays cut the total return of a specific underysng relerence
asset, which may endude a sngle secunty, a basket of seowites, or an index,
and 0 retuen receses o foeed o varble rase At the IT.I.'.IIr.'.'r'd-!II'_ 3 bl G
Thoww 15 emchanged where the 1otal reowm i equacalent 16 the return of the
underying reference asset less a Bnancing rate, f amy As a receiver, a

Fund would recere payments based on any positiee Solal return and would
e prymients in the eent of & negatre 1o%al etum. As the payer, a

Fund would cove payments on amy posithe total return, and weould recese
payments in the event of a net negative total retum

7. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

fa) Principal Bisks In the noimal course of business, the Funds or Beguined
Fundis), il applicable] rade financial instruments and enter imo financial
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transactions where sk of petential loss exists due ta such things as changes
in thie market (market mi) or Tailure o inability of the other paity to-a
transaction to perform (credit and counberparty fisk). See below for a detailed
deseription of select principal risks

Fund o Funds Risk  To the eatent that ceram Funds imest substannally 21 of
theeir respective assets i Acquired Fund{s], the nsks assonated with imvesting
in these Fands will be dosely related to the risks assooated with the securities
and other imdestments hekd by the Acquined Fundis) The .'i‘ui.:"--nd the Fumds
1o achieve their respective investmend objectnes may depend upon the ability
of the Acquired Fund|s) to achieve ther respective imvestment obijectives
Thene can be no avsurance that the investmant chyectve of any Aoguired
Fund{s) wall be achieved The NAY of an Acgurring Fund will luchase in
respanse bo changes in the respective MAVY of the Acyueed Fundi(s) in which it
imvests.

In ghee normal oo of bitineds, Acgured Fund(4) frade financial insinaments
and enter info Fnancial transactions whseee 1sk of petential loss exssts due to
changes in the market {market k), or failure or inakelity of the other parly to
a tansaction 19 perfoem (credt and countesparty k)

Mkt Risley A Fund™s imeestments i hinarcal dematneg irsiruments and
other Srnancial instruments expase the Fund to vagious risks such as, but not
limited ta, interest ra%e, Toreign [nan-U.5 ) curency, equity and commedity
nikg

Interest rate risk is the sk that foced moome secuntses and other mstruments
held by a Fund may dedine invalue because of an increase in inerest rates. if
nominal imerest rates e, the value of certain fived income secunties held by
& Fund would brely decrease. A nominal interest 1a2e can be desonbed a3 the
surm af a real interest rate and an expectad inflation rate. Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unpeedictable, and a Fund may lode money d
Ihl":d"(hu'lr.ljﬂ A el anscpansd by Fund enanagenment & Fund many not be
able ta hedge against changes in interest fates of may dhose mat 1o da so far
cost of okther reasons. In addition, any hedges may not work as intended

Duration 15 & miasure used 1 deberming the sensitvity ol & ssounty's peice 1o
changes in interest rates that incorporabes a sequrity's yield, coupon, final
matunty and call featwres, among other characteristics. Comvenity is an
additaanal measune yied 1o undérstand 3 wn::l-,'nqr Fund's interes] cate
sangitaaty that measuees the rate af change of durabon i fespoerse 1o
changes in interest sates. Fased inoome secunties with longer durations tend
to be mere sensitave to changes in interest rates, wsually making them more
wolatite than securities wath shores durations. & wede varety of factors can
cause mtenest rates or yelds of U 5. Treasury senatibes for yields of other
types of bonds) to nse (e g, central bank monetary policies, inflation rates,
generl soonomic condlions, #C) This. g gy true undis curment
conditions because inferest rates and bond yields are near historically low
levels, Thiss, the Funds owrently face 2 heightened level of nsk associated
walh RIS iNGeEL Tated andfar bond yaeds This could b diven I:r:.' A vty
of factors, induding but not bmited to cendral bank monetaty poboies
changemg inflaton or real geowth rates, general economic conditions,
incrigsing bond issuanoes of neduced market demand far low i 2]
imcestments. Further, while U5 bond markets have steadily grown over the
past theee decades, dealer "market making” ability has remasned relateedy
stagnant Given the impartance of intermediany " market making™ in creating
& roburd and 5tve markel, med sfcome dedunti oe Cutienlly

fzang inreased wolatibty and liquidity nisks. Al of these factors, collectively
andior indwidually, could cause a Fund 1o lose value. |If the Fund lost enough
walse, the Fund eould face increated Unitholdes redemptions, which could
Turther impair i3 perioemance Adso, the Fund may be adversely aflected
when 3 lange Unitholder purchases or redeems Lirge amounts of unsts, which
£an Gtut a1y time and ey impact the Fund in the e manner & a high

volume of edemption requests. Large Unitholder transactions may impact
the Fund's bqudity and ret asdet walué Such ranisctiond may 850 incréie
the Fund's transaction costs of othérwise cause the Fund to perfoem
ditferently than intended. Moreaver, the Fund is subject to the risk that
ather Unithalders may make investment decisions based cn the choices of a
large Unithalder

To the extent that certain Funds may imest in seosities and instrumenits that
atr econgmically ted 1o Rusdaa, 1he Fundd ate subisect tovanoos nsks such o,
but nat imited to polincal, economic, legal, market and curency ks, The
risks indude uncertain political and economic polices, shat-term market
wiolatifity, poor accounting standaeds, comuption and cme, an inadequate
r['l]ulu!uc:.' systiem, and unpredictable tication . Invesbaen s in R an
particularly subjact to the sisk that further economic sandisons may be
impased by the United States andfor ather counbries. Such sanctions, which
Y IMpECT COMpantes in mamy Jectoes, indluding ensrgy, fmancial wenices
and defense, among athers, may negatresly impact a Fund's perdormance
andfor ability 1o achieve its imvestment abjective. The Russian seouribies
mavket, a5 companed 10 U5 markess. has significant price solatility, bess
lquedty, a smaller market capitalization and a smaller numbser of raded
secunties, Adverse oumency exchange 1ates are a risk and there may be a lac
of irvilablie curmincy .‘m:l:]m.] imgtrumity Imedstments in Russia may be
subject 1o the resk of ratisnalizatan or expeopration of asters. O, natural
gas, metals, and timber account for a significant partian of Russia’s enpors,
leaving the country vulnesable to swings in world prices

i Fusnd may have sgnilicant exposure to (ssusers in the United Kingdom. The
United Kingdom's wathdiawal fram the European Unica may impact Fund
reteens. This decision may cause substantial volatiity in foreign exchange
makets, lead 1o weakneds i the exchange rate of the Britsh pound, regult in
asustamed pencd of market uncerainty, and destabilize some or Al of the
wther Eurapean Union member countries and'or the Eurceone

Foemgn {ran-Al S | secunities = ths seport ame classified by the-country of
incoiparation of a holding In certain irstanses, 3 secunty’s country af
imcorparation may be different from its country of econcmic exposure

H 3 Fund irwests I‘|II|:‘|;'|f"II'|‘..'II¢|GI'|':I'ID|'|'|.| 5 ] curenciis of i Securities that
trade in, and cecenie pevenies in, Toeesgn (ran-US } curencies, o in financial
desivative instruments that provide exposure to foregn {pon-U 5§ ) oenendes,
it wall e subject to the risk that those cumencies vall decline i value relatree
10 the base curency af the Fund, of, inthe cine of hedging pesitions, tha
the Fund's base cumency will dedine invalue relative to the currency being
hedged. Cusrency rates in foreign countries may fluctuaze significantly over
shor periods of tme far o number of teasons, incuding changes i intenes
rabes, intervention {of the failure to imenenel by U 5. or foveign govemnsnents,
central banks oo supranational entities such as the Internatonal Monetary
Fund, of by the imposition of cuenency conbiols of other politicsl developrments
i the Usited States of abeoad. As & resolt, a Funds imvetmenas in Fareign
cumengy-denominated securities may reduce the Fund's retums

The market values of equities, such & meman stocks and prefermed securities
of ety related imvestments such as futures and optons, have histoncally
risen and fallen in penodic oycles and may dedine due to general market
concisions which are not specifically related 1o a partiodar company, such as
il of Pestoensid achverie Beonomic condibons, chumnges in thi generad
outhask for conparate earmings, changes in intefest or currency 1ates, public
heatth emergencies, such as the speead of infectious illness or disease, or
addverse smawstor sentimens generally. They may absa dechine doe 10 factons
whach affect a panicular sndustry of ndustries, such as Labaor shorages o
increased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry
Duflerern types of squity securiies may react differently o thise
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decelopments Equity securities and equity related investments generally have
Qe market price volatiliy than fimad meome secuntes

The Funds may imeest in gestan astruments that eely in some fashion upon
LIBOR LEBOH is an average mierest rale, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Administration, that banks charge cne anather foar the use of short-term
mivey. The United Kingdam's Financial Conduct Authorty, which regulaes
LIB0R, has announced plans to uitimately phase cut the use of LBOR Thers
remars unceriaingy reganding Tutune wtilzabon of LIBOA and the nabese af
amy teplacement rane (2 g, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate, which i
intended 1o replace U % dollar LIBOR and measures the costof avernight
borrowings theough mepusithase agreement transactions collateraloed with
U5 Teeasuny securities) Ary patential effiects of the ramition away from
LIBOR an a Fund or on certain mstruments in which a Fund imvests can be
diffecult to: ascertain, and they may vary depending on a vamety ol factors. The
Tranuton mdny abR résall in b eeduction in the valoe of certan irdiruments
held by a Fund e a reduction in the effectivensss of relsted Fund trantacbons
such as hedges. Any such effects of the transition away Irom LIBOR, as well
as cither unloreseen effects, could result in hasses to.a Fund

Begrreng in January 2020, global finamcial markets have expetienced and
may continoe to expenience significant volatility resuting from the spread of a
nreed congnaarys kndwn a5 CONID-19 The outbeeak af COVID-19 has
resabted in travel and beeder restictions, quarantines, supply cham
disrugboes, lower consumer demand and general market uncertaingy, The
global ecanomy, the economies of certain nations and indridual ssuens have
been and may contme 10 be adversely affected by COVID-19, particulary
light f the interconnectivity between economies and financial markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds” perffarmance: In addition, COVID-19
and governmental respocdes to COVID-19 may negatively irpact the
capabditie of the Funds' senvice providers and derupt the Funds' cperatons

Cawdit and Counterparty Risks A Fund will be exposed to oedi rsk to
parties with wham it trades and will also bear the risk of setthement default
A Fund mefepes contentranons of credit mk by undertating transadians
wath a lasge nurmber of customers and counterpanties on recognized and
reputable emchanges, where applicable. OTC derivative transactions are
skt to the risk that & countermarty 1o the trassaction will nat fullill i
cositractual obligations 1o the ether pamy, & many of the protections aflerded
to centrally cdeared demvative transactions maght not be available for OTC
dervative transactions. For dermvatives traded on an exchange or theough a
central counnesparty, crednn ek sesides with the creditwerthiness of

the Fured's dieaning broker, oo the deannghouse itsedl, rather than waith a
counterpaty in an OTC derivative tramsaction. Changes in regulation refating
o 4 Fund' s use of dereates a0 relaned anstrumenss oould potentially limit
of imgact the Fund's abality 1o wmeest in dervatives, limit the Fund s abibry te
employ certain strabegies that use dernaatives andlor adversely affect the value
of petiamanee of demvaties and the Fund A Fund could lote mnnr,'l‘ tha
issuer or guaranior of a foeed come seounity, of the couerpanty o a
finandial denivative instruments contract, repurchase agreement or a loan of
portlaba securities, 15 whabile of urmiling 16 mui.r'llln['h- principal andor
interest payments, of tootherwrse homot ity obligatens. Securities and
fimansial denivative instruments are subjact 1o vanying degrees of oedit ek
which may be reflected 0 credit ratings

Similar to credit risk, 3 Fund may be exposed to oountesparty tisk, er the risk
that an mstibution or other entity with whech a Fund has unsettled o open
transactions will default PIMCO, as the Manager, minimazes countermpaty
risks 1o the Funds thraugh 2 number of ways. Prior 1o eenening emo
ransactions with @ new counterparty, the FIMCO Counterparty Risk
Committee conducts an extensave credit review of such countesparty and musst
approve the e of such countempanty. Furthermone, pursuang 1o the femmg of
the underbying confract, to the extent that unpaid amowrds cwed 1o a Fund

eaceed a predetermined threshold, such counterparty shall advance collateral
o & Furd in the Torm of cash ar secunties equal in vaioe 10 the unpasd
amount awed toa Fund A Fund may imeest such collateral in seooibes o
other instruments and will typically pay interest 1o the counterparty on the
collateral recarved H the unpaid amount owed ta a Fund subsequently
decreases, & Fund would be tequired te retun 3o the countermany all of a
partion of the collateral previously advanced. PIMCORS attempds bo minimize
courtpacty sk may. howwever, be ansucoesshd

A pramsacnons in lisped secunmies ane senthedipaid for uptn dedregny wing
approved countesparties. The risk of default & considered minimal, as delaery
ol securites sold is only made once a Fund has recernved payment Payment s
made on 3 purchise oode the decuities hing bien detowenid by the
counderpasty The trade wall fail il sither party fails to meet its ebligason

) Othar Riskes In genedal, each Fund may be subject to additonal nsks,
mcluding, but not heited to, nsks elated to govermment regulation and
imerventicn i financal markets, operational reks, niks assocated with
financal, economic and global market desniptions, and ofberseourity nsks
Plearse reler 10 each Fund's offering documents for @ more detaded
description of the ks of imasiting i the Fund

Market Disrwptions Risk The Funds aoe subject 1o mvestmint and
operational nisks assocated with finandal, economic and other global market
developments and disruptions, including those ansing from war, fermorism,
maket manipulation, govesnment intenventions, delaults and shutdows,
pobtical changes es diplomanc developments, public health emergencies
{such as the spread of infectious diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
nalpaliemaronmental disasters, which can al negatively impact the securnbies
mmatkels, iienesl pates, Staand, decondary tading, ratngs, credit Tk,
inflation, deflation and ather {actors relabng to the Fund's imvestments or the
Manager's operataons and cause @ Fund 1o lose value. Thete events may have
Sdhadrd kang-tenm aflects on e S and wodld cconomies and markets
generally. These events can also empas the technology and cther opesational
sysbens upon which a Fund's service peosiders, including FIMCD a5 the
Funds’ imdiment advise, ey and could Al d-'.:t.p1 a Fund s demnce
perowiders” abibey to fuffil their obbigatiens to the relevant Fusd. For example,
the spread of an infectiows respiratory illness caused by a novel strain of
corangarus (krdwan o5 COVID-1%) has caused volatilty, sevene market
desdocatons and lqudity constraints in many markets and may adorssly
affect a Fund's imvestments and operations

Gevarnmant latarvention in Fimancial Markets Federal state, and other
gamernments, thes requlatory agencs, of wl!-:::gl:l.j'.my Drganmatons may
take actions that affect the requlatsan of the instruments = which a Fund
irnrests, or the issuers ol such instruments, in ways that are undoreseeable
Legislaticn ar regulation may afsa thange the way in which a Fund itself 5
requlated Such legislagion o requlation could limit o preclude a Fund's
by b achieve its investment objective Furthesmore, volatile finandal
markets can expose 3 Fund to greater market and liguidity risk and potential
difficdty in valuing partlolio instnaments beld by the Fund The value of &
Fund's haldings is also generally subject 1o the sk ol fuiuee local, national, oo
giohal economic disturbances based on unknown weaknesses in the markets
i which @ Fund erests Inaddition, it is nat cetain tha the 1.5 Govermment
will inbervene in response 10 a Tuture matker dsturbance and the effect of 2y
such future intervention: cannot be predicted It & difficult for issusers to
prepang Tor the impact ol Bubwee finsncial dovwnturms, altheugh campanies can
seek 10 kentdy and manage fulue uncertainties thicugh rek management
piogiams

Regulntory Risk Finanoal entities, such as imestment companies and
irreesteiat dcdvisierg, e generally ‘HJ::"QI'I o e goernment segulaten
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and intervention Govemment regulation andfor intenvenkion may change the
wiiry @ Funed 15 requlined. aslect the eapienies incurnéd dinectly by a Fund and
the value of dis investments, and limit andfor predude a Fund's ability 1o
actieve its investment objective. Govemment regulation may thange
frequently and may have significant advene comsequences Moregwer,
gevernment requlation eay have unpredictable and unintended effects

Dperationsl Risk An imeestment in a Fund, Bke any fund, can imoive
cperational rsks ansing from Factors such as processmg emors, human emors,
inadiequate or failed mternal o external processes, Tailunes in syitens and
technology, changes in personnel and efrats caused by third-party senvice
providers. The corurrence of amy of these Failures, erors or breaches could
resait in @ foss of information, requiatory souteny, reputational damage or
athes evenits, iy of which could have & mateial adverse effsct on a Fund
While a Fund seeks 1o minimize such events through controks and oversight,
these may still be failures that could cause kasses to the Fund

Cybar Secarity Rink A3 the use of technelogy has become mese prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds hive become potentially mone suscep thie
1o operational and imformation security risks resulting from breaches in oliber
secyrity A breach in oybrer security refers to both intentional and
uninsentionad cber eents that may, among other things, cause 3 Furd 1o
lose peoprietary information, suffer data comuption andfor destruction ar lose
operational capacity, result in the unauthorized release or cther misuse of
corfidental infrmatnion, of othenare deitupt noemal butineds aperations
Cyber securimy Tailunes or beeaches may result in financial losses 1o a Fund and
its Unitholdess. These faibures o breaches may also result in disruptions 1o
business aperations, paterttially resulting in financial lossey; interference wath
a Fund's atibity 10 caoulate it nel meel value, process Pnitholider
transactions of othersise transadt business with Unitholders; impediments to
trading; violations of applicable privacy and other kaws; requlatory fines;
penaltes; reputational damage: reimbarsement o ather compensation costs;
additional compfiance and cyber security risk management costs and other
afverse consequences In addition, substantial costs may be incumed in order
Lo present Sy Cybet inddents i e futge

B.MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subiject 1o vanows nefting arangements (" Master
Agreetenls | with selecy oounterparmies. Master Agreements govem e
terms of certain transactors, and e inbended to redisce the counterparty nsk
associated with relevant transactions by specitying credd protection
mechansms and providing standardzation that s mended to improve begal
certaingy. Each type of Master Augleement ginverns certain Types of
transactions Diffierent types of transachors may be traded out of different
legal et o alilates of a particutias prganization, r|:-su,||||ru] 17 the reed dor
multple agieements wath a ssgle counterparty As the Master Agresments
are spedfic to wnique operations of dilerent asset types, they allow a Fund to
close out and net its total exposune 10 a counterparty in the event of a defaul
with eespect to all the ansactens govemed under a single Master
Agreemant with a oounterparty. For financal reporting purpases the
Statements of Assets and Liahilites gemerally present derivative assets and
liatkinies: on & gross Bursis, whach reflects the full risks and expotiuses priof 16
netting

Master Agreements can aiso help imit counterpasty sk by specdying
collateral podting arrangements 3 pre-armangsd expedune levels. Under mast
Master Agreements, collateral s routsnely transfesred o the 1p2al net expoase
te Certain transactions {net of existing collateral already in place) governed
undier the federand Master Agresmentd with & courtierpacty i 3 gasen account
excteds o specified theeshold, which typically ranges from e 1o $250,000
depending on the mantemparty and the iype of Master Agreement. United
States Treasury Bils and U 5. dollar cash are generally the prederred foems. of

collateral, althowgh other securities may be used depending on the terms.
qu,I||IE|:‘1|rIr|'||‘J:"|I-|:F"II:qt\lF Bt Agreemient Securitais and Cah ||ll\:lr}|.'|| 3
collateral ae refiacted a aucets an the S1atements ol Assets and Liabilites a5
either 3 component of Investments a2 wafe (securities) or Deposits with
counterpasty. Cash collateral recetved 15 not typacally held in a seqregated
acopiant and as swch is reflected a5 a habibty an the Satements of Assets and
Liahilities as Deposits from counterparty. The market value of any seouities
received as collateral 5 net reflecied as a companent of NAY. The Fund's
ouer il exposure 1o counlepaty sk can change subdtantiafly wathin & shon
peviod, &s it is affected by each tansaction subject 1o the relevant Master
Agreement

BMues Repunchase Agreemnents and Global Master Repurchase Agreeménis
{individually and collectvely “Master Repo Agreements™ ) govern repurchase,
reverse repurchase, and sale-buyback transactions between the Funds and
selec countespartios. Master Repo Agriements manlain provsions fiowt,
amang other thargs, initialion, income payments, events of default, and
mantenance of collateral. The market value of transactions under the Master
Repe Agreement, collateral pledged or ecersed, and the net experure by
counterpacty & of pencd end are diclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
lervesiments

Master Securities Forsaed Transaction Ageeements (" Master Fonwand
Aagreements”) govern certain fonand settling wansactions, sudh as THA
securities, delayed-delvery or sale-buyback transactions by and

betwoen th Fiands and select countesparties. The Master Forward
Agreements maintan provisions Tor, among ather things, inmiation and
confirmaban, payment and iransher, events of defadly, erminasion, and
maintenance of collzteral The market value of forwand settling trarsactions,
collateral plidged of mcened, and the nit expodunt by Counerpaity a5 of
petiod end are disdosed in the Notes to Schedule of Imvestments

Custommer Acopunt Agreements and related addenda govem deared
desieations trardactions such as futares, options an futures, and cheaned OTC
desneatives. Such transactions requre posting of initial margin as determined
by each relevant dearmg agency which is segregated in an acoount at a
futures commission merchant {"FCM”) registened with the Commadiy
Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC™) |n the Urited States, counterparty risk
may be reduced as ceditors of an FCM cannot have a claim to Fund assets in
the segregated account. Portability of expasure i the event ol an FCM
delault seenara furtker redaces ik 1o the Funds Vananoa iGN, of
changes in market value, are generdly exchanged daily, but may not be
nethed between fulures and cieared OTC deriratives unfess the parties have
agreed 1o & sepatate arrangement in respecy of fund mangring, The markey
value or acoumulated uniealized apprecation {depeeciation], imitial maign
pasbed, and any unsesthed variason margin as of penad end are disclosed in
the Kates w0 Schedule of Imestiments

Iriternational Swaps and Demvatives Assaoation, Inc Master Agreements and
Credit Support Annexes {1504 Master Agreements ™} gowvern bilateral OTC
derheating brarkactions enbenied inta by the Funds with select countematie
FDA Mlasver Agreaments maintan piovisions lar general obligations,
epresentations, agqeeements, collateral postng and events of default or
termnation Events of termanation inchude conditions that may entithe
OUntBpatees 10 elect 1o teisinate saily and coush soltlement ol all
outstanding ransactions under the applicable 1504 Master Agreement Ary
election to berminate early could be matenial to the financal statements. The
B0 Mt Agresment may contain sdditlonal provisons that add
courtedpanty protection beyand coverage of exiting dady exposure if the
counderparty has a dechne i credit quaity below a predefined level oo as
g uned I.'r,' rngul.]lu;n Sarrolarhy, |.":|:q|,||ri:d by eegulaten, a Fund may be
eequined 1o past additional collateral beyond gmverage of daily expersure
These amounts, if any, may (oo if sequied by law, willl be segregated with a

Ml Ripirt || Detsber 31, 2002
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8. FEES AND EXPENSES

j Bees payable at the follrwsng annual rates (stated as a percentage of the average daflly net assets of each Fued, o Class, if
Fees
Fund Managssant Advisary Administrative Agency Destr ibution

MMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bosd Fund Il

& el UPY) - [IE =
»  lagl PV, Hedged) = 0% _ B
FIMCO Bermwda Global Aggregats Ex-Japsn Besd Fund (M) 0zt =
MMCO Bermuda Income Fend &
= FLUPYi - - = - -
=  FRED - - -
& JLPY]
& J{Ushi - - - —
= KN
& W UPY Rdwivory ) HTE% - - %
W USD Rdvinaryd IT5% - 005%
= HUF
& s - = = =
= NN SO
= PP ES% - - - 0B5%
= QUM - - -
s R UF
& s DES - 020 -
= 5P}
= TUmME 0T0% - - - -
S [ T0% - -
= U2 [LREL
= W ush} = 0B 020% =
= KUPT DIEGS
= NS - - - - ~
= Y UPT - - -
= ¥ {US0}
& IR - = = =
MMCO Bermuda Merigage Dpportunities Fend
= st (JPY Hedgedt 045% - - - -
= ST - - -
s J{UsDi
« UsO - - - -
MMCO Bermnda 1.5, High Yiald Fund Il ) B3E% A%
PIMCO Core Incomta Corporate Bend Fusd 2020-10
= USD &% r 0 10%

Bl Raport | Oetsbet 11, 2002
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Faes
Fund Masagamant Afvivory  Adminkstrative  Agewcy Distiibution
PIMCD Short-Tarm Merigage lncoma
= R 045% D05% 040
& JUPY, Hedgsdi
. JFY Ddi% 05 D0
L] 04 = i UE

FIMCD Waorld High lncema

Rivnil Rapirt | Detsbes 1
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o distribution lees
wds o Classers and & gl

ary. adminstralive, agenc
wehiches that ireest m 5

As noted in the table above, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are not subject to management, adw
Lid, PRACO s altfiate wn hpan, 15 pasd a {ee Tram the laoanese |maestment Tiusts of other ew
such fee is then allocated to PIMICO to compersate it for its sendces, as apphcabile

The Ful

ther axpenses related to thair operation that are not covered by the management, advisary,
diste o fees, imcd it Ll 10 ()] toned & ]I:".I enrmental fees: (o] brokerage fess 20d comminsions and othed po L
5 af bumemwing money ing Interest expense; (i) extraordinary expenses, including costs of ingation and indemnification expenses; and (v any experses
allocated or alocable to a spedfic (lass of units. PIMCO has paid '.l'e ceganizational expences assodiated with the ceation of the Trust, except for PIMCO Short-Tarm
M aqe Incame. PIMCD id P organzatonal ecpenses. asocated wish the creation of sach Fund

Jimirssiratiive,
FERCTION EXpEndss

ds (or Classes thereof, as applicable) may "-:a'

PINGCD Bermuds bncome Fund & (che 3 (Y Advisory) and M (USD dwigeey) Clindes), PIMCO Core Ingame Corparate F-a:ri Fund J020-10, FIBCO Shoet-Term
Maorigage Income (the EUR, 1Y, and USDr Classes) and PIMCO Woeeld High Income pay cr-going expenses related to the public offening of their units in Japan

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imvestment Adviser is & related party to the Funds and i a maj i subrsidiany of Allianz Asset Management AG. Fees paid 1o the related party, i any, are
disdicied in Hote 9, and acoued relxied party Fee amounts, if any, are disclosed on the Slatements of Assets and Liabikities

0.008% of the req assess of PIMCO Ber s Dynamic Mult-Asset Srategy Fund, 0.013% of the
b of the net asets of PIMCO Short-Temm Mortgage Income a5 of October 31, 2002

Alkare Asset Management A5, a relsted pasty of the Trust, ow
net assets of FIMCO Bemiada Mortgage Oppontunites Fund and 006789

5 are peimitied 1o purchase of sel s Inom oo bo certain relas pnESions cutlined in procecares acogpted Dy the
sit, The peocedones have b 21 7y pl 1o aather furd that is of could be
mided Citobes

31, 2022, the Fund(s} below engaged in purchases and sales of sequribies amang .1." a'.b:l fum 'Js :am.mu n t'r usanids)

Furd

PMED Bermigcda Bank Loan Fund (M|

PACT) Bermwch Emergeng Warkets Bord Fund M1

P Emergang Mackens Band Fund 1|

PR -Jepeas Hord Fond (M)
PIMED Ber
PO Bermoda Low Doration egeme Furd
PR Bormiads 11 5 High Yopld Fone] FMJ

PIMACTD Elormrda 1 5. High Yoedd Fand 1 [

PEMCTE Covm Income Corporate Bond Fusd 703110
PUACT) Ernéa g Boid kool [Faid (]

-

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

rarey

Unader the Trust's ceganizational documents, certain parties {induding the Trustes and PIMCO) ate indemnified agairst certan lishilities that may arise out of
perfarmance of their dutes 1o the Funds. Additionaly, in the normal course of business, the Funds enber into confracts thag contain a vanety of inde ation dauses
The Funds” maamurm gaxpodund under thise amangements i wkngen &5 this would irrvoheg future chaims that miry b made againgt the Funds that hioe ral yel
oocured. However, the Funds have net had prioe daims of lesses pursuant to these conteacts

d

W

12. UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Truest may issue up o 500,000,000.000 units. Tha Furm may have a sgndicant conceniration of risk, as certaim Unitholdess own mote than ten percent of the net
assets of each rt-s;—:h:l ‘B F-. '1:I Suu:'r concentraton of Lin a5’ inferests could have a materia efiact on the Funds in the event these Linitholders request to

st of units ¢ ¢ Funids Se dencer L HAY ourency and
o Tl eeti of bch Fie i Trushes wath the cos
ditional Fund or Class or Classes of units.

=F
er, may in the future oreate and

a2 il

Changes inunits of bersedicaal intenest wene a5 Tollows lunits and amounts m thousands™ )

Raspn for comomid | v WHe ML 3 HiL NA % KA L L]

Bl Raport | Oetsbef 1,
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Year Erched Yoar Endied Year Endet Wear Enced

Oetober 3, 20ZF Detokar 31, 2022 Oelober 3, R Octobsr 31, 202
ity At Units Aot Units Amcant Units Amount
HIA Wik NE Wi 5 it Wa ik
Wik WA M5 1354 LIC KA HE Hi&
L1 LA q a2 LI LS it K&
HEA Wik 37 770 Wk R "y Wik
LU Kik NR LY 13 b | Wi Wik
Hi& W LY LY Hid RA 1 I
HiA HiA - 1 LI KA LY LIEY
Wik L N'E Hik ] 413 L Wik
Wik Wik N ik ] 1EH Mik Wik
Kk LA N'8 LY T 182 L LIL]
ik ik ] 148 Wik A T Y Ny
LU Kik R LY Kik L Wi Wik
Hi& W LY LY an an LI K
HiA HiA Fi S04 LI KA LY LIEY
Wik L NE LI 13 1 L Wik
Wik Wik Nk Wik 143 387 Wik Kk
Kk LA N'8 LY Wik KA il | 1,48
KA WA 6] | L KA LY Hi&
Hik L N'& LY F! | 04 L1 Y Hi&
Y Wik NR N k] 1585 Wi Wil
LI Wik LS LU Y 154 1,865 L Hik
¥ |L=D) HIA HIA 97 i) LY A He HI&
Lot of wata redeanad {12321 150,781 N LY Hik L M Wik
Al WA Kid LEs HiE 11,134 5317 W Hi&
HIA WA o BEEN 1=k L KA LI KK
i HIA HiA {17 a5 Hik WA N Hi&
J S NIk Kk (64 6503 Wik LT Hiy Wik
¥ IALID Wik Wik A, Miy L] 1455 Mk Wik
Wik Wia N Wi [E] IS Wi W
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L Wk Wik Al a7 Kk L Hik Rk
¥ INN Wik Wik N ' B 12580 Wit Wik
¥ IRLIE LI Hik NE LU {121 LA LY Hi&
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¥ |LED| Wik L1 5 25580 LI KA Mk Wik
Hat |2ncrmas et hom
Fired it THoaaz i 2314 ¥ IS el 2 LI 11,963 t MER ik B e
aar Eccded iasd Ended Vear Ended ‘Waai Enclad
Oolober M, 2022 Dohoder 1, 2022 Oolober 3, 722 Colotsr 1, 2002
(1 Amount Units Amoun Un#s Amcunt Wi Amaunt
Faipren for wnimy i Hik L, WA L8 ] L1 | L] 5 LI ] K&
rext | HIiA WA NE Hig Wik KA a4 125
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{ctaber 3

Year Ended

Year Ervted Yeus Ended Wear Ended
Ouinber 31, 2022 Ocioker 11, 222 Colober 31, 1022 Cclober 31, 2022
sits Ammount Units Aumoun Units, Amount Unita Amaurt

rest | Y, Fncigaed Ik Wik [T} i [T [ | 21
Y Wik s LR ] Wik [ M [y
a n ML Wi Hik L HiK Wik
HIK WA L3 W L WA WK
T n U N Nk WA Wi
NIk Wik [T Y L] 115,506 Mi%
rext | P Wik Wik [T} Hia Wik WA 161
it LIFT, Hadgad Hik Hik N ik Wik ik ]
| 5 Wik Wik 2 1] Wik R Wik
¥ [Wherkd 1201 {6, N ML Kik WA Mig Wi
Hut |¢ecrmnef rewiting from
Ford vt tasmcbien (1] § 519 ] {1 T (1561 i DN 3 [ EA5H
Year Ended Yeus Ended Wear Ended ‘Fear Ended
Ouiober 3, 2022 Octobeer 31, 22 Colober 31, 7022 Oclober 1, 2022
sty Ammount Unite Amaount Uity Amount Uit Amaurt
Racwp for pnmy poid 1m o e 8|1 3 I0UESD E% R R L 1S B 1G0T
Lot of usitn redeamad 111861 M5 569 24H 5 455 13070 1S3 1250301 B RAEEIT
Hit ircroas fdeerasl

ressiing e Fund uax

mharlena By n3Em TR T NnEm ¢ sy NZENE 8 (UnE e
Year Ended Yeus Ended Wear Ended ‘Wawr Ended
Ouinber 31, 2023 Ocioker 31, 222 Gciober 31, 7022 October 31, 2022
[FES Y At Units Aot Units Afncunt LTS Amourl
Faciprn for oo woid

B IS0 [ ik T R | N 491§ 5243 T | Nk
i) 157,560 N'& Wik Kk L Wik Wik
FiLs0j (Eakp:] N WA Wik WA Wa ik
rert [, Hadigad| Wik M ik Wik A ] []
J LI T4 N " KA KA 1 47
[ 12183 N ML Wik WA | &
5767 L2 Wi LA L1 Wik Kik
4TS na W WA WA Wiy Wi
950148 N N Wik K MK Ty
M4 NR LEY Kk L Hig Wik
Wik {12 ) Wik A Wik Hik
1253 N M KA [ Wi ik
<] LEIR 1) MK Wik WA M Wy
d 200" pul N'A W LI KA Wi Ki
L ] Pl ML Wi L0 WA Wik Rk

254/367

Ml Pt | Detsbedt 31,

"



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

Year Erced Your Endied Year Endet Wear Enced

Oelober 3, 202F Oetokar 1, M2 Celober 3, 722 October 3, 2032

ity Unitz Amaount Units. Amecunt Units Amaunt

P ¥53 NE Wi Nk WA Wi L1

s N iy Wik [ Wiy Ky

51 M NIy Wik A M Wy

[ N Yy Wik [ M Wik

bl ] R Wi Kk A Wi Wik

1] N N Wik WA Wi Wiy

=0 N MiL Wik KA M NIy

Wk 1z 53 Nk A Nk ik

Wik Wik N iy Wik KA My Wiy

i) W|ED M NIy Wik [T Mg Wy

g3 i N'A W L A LU Hi#

J 1 T L Wi Kk A HiK Rk

X |Lrs0) m 5656 N N Wik WA Wi Wiy

1 1= g1 N Ny KA KA M NIy

157 12562 WE Wi Hik WA Wi Rk

Wik Hik ol 11871 Wik [ Mik il

Mok Wik N M I 187, ATy Wi Wik

F LIPY {z16: ME, 74| N N Wik WA N Wi

Fiusn 13567 274, 50 N ML Wik Kk Mik NIk

f NIk ik N NIk Kik [ (i1 10

J LI 131-] W3 B NE LY Wik L 1 11] 112801

J GUSE (] asn Na CH ] Wik WA [ [5,686)

(1] (1] T s Wik A M iy

1100 7. 2851 N'a, L] L WA Wik Wik

(36500 REHA wa 1T (1 HiA His Wik

5308 [ R Rcra] N N Wik KA MK Wik

135S el ] N N Wik NA ML N

WA Rik S8 ] L L Hik Hik

¥ 2,51 MA fm Wik KA Wik Hik

[i:21] (L] N N Wik KA Mi WK

SUPY] 145 156,551 N HA WA KA Wiy ik

T4 1,760 13520 Na Hi L L Hik Rk

U (L5 25T L1k & A W' Kk L Wi Wik

{BGm 15,880 ML Wi Kk WA Wik Rik

1 [r2] N N Wik WA M Wik

X (=0 |B&TE B2 N iy WA KA MiA NIy

¥ 1 &7 WZ.0e MR Mik Hik Nid Wik Hily

¥R {5081 LR ] Nk LI Kk L Wis Wik

L ik Lo L] (Ll k] Wik L0 iy iy

TP [} (kiE ] NiE Mis Wik L [Ty HIA

Wit increase (decroasl

remsiiing fram Fund et

AR tera 5358 i LOFER fL27E § EEN 11,287 § TS0 i i ETm

Bional Paport | Detsbat 11, 2502

255/367



EDINETOOOO
o o =X RS0 723
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

aar Envded et Ended Wear Ended ‘wear Ended
Ociober 3, 2022 Octotar 11, 2022 Cctober 31, 7022 October 1, 2022
LAsing dMerunt Unils LT Lirits LE T [FTY Amaunl
R gty For amim mold T OF 43N = T ] KA % A i s
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aué e NIk Wik N N Wik A e ]
et of nitn redeemd .73 225 ra ] 158 540 Wik [ 1] L Ed] 13,5551
LED Mk Wik N W 1,180 1117, ) iy Wi
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Year Enced ¥ise Ended Year Ended Yaar Encied
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JiChe NIk Rik N N 4] mh MK NIk
HiA Kik NE Nk Kk L B 4
Hik Wik N CHY Wik L B 1
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HIA Wik N WA Wik WA 1 ]
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KU Wik Wk Na NI "] 80 My Wi
NIk ik N s L] b MK Iy
Wik ik N N 1 113 ik Nk
Wi K W Hu a i} H Hik
Hik Wik N N Wik Wk 1 1]
J A ik N U Y Wik WA ] 1
J iR Hik Wik R ML 3 164 L Wk
JENE NIk Wik NIA N 1 bl Hia Wik
JUR Mk Wik N Wi 1 133 Wi ik
Wik Wik N iy 12 451 Wiy Ky
I NIk Wik M ML 2 m Mg (1}
J BT Y Wik N W Wik WA ] 127
et ot o redareed 11751 11200551 5.5 [103,084 Kk Kk M NIy
I AL HIk Wik N N 11641 18565 Mia Hik
J NIk Wik N i 1] 11,558 ik
JIGAD Wik Wik N i 1] TS Mis
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Dctaber 31,

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year fnced
Celober 3, 7022 Deteibar 1, 2022 Oeinber 3, P22 Orctober 1, M2
\prity Amnount Units Amoun Wt Amaunt Units Amaount
| R ik ik NE LU 15} 1] W i
1A Wik Wik W M (L] T34 W Rk
J G Hin L ML ML (] 1= ] iy WA
Lk HiA Wik WL Wi |3 111,875 Y Hik
JTH HiA Hik N U1 (143 11,785 Wi Wi
5 Hik Hik N L ik L 1 (LF]
Furd il ta=mc o L . I 783 5580 L 13 % D436 LI ]
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Enced
Colober 3, 7022 Ochoiar 1, 2022 Oeinber 3, P22 October 1,
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Faar Enced Yieas Ended Yaar Ended ¥ear Encled
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ik Wik 50 1561 Nik L HiL Hik
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

Year Erded Yoar Ended Year Ended Year Bred

Detober 31, 2022 Detobar 3, H22 Oelober 31, 1022 Detobar 3, 2022
ity Asmount Units Amaount Units At Units Amourit
156 % P8I A M [T} [T 3§ BEN
Hih KA L 8 A Wik L Hig Hid
Mk Wik ] (ML L A W Wik
Wik Kk LR 13 34E Nk Lo K Kk
A i [T) 1 N ¢ oS W, Hid
ik WA KA s 12,8451 132,085 N Hik
Rk Kk LU [ LU A Wi Rk
Wik W L] Wam Kk A Wi Wik
A i Na s 21 1817 s ik
HIA HiA WA N (1551 11,838 M ik
(E-1 TR S 3§ [OpEN 12307 & 31587 a8 175051

13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

The Funds a¢e nod named a6 delendants in amy material Intigation or arbitration proceadings and are not awace of any mated

thieatened

gation of claim pendsng of

agmnst them
The feregoing speaks anly a5 of the date of this repon

14, INCOME TAX

The Tnst is

Misnil Rapirt | Detsbat 31,
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2023 10
e e
204,418 30,161,876
665 98,121
203,753 30,063,755
2,027,498
100.49 14,827
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1,443,950,333.78 2,130 5,487
850,000
98,837.57
850,000

250,000
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2020 606,851,577.58
2021 778,167,993.64
2022 807,608,901.74
2023 798,537,475.45
2024 1,443,950,333.78
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2024
L

Adam Gubner

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Anna Dragesic

Ashish Tiwari

Ayman Hindy

Ben Ferguson
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Brett Condron

Bryan Tsu

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Christian Stracke

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel J. lvascyn

Daniel H. Hyman

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David Forgash

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

Frank Witt

Geraldine Sundstrom

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach

Jason R. Steiner
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Jerome M. Schneider

Jing Yang

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Kristofer Kraus

Libby Cantrill

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Pierre Luc Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau
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Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

(Rene Martel)

(Richard Clarida)

(Richard Colasuonno

Rick Chan

Richard R. LeBrun

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

(Sachin Gupta)

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sung Hee Suh

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA

2024 340
763,494,166,040

119 460,121,126,965

21 14,585,770,584

18 23,978,446,273
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69 181,058,258,930
9 6,572,748,406
30 17,891,826,222
34 18,127,468,621
15 23,746,532,427
4 786,510,098
5 2,501,998,698
16 14,123,478,815

266/367



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 12 31 2022 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2024 31
147.55
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
2(c) 692,286,956 102,146,940 721,198,092 106,412,778
2(d),3 23,611,226 3,483,836 29,741,057 4,388,293
2(e) 760,075,930 112,149,203 993,957,179 146,658,382
2(e) 298,953,809 44,110,635 317,540,465 46,853,096
42,455,591 6,264,322 47,497,769 7,008,296
2(e) 16,419,794 2,422,741 21,577,432 3,183,750
2().,7(c) 31,213,708 4,605,583 32,250,845 4,758,612
6 20,366,756 3,005,115 33,463,658 4,937,563
93,819,191 13,843,022 54,848,716 8,092,928

1,979,202,961 292,031,397  2,252,075,213 332,293,698

2022 12 31
252,958,658 2021 12 31
230,285,768 2(0),4 94,477,969 13,940,224 111,294,054 16,421,438

2(1),9 231,158,864 34,107,490 173,842,283 25,650,429
2().7(c) 1,122,167,785 165,575,857  1,140,825,289 168,328,771

2(h) 30,865,176 4,554,157 30,865,176 4,554,157
2(9).5 26,699,575 3,939,522 32,984,825 4,866,911
2(b) 28,471,674 4,200,995 36,988,617 5,457,670

8 60,321,209 8,900,394 61,620,430 9,092,094

1,594,162,252 235,218,640  1,588,420,674 234,371,470

3,573,365,213 527,250,037  3,840,495,887 566,665,168
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2022 2021
401,344,504 59,218,382 444,187,520 65,539,869

7(c) 254,261,222 37,516,243 301,432,498 44,476,365
57,704,815 8,514,345 81,689,779 12,053,327

2(i),9 31,647,773 4,669,629 31,437,762 4,638,642
6 84,349,623 12,445,787 95,602,945 14,106,215
2(r),7(c) 31,213,708 4,605,583 32,250,845 4,758,612
5,767,625 851,013 10,676,405 1,575,304

866,289,270 127,820,982 997,277,754 147,148,333

2(r),7(c) 1,122,167,785 165,575,857  1,140,825,289 168,328,771

2(1),9 241,298,327 35,603,568 182,746,288 26,964,215
7(c) 144,363,847 21,300,886 138,931,408 20,499,329
3,517,589 519,020 4,046,469 597,057

1,511,347,548 222,999,331  1,466,549,454 216,389,372

2,377,636,818 350,820,312  2,463,827,208 363,537,705

850,000 (103,727,757)  (15,305,031) (6,433,247) (949,226)
150,000 1,289,007,163 190,193,007  1,333,506,696 196,758,913

2022 12 31 90,957
2021 12 31 74,205 74,137,242 10,938,950 69,610,604 10,271,045

2022 12 31 59,004
2021 12 31 102,231 7(a) 24,899,178 3,673,874 32,693,374 4,823,907

2(0) (88,587,431)  (13,071,075)  (52,708,748)  (7,777,176)

1,195,728,395 176,429,725  1,376,668,679 203,127,464

3,573,365,213 527,250,037  3,840,495,887 566,665,168
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2(e) 3,829,526,077 565,046,573 4,520,575,834 667,010,964
2(e) 1,013,190,320 149,496,232 1,166,893,208 172,175,093
2(e) 1,161,877,051 171,434,959 1,272,072,660 187,694,321
2(e) 289,992,929 42,788,457 350,424,117 51,705,078
2(e) 44,812,438 6,612,075 32,477,418 4,792,043
6,339,398,815 935,378,295 7,342,443,237  1,083,377,500
7 2,096,156,066 309,287,828 2,695,488,619 397,719,346
414,744,909 61,195,611 666,590,135 98,355,374
2(s) 610,193,500 90,034,051 633,462,121 93,467,336
242,700,768 35,810,498 233,154,167 34,401,897
2(t),4,5,9 198,119,507 29,232,533 186,670,745 27,543,268
2(n) 119,548,680 17,639,408 105,285,247 15,534,838
32,998,070 4,868,865 47,627,284 7,027,406
2(0) 51,076,118 7,536,281 41,501,327 6,123,521
3,765,537,618 555,605,076 4,609,779,645 680,172,987
2,573,861,197 379,773,220 2,732,663,592 403,204,513
7(c) (139,931,743) (20,646,929) 126,921,569 18,727,278
2(i).9 (5.,102,108) (752,816) (5,545,277) (818,206)
2(b) (8,516,943) (1,256,675) (1,327,780) (195,914)
2,420,310,403 357,116,800 2,852,712,104 420,917,671
8 99,310,016 14,653,193 107,478,838 15,858,503
2,321,000, 387 342,463,607 2,745,233,266 405,059,168
2(0) (35,878,683) (5,293, 900) (7,967,178) (1,175,557)
2,285,121,704 337,169,707 2,737,266,088 403,883,611
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2022 2021 12 31

2020
12 31
850,000  (103,214,782) (15,229,341) 150,000 1,308,035,518 193,000,641 58,608 43,399,986 6,403,668
1,942,092,906 286,555,808 614,678,821 90,695,860 188,461,539 27,807,500
(1,861,825,611) (274,712,369) (589,207,643) (86,937,588) (171,157,203) (25,254,245)
8,451,432 1,247,009
PINMCO
8,062,808 1,189,667 8,006,282 1,314,122
2021
12 31
850,000 (6,433,247) (949,226) 150,000 1,333,506,696 196,758,913 74,205 69,610,604 10,271,045
1,612,749,721 237,961,221 517,338,542 76,333,302 190,912,124 28,169,084
(1,716,943,889) (253,335,071) (561,838,075) (82,899,208) (196,629,414) (29,012,670)
2,254,594 332,665
PINCO
4,645,064 685,379 10,243,928 1,511,492
2022
12 31

850,000 (103,727,757)  (15,305,031) 150,000 1,289,007,163 190,193,007 90,957 74,137,242 10,938,950
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2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
148,726 37,843,422 5,583,797  (44,741,570)  (6,601,619)  1,241,322,574 183,157,146
2,745,233,266 405,059,168
(2,622,190,457)  (386,904,202)
8,451,432 1,247,009
PINCO
11,819,042 1,743,900 11,819,042 1,743,900
(16,969,090)  (2,503,789)
(7,967,178)  (1,175,557) (7.,967,178) (1,175,557)
2021 12 31
102,231 32,693,374 4,823,907  (52,708,748)  (7,777,176)  1,376,668,679 203,127,464
2,321,000, 387 342,463,607
(2,475,411,378)  (365,246,949)
2,254,594 332,665
PINCO
7,094,796 1,046,837 7,094,796 1,046,837
(14,888,992)  (2,196,871)
(35,878,683)  (5,293,900) (35,878,683) (5,293,900)
2022 12 31
59,004 24,899,178 3,673,874  (88,587,431)  (13,071,075)  1,195,728,395 176,429,725
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2,321,000, 387 342,463,607 2,745,233,266 405,059,168
7,007,233 1,033,917 11,600,078 1,711,592
72,011,201 10,625,253 65,880,266 9,720,633
5,102,108 752,816 5,545,277 818,206
8,516,943 1,256,675 1,327,780 195,914
2,110,095 311,345 1,665 246
1,697 250
517,601 76,372 29,028 4,283
4,206,963 620,737
13,733,834 2,026,427 15,036,589 2,218,649
(8,121,604) (1,198,343) (13,788,912) (2,034,554)
(126,296,902) (18,635,108) (108,645,764) (16,030,682)
(5,102,108) (752,816) (5,545,277) (818,206)
257,625,543 38,012,649 (194,961,547) (28,766,576)
(19,444,611) (2,869,052) (18,406, 245) (2,715,841)
17,730,085 2,616,074 180,065, 741 26,568,700
(16,690, 982) (2,462,754) 63,479,303 9,366,371
2,529,700,520 373,257,312 2,751,058, 211 405,918,639
(144,367) (21,301)
(14,102,890) (2,080,881) (17,229,114) (2,542,156)
(991,693) (146,324) (4,902,545) (723,371)
(23,500, 150) (3,467,447)
(15,094,583) (2,227,206) (45,776,176) (6,754,275)
579,000,000 85,431,450 337,000,000 49,724,350
(579,000, 000) (85,431,450) (337,000, 000) (49,724,350)
(2,475,411,378) (365,246,949)  (2,622,190,457)  (386,904,202)
2,254,594 332,665 8,451,432 1,247,009
(34,481,606) (5,087,761) (33,282,796) (4,910,877)
(2,507,638,390) (370,002,044)  (2,647,021,821) _ (390,568,070)
(35,878,683) (5,293,900) (7,967,178) (1,175,557)
(28,911,136) (4,265,838) 50,293,036 7,420,737
721,198,092 106,412,778 670,905,056 98,992,041
692,286,956 102,146,940 721,198,092 106,412,778
2,547,664 375,908
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2022 2021 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO 2022 12
31 90,957
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
P1 LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
P1 LLC 1934

FINRA
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PIMCO

PGA

FINMA

PIMCO

AREOA
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1ASB IFRS
IFRS

2023 20

PIMCO

PIMCO
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AAM LP

2022 2021 12 31 4447 323.9

FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO
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PIMCO
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2022 2021

12
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12

IFRS

PIMCO
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PIMCO
30

2022 2021 12
31

IFRS
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IAS 19

IFRS
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[ J
[}
[ J
2022 2021 12 31 23.6 29.7
2022 2021 12 31
NAV
2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
10,150,192 3,952,698 14,102,890
(1,521,360) (588,736) (1,119) (2,111,215)
(16,079,748) (12,728,012) (28,807,760)
2022 12 31 30,298,311 63,109,027 1,070,631 94,477,969
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2020 12

2021 12

2022 12

20

PIMCO

2022
23.6

PIMCO
31

LIBOR 0.2

183

31

31
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PIMCO
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2021 28.8 27.0

13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825

991,693 991,693

(1,697) (1,697)
(5,195, 246) (2,080,000) (7,275,246)
9,419,575 17,280,000 26,699,575

2021 7.3 7.2
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 24.3
AAM LP AAM LLC
2022 2021 12
23.5 21.5
SOFR 0.2 2021
90 AAM LP PIMCO
2021 PIMCO AAM LP
PIMCO 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
PIMCO 2022 2021
102
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2022 12 31 776.5
2021 10
2022 2021 45.3
55.9
PIMCO
2022 2021
6.3 7.3
PEG
PEG PIMCO
PIMCO
2022
PEG 418.3 2021 400.4
PEG 34.0 2021 41.6
PEG 2022 PEG 66.6 2021
85.8
2022 12 31 15.7 2021 26.2
PEG 60.8 2021 74.1 PEG
AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 SOFR 20 2021
LIBOR 20

AAM LP PIMCO
2022 2021 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2022 2021 12 31 59,004 102,231

90,957 2022 12 31

2022 2021
2022
2021

2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
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2021 12 31

2022 12 31
2022 12 31

2022 12 31

1.46

20,924 2021

2022 31

2022 12 31
AAM LLC

2021
28

41,017

4.6

AAM LP
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41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5.478) (5.478) 15,218
102,231 102,231 15,330
38,379 (38,379)
(38,379) (38,379) 13,960
(4,848) (4,848) 16,186
59,004 59,004 16,151
14,516 17,806
24,780 2022
2022 38,379
2022 28
16,752
90,526 431
2021 31 2021
15,597
2022 2021
7.0 11.6
2022 12 31 2025 12 31
401
100
2022 2021 62.2
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AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2022 2021 12 31
12 12
2022 160.0

2021 112.1
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12 31
2022 2021
50,000 81,038
3,037,815 3,988,116
100,156,227 115,094,758
103,244,042 119,163,912
(3,934,026) (11,685,074)
(3,934,026) (11,685,074)
99,310,016 107,478,838
2022 2021 12 31 16.9 32.8
2022
2021 12 31 52.5 54.8 2022
2021 12 31 146 285
12 31
2022 2021
30,598,714 31,256,186
4,919,604 5,443,382
699,666 312,947
883,439 578,204

2,341,128 1,319,717
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2022 2021 12 31
43.3 40.9
2022 12 31

12 31

2023 39,348,587

2024 22,579,980

2025 34,908,435

2026 34,012,100

2027 29,593,384
171,102,531
331,545,017
(58,598,917)
272,946,100

2021 12 31

12 31

2022 35,796,969

2023 37,499,114

2024 23,189,168

2025 34,006,401

2026 33,302,410
69,700,751
233,494,813
(19,310,763)
214,184,050
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2022 12 31

AAM LP

290/367



11

31

Pl

LLC

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31 2022 12

PIMCO
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2022 2021
3.3
12 31
2022 2021
2,629,358,116 2,408,685,532
1,057,636 567,143
2023 20
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM LLC
850,000
AREOA
PIMCO PIMCO

31,548 PIMCO
2023 31
7,862
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Assets
Note 2022 2021
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaents 2(c) $ 692,286,956 721,198,092
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 23,611,226 29,741,057
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 760,075,930 993,957,179
Private accounts 2(e) 298,953,809 317,540,465
Prepaid expenses 42,455,591 47,497,769
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 16,419,794 21,577,432
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 31,213,708 32,250,845
Receivables from affiliates 6 20,366,756 33,463,658
Other current assets 93,819,191 54,848,716
Total current assets 1,979,202,961 2,252,075,213
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $252,958,658
and $230,285,768 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively 2(f), 4 94,477,969 111,294,054
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 231,158,864 173,842,283
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,122,167,785 1,140,825,289
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 26,699,575 32,984,825
Investments in associates 2(b) 28,471,674 36,988,617
Other noncurrent assets 8 60,321,209 61,620,430
Total noncurrent assets 1,594,162,252 1,588,420,674
Total assets $ 3,573,365,213 3,840,495,887
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 401,344,504 444,187,520
Accrued compensation 7(c) 254,261,222 301,432,498
Commissions payable 57,704,815 81,689,779
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,647,773 31,437,762
Payables to affiliates 6 84,349,623 95,602,945
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 31,213,708 32,250,845
Other current liabilities 5,767,625 10,676,405
Total current liabilities 866,289,270 997,277,754
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,122,167,785 1,140,825,289
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 241,298,327 182,746,288
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 144,363,847 138,931,408
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,517,589 4,046,469
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,511,347,548 1,466,549,454
Tota liabilities 2,377,636,818 2,463,827,208
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,727,757) (6,433,247)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,289,007,163 1,333,506,696
Class M members (90,957 unitsissued and outstanding at December 31, 2022
and 74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021) 74,137,242 69,610,604
Class M unit option holders (59,004 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2022 and 102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021) 7(a) 24,899,178 32,693,374
Cumulative trandation adjustment 2(0) (88,587,431) (52,708,748)
Tota capital 1,195,728,395 1,376,668,679
Total ligbilities and capital $ 3573365213  3,840495887

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Revenues: Note 2022 2021
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 3,829,526,077 4,520,575,834
Private accounts 2(e) 1,013,190,320 1,166,893,208
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,161,877,051 1,272,072,660
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 289,992,929 350,424,117
Other 2(e) 44,812,438 32,477,418
Total revenues 6,339,398,815 7,342,443,237
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,096,156,066 2,695,488,619
Commissions 414,744,909 666,590,135
General and administrative 2(s) 610,193,500 633,462,121
Professional fees 242,700,768 233,154,167
Occupancy and equipment 2(t),4,5,9 198,119,507 186,670,745
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 119,548,680 105,285,247
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 32,998,070 47,627,284
Other 2(t) 51,076,118 41,501,327
Total expenses 3,765,537,618 4,609,779,645
Operating income 2,573,861,197 2,732,663,592
Other (loss) income, net 7(c) (139,931,743) 126,921,569
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,102,108) (5,545,277)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (8,516,943) (1,327,780)
Net income before income taxes 2,420,310,403 2,852,712,104
Income tax expense 8 99,310,016 107,478,838
Net income 2,321,000,387 2,745,233,266

Other comprehensive loss:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trandation adjustment 2(0) (35,878,683) (7,967,178)

Comprehensive income $ 2,285,121,704 2,737,266,088

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members ClassM members holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options  Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31,
2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 $ 1,308,035518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 $ 37,843,422 $ (44,741,570)$ 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Balances at December 31,
2021 850,000 (6,433,247) 150,000 1,333,506,696 74,205 69,610,604 102,231 32,693,374 (52,708,748) 1,376,668,679
Net income 1,612,749,721 517,338,542 190,912,124 - - 2,321,000,387
Distributions (1,716,943,889) (561,838,075) (196,629,414) - - (2/475,411,378)
Contribution 2,254,594 - - - - 2,254,594
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 7,094,796 - 7,094,796

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 4,645,064 - 10,243,928 (14,888,992) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (35,878,683) (35,878,683)
Balances at December 31,
2022 850,000 $ (103,727,757) 150,000 $ 1,289,007,163 90,957 ¢ 74,137,242 59,004 $ 24,899,178 $ (88,587,431)$ 1,195,728,395

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $  2,321,000,387 2,745,233,266
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 7,007,233 11,600,078
Depreciation and amortization 72,011,201 65,880,266
Finance costs 5,102,108 5,545,277
Equity inloss of associates 8,516,943 1,327,780
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 2,110,095 1,665
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets 1,697 -
Unrealized and realized net loss on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 517,601 29,028
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments - 4,206,963
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 13,733,834 15,036,589
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (8,121,604) (13,788,912)
Income taxes paid (126,296,902) (108,645,764)
Interest paid (5,102,108) (5,545,277)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable 257,625,543 (194,961,547)
Recelvables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (19,444,611) (18,406,245)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 17,730,085 180,065,741
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates (16,690,982) 63,479,303
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,529,700,520 2,751,058,211
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired - (144,367)
Purchases of property and equipment (14,102,890) (17,229,114)
Purchases of intangible assets (991,693) (4,902,545)
Purchases of investments in associates - (23,500,150)
Net cash used in investing activities (15,094,583) (45,776,176)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 579,000,000 337,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (579,000,000) (337,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,475,411,378) (2,622,190,457)
Contribution received 2,254,594 8,451,432
Principal elements of lease payments (34,481,606) (33,282,796)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,507,638,390) (2,647,021,821)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (35,878,683) (7,967,178)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (28,911,136) 50,293,036
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 692,286,956 721,198,092
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ - 2,547,664

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
I LLC (AAM Holding I1). The Company has authorized 250,000 Class M units for issuance and options on Class
M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2022, 90,957 Class M units have
been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with respect to income and
distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.
StocksPLUS Management, Inc. isthe general partner of StocksPLUS L P.
PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.
PIMCO Japan Ltd is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.
PIMCO Australia Pty Limited is aregistered investment adviser in Australia

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Resources) LLC provides certain global payroll services to PIMCO and its
subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Global Advisors LLC isaholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages investment funds under the laws of
L uxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Fixed income Management LLC (Gurtin) is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Aurora LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) isareal estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(20 Significant Accounting Policies

(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting

policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)

298/367



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 20, 2023.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $444.7 million and $323.9 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash
equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various
federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federal foreign programs), and as a resullt,
thereis a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other (loss) income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(e) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These feesare earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is highly probable that significant reversal will not occur.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these values can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships and developed technology. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were determined
using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships and the replacement cost method for
the developed technology. The intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from
18 months to three years, using the straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified
termination date are classified as indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2022 or 2021.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. The Company has included
options to extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all
factors that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

The Company recognizes the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

() Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promotional
The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating

marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(o) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financia condition as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(@) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(r) Défared Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

() Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

(3) Fair Vdue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial

condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $23.6 million and
$29.7 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2022 or
2021.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
Additions 10,150,192 3,952,698 - 14,102,890
Disposals (1,521,360) (588,736) (1,119) (2,111,215)
Depreciation and amortization (16,079,748) (12,728,012) - (28,807,760)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 30,298,311 63,109,027 1,070,631 94,477,969

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $28.8 million and $27.0 million during 2022
and 2021, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)

305/367



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:;

Computer Customer Developed
Software Relationships Technology Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 13,624,825 19,360,000 - 32,984,825
Additions 991,693 - - 991,693
Disposals (1,697) - - (1,697)
Amortization (5,195,246) (2,080,000) - (7,275,246)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 9,419,575 17,280,000 - 26,699,575

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.3 million and $7.2 million during 2022 and 2021,
respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.3 million and $23.6 million
during 2022 and 2021, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $23.5 million and $21.5 million as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at a rate of overnight SOFR plus 0.2% (2021: LIBOR plus 0.2%) to cover short-term operating
cash needs. During 2022 and 2021, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from
AAM LP to cover its operating cash needs. At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, PIMCO had no
outstanding short-term loans. During 2022 and 2021, PIMCO incurred $183 thousand and $102 thousand,
respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in finance costs in the consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had $776.5
million (2021: $1.0 billion) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $45.3 million and $55.9 million during 2022 and 2021, respectively, which are
included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $6.3 million and $7.3 million during
2022 and 2021, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with al of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO' s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are allocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2022, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $418.3 million (2021: $400.4 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $34.0 million (2021: $41.6 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2022, costs allocated to PEG
were $66.6 million (2021: $85.8 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2022, the Company had a $15.7 million (2021: $26.2 million) receivable from PEG and a
$60.8 million (2021: $74.1 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of SOFR
plus 20bps (2021: LIBOR plus 20bps). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit
facility on behalf of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement
at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)

307/367



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, 59,004 and 102,231 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 90,957 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2022.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2022 or 2021. A summary of the activity in 2022 and 2021 related to the

number and weighted average exercise price of the M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 38,379 (38,379) - -
Exercised (38,379) - (38,379) 13,960
Forfeited - (4,848) (4,848) 16,186
Outstanding at
December 31, 2022 - 59,004 59,004 $ 16,151
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2022 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2022 have an exercise price between $14,516 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.46 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $24,780 for 2022 and $20,924
for 2021. M unit options totaling 38,379 vested during 2022. On March 31, 2022 and September 28, 2022, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 16,752 M units. As of December 31, 2022, 90,526 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these vested
awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,597 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2022 and 2021 was $7.0 million and $11.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2022, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $4.6 million.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2022 and 2021 was $62.2 million and $59.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Compensation expense or benefit and unrealized gains or losses are recognized to the extent the underlying
investments appreciate or depreciate in value. Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in
trust and the related liability at December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $1.2 billion and $1.2 hillion, respectively, and
are included in interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2022, unrealized losses amounted to $160.0
million, and is included within compensation and benefits and other (loss) income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. During 2021, unrealized gains amounted to $112.1
million, and is included within compensation and benefits and other (loss) income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2022 2021
Current:

Federa $ 50,000 81,038
State 3,037,815 3,988,116
Foreign 100,156,227 115,094,758
Tota current 103,244,042 119,163,912

Deferred:
Foreign (3,934,026) (11,685,074)
Total deferred (3,934,026) (11,685,074)
Total provision $ 99,310,016 107,478,838

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, income taxes payable amounted to $16.9 million and $32.8 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2022 and 2021, deferred tax assets amounted to
$52.5 million and $54.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted
to $146 thousand and $285 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 30,598,714 31,256,186
4,919,604 5,443,382
699,666 312,947
883,439 578,204
2,341,128 1,319,717

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $43.3 million and

$40.9 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022:

Year ending December 31
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 39,348,587
22,579,980
34,908,435
34,012,100
29,593,384

171,102,531

331,545,017
(58,598,917)

$ 272,946,100

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021

Year ending December 31.

2022 $ 35,796,969
2023 37,499,114
2024 23,189,168
2025 34,006,401
2026 33,302,410
Thereafter 69,700,751
Total operating lease payments 233,494,813
Lessimputed interest (19,310,763)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 214,184,050

(10) Financia Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market Risk

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks. The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2022.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2022, there were no

changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2022 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of PI
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $4.4
million and $3.3 million in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2022 and 2021, respectively,
which isincluded in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in
the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

December 31
2022 2021
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,629,358,116 $ 2,408,685,532
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 1,057,636 567,143

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(Continued)
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(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 20, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

On January 1, 2023, AAM LP and AAM LLC merged with AAM LLC being the surviving entity, new managing
member of the Company, and new owner of al 850,000 Class A units of the Company.

On March 1, 2023, AREOA was legally renamed to PIMCO Prime Real Estate LLC.
On March 8, 2023, Gurtin and PIMCO merged, with PIMCO being the surviving entity.
PIMCO M unit options totaling 31,548 vested subsequent to the date of the specia-purpose consolidated

statement of financial condition. On March 31, 2023, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless
exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 7,862 M units.
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30

1,013,661,485 149,565,752
19,326,102 2,851,566
667,548,950 98,496,848
294,910,245 43,514,007
68,702,831 10,137,103
15,476,137 2,283,504
17,875,238 2,637,491
20,851,016 3,076,567
113,247,731 16,709,703
2,231,599,735 329,272,541
90,760,961 13,391,780
222,667,521 32,854,593
1,253,588,749 184,967,020
30,865,176 4,554,157
30,756,522 4,538,125
26,570,990 3,920,550
64,587,773 9,529,926
1,719,797,692 253,756,149
3,951,397,427 583,028,690
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420,903, 866 62,104,365
565,044,623 83,372,334

60,382,239 8,909,399

18,609,056 2,745,766

75,542,357 11,146,275

17,875,238 2,637,491

3,053,533 450,549

1,161,410,912 171,366,180

1,253,588,749 184,967,020

249,841,855 36,864,166

121,224,559 17,886,684

3,662,023 540,331

1,628,317,186 240,258,201

2,789,728,098 411,624,381

850,000 (127,315, 540) (18,785,408)
150,000 1,278,193,858 188,597,504
98,819 78,788,846 11,625,294
25,675 10,689,383 1,577,218
(78,687,218) (11,610,299)

1,161,669,329 171,404,309

3,951,397,427 583,028,690
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2023 30

1,795,001,444 264,852,463
503,285,567 74,259,785
537,256,999 79,272,270
130,015,913 19,183,848

25,359,475 3,741,791

2,990,919, 398 441,310,157

1,191,137,960 175,752,406
182,234,609 26,888,717
298,763,424 44,082,543
103,315, 358 15,244,181

98,229,025 14,493,693
58,380,832 8,614,092
16,272,450 2,401,000
22,988,744 3,391,989

1,971,322,402 290,868,620

1,019,596,996 150,441,537
105,578,918 15,578,169

(5,183, 285) (764,794)
(1,900, 684) (280, 446)
1,118,001,945 164,974,466
42,922,025 6,333,145
1,075,169, 920 158,641,322
9,900,213 1,460,776
1,085,070,133 160,102,098
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2023 30

2022 12

31
850,000 (103,727,757) (15,305,031) 150,000 1,289,007,163 190,193,007 90,957 74,137,242 10,938,950
741,351,472 109,386,410 238,583,350 35,202,973 95,235,098 14,051,939
(776,776,518) (114,613,375) (249,396,655)  (36,798,476) (95,723,759) (14,124,041)

1,673,156 246,874

PIMCO
10,164,107 1,499,714 5,140,265 758,446

2023

30

850,000 (127,315,540) (18,785,408) 150,000 1,278,193,858 188,597,504 98,819 78,788,846 11,625,294
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2023 30
2022 12 31
59,004 24,899,178 3,673,874  (88,587,431)  (13,071,075)  1,195,728,395 176,429,725
1,075,169,920 158,641,322
(1,121,896,932)  (165,535,892)
1,673,156 246,874
PINMCO
1,094,577 161,505 1,094,577 161,505
(15,304,372)  (2,258,160)
9,900,213 1,460,776 9,900,213 1,460,776
2023 30
25,675 10,689,383 1,577,218  (78,687,218)  (11,610,299)  1,161,669,329 171,404,309
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2023 30

1,075,169,920

158,641,322

1,101,860 162,579
31,273,527 4,614,409
5,183,285 764,794
1,900,684 280,446
(646,394) (95,375)
10,752,956 1,586,599
(5,821,438) (858,953)
(50, 880,780) (7,507,459)
(5,183,285) (764,794)
97,514,201 14,388,220
(50, 433,887) (7,441,520)
360,761,679 53,230,386
(11,376,924) (1,678,665)

1,459,315,404

215,321,988

(8,244,538) (1,216,482)
(8,727,998) (1,287,816)
(16,972,536) (2,504,298)
408,000,000 60,200,400

(408,000,000)

(1,121,896,932)
1,673,156

(10,644,776)

(60,200,400)

(165,535,892)
246,874

(1,570,637)

(1,130, 868,552)

(166,859, 655)

9,900,213

1,460,776

321,374,529

692,286,956

47,418,812

102,146,940

1,013,661,485

149,565,752
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PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2024
2018 18 PIMCO PL
PIMCO PL
2018
PIMCO
2020 PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO 2024
2020 11 18 PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
2021 18 PIMCO
2021 12
2023
PIMCO 2021 22
CDO
CDO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2022 13 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2022 23 2022 29 PIMCO PIMCO
FGMC
FGMC
FGMC
PIMCO
PIMCO FGMC PIMCO

12 31
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PIMCO Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2024 1,443,950,333.78 2,130 5,487
1971
1940 PIMCO
PIMCO

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2024 25 3,689

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2024 10 6,000 1,564 300

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2024 1,209 17 8,388
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2023 17,709

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited
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60
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2023, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for each of the
periods indicated in the table below, including the related notes, and the financia highlights for each of the periods
indicated therein (collectively referred to as the "financial statements’”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to below present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each of the Funds indicated in the table below as of October 31, 2023, and the results of each of
their operations and the changes in each of their net assets for the periods indicated in the table below, and each of the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
()

@

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) ) PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) )

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 )

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |1 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |11 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

PIMCO World High Income @

@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2023
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Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Funds and to meet our other ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
January 25, 2024
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Translated from English

2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021 12 31

12
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2023 20
"This version of our report is a translation from the original report, which was prepared in

English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original English

language version of our report takes precedence over this translation."
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 20, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2022, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for each of the
periods indicated in the table below, including the related notes, and the financia highlights for each of the periods
indicated therein (collectively referred to asthe "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to below present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each of the Funds indicated in the table below as of October 31, 2022, and the results of each of
their operations and the changes in each of their net assets for the periods indicated in the table below, and each of the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
()

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @)

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
(€

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) )

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) )

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |1 @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund @)

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 )

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

PIMCO World High Income @
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@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2022
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Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Funds and to meet our other ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
January 31, 2023
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